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INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

On August 31, 2016, the Supreme Court of Nova Scotia (the “Court”) granted an order (the
“Initial Order”) under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, R.5.C, 1985, c. C-36, as
amended (the “"CCAA") granting certain relief to Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan
Mullen Mink Ranch Limited (collectively the “*Applicants”).

As part of the Initial Order, Deloitte Restructuring Inc. ("*Deloitte”) was appointed as Monitor
under these CCAA proceedings.

On September 27, 2016, the Court granted an order (the “Charging Order”) granting the
Applicants the power to borrow up to $1.5 million from North American Fur Auctions Inc.
(“NAFA") as debtor in possession financing ("DIP Financing”).

On September 28, 2016, the Court granted an order (the “First Extension Order”) extending
the stay of proceedings from September 30, 2016 up to and including November 25, 2016.

On November 24, 2016, the Court granted an order (the “Second Extension Order”) extending
the stay of proceedings from November 25, 2016 up to and including January 31, 2017.

On December 8, 2016, the Monitor filed its Fourth Report with the Court. The purpose of the
Fourth Report was to bring closure regarding certain payments made by the Applicants to
Trinity Farms Inc. initially addressed in the Monitor's Third Report dated November 21, 2016.

On January 30, 2017, the Court granted an order (the “Third Extension Order”) extending the
stay of proceedings from January 31, 2017 up to and including February 14, 2017.

On February 16, 2017, the Court granted an order (the “Fourth Extension Order”) extending
the stay of proceedings from February 17, 2017 up to an including April 28, 2017.

In addition to the Fourth Extension Order granted on February 16, 2017, the Court also
granted an order granting the Applicants the power to borrow up to an additional $1.5 million
from NAFA as DIP Financing (the “Second Charging Order”) and authorized the Applicants to
undertake a process to sell all of their assets, property and undertakings (the “Stalking Horse
and Bidding Procedures Order”).



2. FTERMS OF REFERENCE

2.1 In preparing the Seventh Report, the Monitor has relied upon financial information of the
Applicants, discussions with the Applicants’ management (*“Management”), BoyneClarke LLP,
the Applicants’ legal counsel, and McInnes Coaper, the Manitor's legal counsel.

2.2 The financial information of the Applicants has not been audited, reviewed or otherwise
verified by the Monitor as to its accuracy or completeness, nor has it necessarily been
prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and the reader is
cautioned that the Seventh Report may not disclose all significant matters about the
Applicants. Additionally, none of our procedures were intended to disclose defalcations or
other irregularities, Were we to perform additional procedures or to undertake an audit
examination of the financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, additional matters may have come to our attention. Accordingly, the Monitor does
not express an opinion or provide any other form of assurance on the financial or other
information presented herein. The Monitor may refine or alter its observations as further
information is obtained or brought to its attention after the date of the Seventh Report.

2.3 The Monitor assumes no responsibility or liability for any loss or damage occasioned by any
party as a result of the circulation, publication, reproduction or use of the Seventh Report. Any
use which any party makes of the Seventh Report, or any reflance or decisions to he made on
the Seventh Report, is the sole respansibiiity of such party.

2.4 All dollar amounts identified in the Seventh Report are expressed in or converted to Canadian
dollars.

2.5 The purpose of this Seventh Report is to inform this Court on the status of:
(i) the Monitor's activities since the date of the Fourth Extension Crder;
(i} the Applicants’ activities since the date of the Fourth Extension Qrder;

(iii} a review of the Cash Flow Projection submitted as part of the Sixth Report (the
*Fourth Extension Cash Flow Projection”);

{iv) a revised Cash Flow Forecast of the Applicants (the “Fifth Extension Cash Flow
Projection™;

{v) a review of the marketing efforts undertaken by the Monitor {the "Marketing
Process™);

{vi) the results of Stalking Horse and Bidding Procedures Order {the “Sales Process
Order™), which was undertaken as directed by the Court;

(vii) the Applicants’ request for a Sale Approval and Vesting Order (the “Sale Approval
Order;

(viii} the Applicants’ request for a Claims Procedure Crder (the "Claims Process Crder”);
and

{ix) the Applicants’ request for an extension {the “Fifth Extension Order”).

3. MONITOR’S ACTIVITIES

3.1 Since the date of the Fourth Extension Qrder, the Monitor’s activities have included:

(i monitoring of the Applicants’ actual cash flow and reporting on variances to the
Fourth Extension Cash Flow Forecast filed with the Court as part of the Applicants’
Motion for the Fourth Extension Order;
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(i)  working with the Management of the Applicants to prepare the January and February
monthly financial package for NAFA as required per the DIP Financing term sheet;

(ii  the Monitor investigated an arrangement between Victory Farms Incorporated
Victory”) and Aviator Farms Limited (“Aviator”) further disclosed herein. As at the
date of the Seventh Report, the Monitor has not received acknowledgement that
American Legend Cooperative ("ALC™) has authorized this transaction;

(iv) working in conjunction with Management of the Applicants, BoyneClarke LLP and
McInnes Cooper, to prepare an information package {the "Information Package™) to
be presented to interested parties, a copy of which is enclosed as Appendix A;

(v) working with the Applicants to respond to additional requests for information from
interested parties to the sales process;

{vi) coordinating marketing efforts pursuant to the Marketing Process; and

{vii) working with the Applicants to create the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection
further discussed herein.

APPLICANTS” ACTIVITIES

Since the date of the Fourth Extension Order, Management of the Applicants has advised the
Monitor that operations have continued uninterrupted.

Management of the Applicants completed its live grading in order to determine which
remaining mink would be kept as breeding stock.

On January 31, 2017, Victory entered into an arrangement with Aviator whereby Victory
received 4,383 live breeding stock in exchange for 4,383 pelts. A copy of the arrangement is
enclosed as Appendix B, The Applicants have advised the Monitor that the Aviator
arrangement was a fair market value transaction and conducted in the normal course of
operations. The Applicants have also assured the Monitor that each of NAFA and AlLC
consented to the arrangement and its impacts on their respective security, but this has not vet
been confirmed.

Breeding of the selected mink was undertaken during the first three weeks of March 2017 and
as of the date of the Seventh Report, has been completed.

The Applicants sold 2,723 male pelts and 116 female pelts for net proceeds (after ali
commissions charges and deductions) of $122 thousand at the February 2017 NAFA auction.
These proceeds are currently being held by NAFA.

The Applicants have sent their harvested pelts to the processing facility and the pelts are in
the process of being graded, tagged, and shipped to NAFA to be held pending upcoming
auctions. As of the date of the Seventh Report, the Applicants have been invoiced for the
processing and shipping cost of approximately 32 thousand pelts.

Based on the books and records of the Applicants as at the date of the Seventh Report, the
Monitor has estimated a liability owing to the 340 Rancher’s Co-operative Limited (7340 Co-
op”) of approximately $238 thousand relating to the harvesting of pelts. As discussed in
previous reports, this liability has the potential to give rise to a possessionary lien claim
against these pelts.
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The Applicants have continued to assist the Monitor with requests since the Fourth Extension
Order, including working with the Monitor's staff to compiete weekly cash flow reconciliations
and providing the Monitor's staff with necessary documentation to communicate with NAFA
regarding DIP Financing.

ACTUAL CASH FLOW

The Monitor previously filed with the Court the Fourth Extension Cash Flow Projection for the
13-week period February 4 to May 5, 2017,

The Monitor has prepared a reconciliation of the actual cash flow for the 8-week period
February 4 to March 31, 2017 as compared to the Fourth Extension Cash Flow Projection (the
“Cash Flow Reconciliation”), which is contained within Appendix C to the Seventh Report.

The Manitor offers the following commentary with respect to material variances contained
within the Cash Flow Reconciliation: :

{(iy The favorable variance of $24 thousand relating to contracted mink care payments is
timing related.

(it}  The favorable variance of $52 thousand relating to professional fees is timing driven.
The Monitor, legal counsel to the Monitor and legal counsel to the Applicants will all
he issuing invoices to the Applicants in the coming weeks for work completed during
February and March 2017,

(it The favorable variance of $176 thousand relating to pelting costs is timing related.
The 340 Co-op requests payment for pelting services once pelts have been shipped
to their designated auctions. To date, approximately 32 thousand of the Applicants’
approximate 80 thousand annual harvest have been shipped. The invoices for the
remaining pelting costs are anticipated to be received in April 2017,

REVISED CASH FLOW PROJECTION

The Applicants have prepared the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection for the 9-week period
spanhing Aptil 7 to June 2, 2017; which Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection is enclosed as
Appendix D to the Seventh Report.

The Monitor’s review of the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection consisted of inquiries,
analytical procedures and discussions on the information provided by Management of the
Applicants. Since these hypothetical assumptions are not being supported, the Monitor’s
involvement with respect to them was limited to evaluating whether they were consistent with
the purpose of the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection. The Monitor also reviewed the
supporting documentation provided by Management of the Applicants for the probable
assumptions and the preparation and presentation of the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection.

Based on aur review and the foregoing reserves and limitations, nothing has come to the
attention of the Monitor that causes us to believe that, in all matertal respects:

(i) the hypothetical assumptions are not consistent with the purpose of the Fifth
Extension Cash Fiow Proiection;

(ii} as at the date of the Seventh Report, the probable assumptions developed by the
Applicants are not suitably supported and consistent with the plans of the Applicants
or do not provide a reasonable basis for the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projectian,
given the hypothetical assumptions; or
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(iii} the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection does not reflect the probable and
hypothetical assumptions.

Since the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection is based on assumptions regarding future
events, actual results will vary from the information presented even if the hypothetical
assumptions occur, and the variations may be material. Accordingly, the Monitor does not
express an opinion to whether the projections in the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection will
be achieved.

The Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection has been prepared solely for the purpose described in
the notes to the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Statement, and readers are cautioned that the Fifth
Extension Cash Flow Projection may not be appropriate for other purposes.

The Monitor has reviewed the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection and offers the following
commentary:

(i} Outside of HST refunds, the Applicants are not projecting to receive any operating
inflows for the period covered by the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection. A portion
of the Applicants’ herd will be auctioned during the week of May 12, 2017; however,
proceeds from this sale will not be received until the week ending June 9, 2017.

(ii} Compensation costs contains payments to staff at existing rates for anticipated
hours through the period covered, along with statutory remittances to Canada
Revenue Agency and Workers’ Compensation Board of Nova Scotia.

(ii) Feed costs are based on anticipated consumption levels of the herd during the period
at existing feed prices, factoring in payment terms with suppliers.

(iv) Contracted mink care payments are based on existing arrangements the Applicants
have entered into with other mink farmers to care for mink.

{v)} Professional fees are estimates only and do not account for retainers that have been
provided to the professionals invoived in the engagement.

(vi} Pelting costs are based on the existing market prices and based on approximately 49
thousand pelts being invoiced during the period.

(vii} As at the date of the Seventh Report, the Monitor estimates the balance of the DIP
Financing is approximately $2.2 million.

As indicated in the Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection, the Applicants are projected to
exhaust current DIP Financing during the week ending June 2, 2017, a date which is beyond
the currently proposed stay extension. The Monitor advises the Court that should the
Applicants require additional time to complete the process described herein pursuant to the
Claims Process Order, and/or the Sale Approval Order, additional DIP Financing may be
required.

THE MARKETING PROCESS

As contained in the Sales Process Order granted on February 16, 2017, the Monitor was
directed to complete the following advertising efforts:

() advertising the opportunity to acquire the Purchased Assets, complete with
confirmation of the Bid Deadline, as defined in the Sales Process Qrder, in the
Chronicle Herald (Provincial Edition) once weekly for five consecutive weeks;
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(i) advertising the opportunity to acquire the Purchased Assets, complete with
confirmation of the Bid Deadline, as defined in the Sales Process Qrder, in each of
the Yarmouth Vanguard and on-line edition of the Digby Courier, once weekly for
five consecutive weeks;

(iify advertising the opportunity to acquire the Purchased Assets, complete with
confirmation of the Bid Deadline, as defined in the Sales Process Order, in the
Insolvency Insider for five consecutive weeks;

{iv) advertising the opportunity to acquire the Purchased Assets, complete with
confirmation of the Bid Deadline, as defined in the Sales Process Order, on the
Menitor’'s website up to and including the aforesaid Bid Deadline; and

{v} identifying applicable industry group websites, contacts within the fur farming
industry, and other individuatls and groups te whom targeted information circulars
will be sent.

The Monitor, in canjunction with its legal counsel, prepared an advertisement {the
*Advertisement”}, a copy of which is enclosed as Appendix E.

Pursuant to the marketing efforts described above, the Monitor completed the following:

(i)  Chraonicle Herald (Provincial Edition) - the Advertisement was run on February 22,
25, March 1, 4, 8, 11, 15, 18, 22, and 24, 2017,

(iiy Yarmouth Vanguard {Qnline) - the Advertisement was run on February 27, March 6,
13, and 20, 2017. The Monitor was unable to publish in this medium during the first
week of the Sales Process, as the submission deadline for publication had passed.

{iii) Digby Courier (Online) — the Advertisement was run on February 22, March 1, 8, 15,
and 22, 2017.

{iv) Insclvency Insider - the Advertisement was run on February 20, 27, March 6, 13,
and 20, 2017,

The Monitor updated its website to include information regarding the Sales Process Order on
February 21, 2017.

Efforts to advertise in respect of the Sales Process Grder with industry groups are described
below:

(iy Canadian Mink Breeders Association ("CMBA"} - the Advertisement was distributed
via the CMBA’s monthly newsletter cn February 28, 2017, a copy of which is
enclosed as Appendix F. The Monitor was advised by CMBA that the newsletter
circulation includes industry participants across Canada.

(i) WMNova Scotia Mink Breeders Association ("NSMBA"} - the Monitor contacted
representatives of the NSMBA and provided a copy of the Advertisement and asked
that it be circulated to tts member group. The Monitor was subsequently advised
that the Board of Directors of NSMBA had declined to circulate the Advertisement.

(iii) Prince Edward Island Mink Breeders Association {("PEIMBA") — the Monitor was
unable to locate an active website for PEIMBA, however, contact was made with a
past President. The Monitor was advised by this individual that only two mink farms
are currently cperating in the province and that both farmers had seen the
Advertisement through the CMBA newsletter.

{iv) New Brunswick Mink Breeders Association — the Monitor was unable to locate any
information regarding this association.
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{v) Newfoundland and Labrador Mink Breeders Association — through research, the
Menitor discovered an email address for this group. The Monitor made an attempt to
contact this group, however, no response was received.

In addition to the above, the Monitor contacted Atlantic Farm Focus ("AFF"). AFF is an Atlantic
Canadian magazine that targets the agricultural and rural communities of the Maritimes with a
monthly circulation of approximately 11 thousand. The Monitor created the AFF
Advertisement, a copy of which is enclosed as Appendix G, which was published in the March
issue of AFF on March 3, 2017,

Furthermore, the Monitor placed an online advertisement with AllNovaScotia.com (the “ALLNS
Advertisement”), a copy of which is enclosed as Appendix H. The ALLNS Advertisement ran
daily for two consecutive weeks between March 13 and March 24, 2017. The Monitor was
advised that during the advertisement’'s run, AllNovaScotia’'s webpage received over 22,000
unique viewers,

THE SALES PROCESS RESULTS

During the course of the sales process, the Monitor was contacted by three distinct and
separate parties.

On February 23, 2017, the Monitor was contacted by an interested party ("Party A")
requesting an Information Package. The Monitor can advise that Party A is an active
participant in the Nova Scotia mink industry.

On March 1, 2017, after receiving an executed non-disclosure agreement ("NDA"), the Monitor
provided Party A with the Information Package on March 2, 2017,

Cn March 6, 2017, the Monitor provided additional financial information to Party A that was
initially requested by Party A on March 2, 2017,

Cn March 13, 2017, the Monitor corresponded with Party A to determine if any additional
information was required. The Monitor was advised by Party A that they would follow up with
questions. The Monitor never did receive any further correspondence from Party A subsequent
fo March 13, 2017.

Glven Party A's extensive connections in the mink industry, the Monitor also invited Party A to
advise any other individual or corporation who/which might have an interest in the assets
being offered that such parties were free to contact the Monitor for further information,
subject to executing an appropriate NDA. As stated above, no subsequent correspondence was
received from Party A after March 13, 2017,

On March 22, 2017, the Monitor provided & copy of the purchase price allocation schedule to
Party A following the receipt of sald schedule from legal counsel of the Applicants.

On March 6, 2017, the Monttor was contacted by a second interested party ("Party B”)
requesting an Information Package. The Monitor is net aware that Party B has any
invalvement in the Nova Scotia mink industry. On the same day, the Monitor provided Party B
with an NDA to execute.

Cn March 9, 2017, Party B contacted the Monitor and advised it was no longer interested in
recefving an Information Package.
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On March 19, 2017, the Monitor was contacted by a third interested party ("Party C”)
requesting an Information Package. The Monitor is not aware that Party C has any
involvement in the Nova Scotia mink industry.

On March 20, 2017, the Monitor provided Party C with an NDA and provided Party C with the
Information Package on March 21, 2017 after receiving the executed NDA. The Menitor did not
receive any further correspondence from Party C subsequent to the delivery of the Information
Package,

The Monitor wishes ta advise the Court that no Qualifying Bids as described in the Sales
Process Order were received prior to the Bid Deadline.

Pursuant to the results of the sales process described herein, the Monitor has been advised
that the Applicants intend to seek a Sale Approval Order from the Court on Aprit 7, 2017.

The Monitor is of the opinion that the Sale Approval Order is required to suppart the
Applicants’ restructuring efforts and that the terms of the Sale Approval Order are appropriate
as a means of facilitating the restructuring of the Applicants.

g9 CLAIMS PROCESS
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The Monitor has been advised by the Applicants that they intend to seek a Claims Process
Order from the Court on April 7, 2017. In anticipation of the receipt of the Claims Process
Order, the Applicants, in conjunction with the Monitor, have prepared a Claims Process Order
which is enclosed as Appendix L.

As noted by the Monitor in its Sixth Report, the Monitor has previously prepared a realization
schedule in the event of a liquidation, and based on the quantum of secured debt owing by the
Applicants against the expected asset realizations, has determined that secured creditors
would be faced with a compromise of their respective claims of their respective debts and
there would be no distribution available to the Applicants’ unsecured creditors.

As such, only specific secured creditors of the Applicants will be designated creditors
("Designated Creditors™) under the proposed Claims Process Order.

The Monitor understands that a Proof of Claim and Instruction Letter, enclosed with Appendix
I, will be sent to Designated Creditors on or before 11:59 p.m. on April 12, 2017,

The Monitor, in consultation with its legal counsel, shall review each Proof of Claim and
Schedule to Proof of Claim filed and shall accept, revise or reject the amount of the Claim (but
not any priority claimed, which shall not be taken as determined) set out therein for the
purpose of the Funds Distribution Process.

The Monitor shall, within ten days following the Claims Bar Date, notify each Designated
Creditor who has filed a Proof of Claim as to whether such Claim has been revised or rejected
and the reasons therefor by delivery of a Notice of Disallowance, an example of which is
enclosed with Appendix 1.

Any Designated Creditor who intends to dispute a Notice of Disaliowance shall, within ten
calendar days of the date of the Notice of Disallowance, notify the Monitor in writing of such
intention by delivery of a Dispute Notice, an example of which is enclosed with Appendix L.
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Where a Dispute Notice is delivered, the Designated Creditor and the Menitor shall attempt to
resclve same by agreement within fourteen days of the delivery of the Dispute Notice. If a
resclution by agreement is not met, the Designated Creditor shall within seven days thereafter
apply to have the value of its Claim determined by the Court.

A designated creditor that does not file a Proof of Claim by the Claims Bar Date er such later
date as the Applicants and such Designated Creditors may agree, or this Court may order,
such Creditor shall be forever barred from making any Claim against the Applicants and shall
not be entitlied to any distribution under the Funds Distribution Process provision hereof, and
such Designated Creditor’s Claim shall be forever extinguished.

The Monitor understands that within thirty days after the Claims Bar Date, or the final
resclution of all claims made by Designated Creditors, whichever is the later, the Applicants
shall make motion to the Court for a Final Distribution Order which shall, inter alia, establish
and set out the priority for payment purposes of all Proven Claims.,

10 STAY EXTENSION APPLICATION
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The Monitor has been advised by the Applicants that they intend to seek the Fifth Extension
Order from the Court on April 7, 2017,

Based on the Monitor's dealing with Management of the Applican{s and the Manitor's review of
the Applicants’ operations and restructuring efforts to date, it can advise:

(iy  that the Applicants have acted and continue to act in good faith;
(i) that the Applicants have acted and continue to act with due diligence, and:

(iii) in the Monitor's opinion, circumstances exist that make the Fifth Extension Order
appropriate.

The Monitor believes that an extension up to and including May 31, 2017 will provide the
Applicants with adequate time to implement the Claims Process Order discussed herein and

would enable the Applicants, together with the Moniteor, to undertake the Claims Process
pursuant to the intended Claims Process Order.

The Monitor is of the opinion that no creditor would be materially prejudiced by the Court
granting the Fifth Extension Order as requested by the Applicants.

In the absence of the Fifth Extension Order being granted, the Applicants will not be in a
position to complete the processes outlined in the Claims Process Order and the Sales
Approval and Vesting Order prior to April 28, 2017, The Monitor has prepared a realization
schedule in the event of a liquidation, and based on the quantum of secured debt owing by the
Applicants against the expected asset realizations, has determined that secured creditors
would be faced with a compromise of their respective claims of their respective debts and
there would be no distribution available to the unsecured creditors.
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11 CONCLUSION

11.1  This Report has been prepared to provide this Court with infarmation regarding the Monitor’s
activities since the date of the Fourth Extension Order, the Applicants’ activities since the date
of the Fourth Extension Order, a review of the Fourth Extension Cash Flow Prejection
submitted as part of the Fourth Extension Order, a Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projecticn, the
Applicants’ request for the Sale Approval Order, the Applicants’ request for the Claims Process
Order, and the Applicants’ request for the Fifth Extension Order.

All of which is respectively submitted on April 4, 2017,

DELOITTE RESTRUCTURING INC.
Acting in its capacity as

Maonitor of Victory Farms Incorporated and
Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited

and not in its personal capacity

Per:

Y

James Foran, CPA, CA, CIRP, LIT
Vice President




Appendix A: information Package




NOTICE TO READER

The attached Appendices A and B provide an overview of the Purchased Assets offered for sale as part
of the Sales Process granted by the Supreme Court of Nova Scotia dated February 16, 2017, The sale
of the Purchased Assets shall he on an ™as is”, "where is” and “with all faults” basis.

For greater certainty, the sale of the Purchased Assets is made without representations, warranties, or
guarantees, express, implied or statutory, written or oral, of any kind, nature, or description by the
Monitor or the Applicants or their respective agents, representatives or estates, or any of the other
parties participating in the sales process pursuant to the Sales Process, except as may otherwise be
provided in & definitive purchase agreement with the Applicants.

Any person submitting a bid on the Purchased Assets shall be deemed to acknowledge and represent
that it has had an opportunity to conduct any and alt due diligence regarding the Purchased Assets
prior to making its bid, that it has relied solely upon its own independent review, investigation and/or
inspection of any documents and/or the Purchased Assets in making its bid, and that it did not rely
upon any written or oral statements, representations, warranties, or guarantees, express, implied,
statutory or otherwise, regarding the Purchased Assets, title to the Purchased Assets, the financial
performance of the Purchased Assets or the physical condition or location of the Purchased Assets or
their fithess for use, or the completeness of any information provided in connection therewith, except
as expressly stated in the Bidding Precedures appended as Schedule A" to the Sales Process, or as
set forth in a definitive purchase agreement with the Applicants.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Monitor nor the Applicants make any representations or
warranties of any kind as regards to information presented in Appendices A — G and any prospective
bidder must govern itself accordingly in conducting its own due diligence investigations in respect to
this information.




APPENDIX A: PURCHASED ASSETS




Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited (the “Applicants™)
Purchased Assets

The following document provides an overview of the Purchased Assets offered for sale as part of the
Sales Process. The sale of the Purchased Assets shall be on an “as is”, “where is” and “with all faults”
basis.

Working Capital Assets

Accrued Agristability Payments - Victory Farms Incorporated has accrued at its year end
September 30, 2016 an estimated $447,136 of funding under the Agristabtlity pregram. This amount
represents the remaining portion of the 2016 payment. As of today’s date this funding has not been
received by the Applicants and the receipt of accrued Agristabiiity payments by the Applicants is not a
certainty.

Mink Inventory

The follewing summary has been prepared by management using current herd volumes and estimated
harvest volumes resuiting frem mating season. Mating will be compieted during the menth of March
2017, Actual breeding stock and processed pelts available post mating season may vary.

Breeding Stock

Type Male Female

Black 300 ADV Positive 4,200 ADV Free
850 Short Nap, ADV positive
2,550 Medium Nap, ADV positive

Mahogany 2,500 Short Nap, ADV positive
7,500 Medium Nap, ADV positive
Mutation® 1,400 Long Nap, ADV positive
Total 300 19,000

*Pearis, Silver Blue, Demi and White

Processed Peits

Type Male Female
Black 12,237 Medium to Long Nap 12,022 Medium te Leng Nap
4,079 Short Nap 4,007 Short Nap
Mahogany 18,050 Medium to Long Nap 17,732 Medium to Long Nap
6,017 Short Nap 5,911 Short Nap
Mutation*® 408 l.ong Nap 401 lL.ong Nap
Total** 40,791 40,073

*Pearls, Silver Blue, Demi and White
**Tncludes 5,504 casualties/hand skins and approximately 5,000 third selection skins

Totals

Breeding Stock — 19,300
Processed Pelts - 80,864
Total - 100,164

MNet proceeds of approximately $122,000 from the sale of 2,723 mate and 116 female pelts, included
in the summary schedule above, is being held by a third party pending the results of the Sales
Process.




Capital Assets

Machinery & Attachments:

2011 Norcar 670 DLA Feed Cart

2011 Norcar 810 DLA Feed Cart

2004 Doug Smith Feed Cart

2004 Kubota M8200 Tracter with Loader and Bucket (approx. 2,168 hrs)
2012 Norcar M601300 Feed Cart

2012 Norcar 660 Feed Cart

2012 Kobelco 215 SR 20 Ton Excavator with three buckets {approx. 878 hrs)
HLA Tractor Fork

HLA 3000 Horst Snow Blade (10 ft)

Woods Bush Hog BB84

2011 HLA 3000 Horst Snow Blade (8 ft)

Vehicles:

2008 Chevrolet 3500 (Diesel)
2011 GMC Sierra Regular Cab (Diesel)
2011 Chevrolet Silverado LTZ {Diesel}

Trailers:

2000 Featherlite Stock Trailer Model #200
2006 LWL Gooseneck Tri-axle (20x8 ft)
Mond 53ft Van Trailer

Equipment:

Three - Hydra Works Gas Power Washers
Lakefield Hydraulic Conveyor System
Trade Master 5 Gallon Compressor

Table Top Drilt Press

Bench Grinder

Electric Cement Mixer

10 inch King Table Saw

Mink Cages (Approximately 25,000)

20,000 Ib Feed Silo

11,000 |Ib Feed Silo

Kenmore washing machine

Kenmore dryer

Eight - 2,000 Ib Insulated Fish Tubs with lids
Three - Three wheel galvanized metal carts
Five - Two wheel 40 box mink carts

Two wheel metal cart

Two - Wheel barrows

Security System with DVR and Two Cameras
Gther Small Tools
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Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited (the “Applicants”)
Real property

The following document provides an overview of the real property for sale as part of the Sales
Process.

As outlined in the Sales Process, one (1) parcel owned by Victory Farms Incorporated {PID No.
30344576) appears to be subject to secured amounts owed to Nova Scotia Farm Loan Board
{"NSFLB™), and three (3) parcels owned by Jonathan Multen Mink Ranch Limited (PID Nos.
30145965, 30145973, and 30273817) appear to be subject fo secured amounts owed to Farm
Credit Canada ("FCC*}. Approximate amounts owed to NSFLB and FCC in respect of these
mortgaged lands are summarized helow.

Five {5) other parcels owned by Jonathan Muilen Mink Ranch Limited {PID Nos. 30146500, 30358329,
30358410, 30358402, and 30146070), appear to be unencumbered.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Manitor nor the Applicants makes any representations or
warranties of any kind as regards the aforementioned real property, nor as regards any registered or
recorded encumbrances affecting the aforementioned real property, and any prospective bidder must
govern itself accordingly in conducting its own due diligence investigations in respect of this real
property.

Victory Farms Incorporated

Secured Creditor ~ NSFLB
Approximate Amount Owing - $892,000%
PID(s): 30344576

Description of property:

241-243 Riverdale Road, Riverdale, Nova Scotia

Operational mink farm with eight mink barns and a detached single family residence. Total site area is
19 acres with a total building area of approximately 85 thousand square feet.

Residence — 2,100 #?

» {Concrete foundation

« Wood frame with Masonite siding and stone
« {One and a half story

» 6 bedrooms and a finished basement level

Detached Garage — 700 f?

« Concrete foundation
« Wood frame with vinyl siding

Mink Barns (8)

e Three wood frame steel panel barns 43 x 294’ (12,642 fi?)

+ One wood frame stee! panel barn 44’ x 504 (22,176 ft?)

« Four tradition hut style mink barns 10.5” x 519" (5,450 ft*}

= Approximately 17,500 cages on site. 7,760 of these cages will pass the upcoming changes to
cage size regulations.

Exhibit A - Supporting Pictures and Property online printouts

*Fstimated amounts are based on company records at the time of the initiai filing. Exact payout
amounts will be determined via a Claims Bar Process.



Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited

Secured Creditor -~ FCC

Approximate Amount Owing - $623,000%
PID{s):30145565, 30145973, and 30273817
Description of property:

Middle Cross Road, Roxville, Nova Scotia

Operational mink farm, with four mink barns and a detached office and shop building. Corrugated
steel panel fence enclosing the mink farm area, Excess woodland areas. Total site area is
approximately 215 acres with a total building area of 64 thousand square feet.

Shop Building - 1,367 ft?

+« Wood frame with corrugated steel panel siding

s Concrete foundation

+« Two overhead bay doors

» Large workshop section with 22’ clear height

» Bathroom, boot room and laundry room

= Mezzanine level with small office and secondary bathroom

Mink Barns (4) — 62,008 ft?

s 12 ft clearing height

» 15,502 #? per barn

» Wood frame, corrugated steel pane! cladding and dirt floors

s Overhead bay door

« 6,500 breeder cages on site, All of these cages will pass the upcoming changes to cage size
regulations.

Exhibit B - Supporting Pictures and Property online printouts

*Estimated amounts are based on company records at the time of the initial filing. Exact payout
amounts will be determined via a Claims Bar Process.

Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited - Unencumbered

PID(s): 30146500, 30358329, 30358410, 30358402, and 30146070
Description of property:
Approximately 23 acres of woodland, swamp, and other undeveloped land.

Exhibit C ~ Property online printouts



Exhibit A: 241-243 Riverdale Road, Riverdale, Nova Scotia







Front view of residence

Bear view of rasidence




(Garage adjacent to residence

View along driveway betwveen residence and mink bams



End view of single isle mink bams

Interior view of single isle mink barn
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Interier view of four isle mink bam
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Seareh Provincial Map Bulletin Board Help

LLand Registration View
* Indicates interests inherited on subdlivision or re-configuration of parcel

STANDARD

PID 30344576 Parcel Type o) nepl Status ACTIVE
Parcel Manag.

Area 19.0 ACRE(S) ACCEsS Unit | Musa14

Jan 11, 2005
Lot 10T 1 Created 03293 00PM
FOCA APPROVED Municipal MUNICIPALITY Manter NOT APPLICABLE
Status Unit OF THE of

DISTRICT OF Tenura

DIGBY

Jan 11, 2005
LR Status  LAND REGISTRATION LR Date 03:33:00PM
Location County Primary L.ocation Source
RIVERDALE ROAD DIGBY COUNTY Yes Assigned by Municipality
RIVERDALE
241 RIVERDALE ROAD DIGBY COUNTY No Assigned by Municipality
RIVERDALE
243 RIVERDALE RCAD DIGBY COUNTY No Assigned by Municipallty
RIVERDALE
Comments
Lot 1 595/230
MAP: 1044300065800
MAP: 1044350065800
Assessment Account  Valueg Tax District Tax Ward Tax Sub

$122,900 (2017 RESIDENTIAL TAXABLE)

01756168 $3,600 (2017 RESQURCE FOREST) 050 000

$394,100 (2017 RESQURCE TAXABLE)

["Back to Results |} Details View || ParcelArchive View |} Map View |

Registered interests

oy

nterest iterest . .
: ation

Holder Holdear iﬂgg :gg s Type Year Doac # BookiFage/Plan gg?;stmt[o Mo~
{Qualifier) Type Res?

POST

OFFICE BOX 197577
VICTORY FARMS  FEE SIMPLE 40 DEED 2005 [y
INCORPORATED WEYMOUTH Doe ew Jan 11, 2005 No

NS CA

BOW 3T0

Farm Loan Board - Occupants & Mailing Addresses
Mame Interest Holdsr Type Wailing Address

hitps:/finns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/land-title/view. do7pid=30344576 24/02/2017
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No Records Found

Benefits to the Registerad Interests
Benefit Details  Interest Holder Type  Type Year Doc # Bool/Page/Plan Registration Date

No Records Found

Burdens on the Registered Interests
Interest  Interest

Holder  Holder  aqand Type YearDoc#  BooklPagelPlan oo Ao
{Qualifier) Type

EASEMENT / 1221724

RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT/RIGHT i .
NSPI ROLDER oF WaY 2005 - View Jan 14, 2005

(BURDEN} Doc

Textual Qualifications on Title
Qualifications Text

Tenants in Common not registered pursuant to the Land Registration Act

interest (s . \

Interest Holder Mailing Dog Registration
Holdar’ Type Address Typa Year 5 Bool/Page/Plan Date
{Ghualifier)

No Records Found

Recorded Interests

Interest Iriteresi - . .
. itin Registration
Holder Holder Waiting Type Year Do¢ # Bock/Page/Plan g
e . Addross Date

{Qualifier) fype

POST 100292441
NOVA SCOTIA ggglce BOX View
FARM LOAN MORTGAGEE MORTGAGE 2012 Form Mar 16, 2012
BOARD TRURD NS

CA View Doc

B2N 5E3

POIST 98076855
NOVA SCOTIA SEEICE BOX View
FARM LOAN MORTGAGEE MORTGAGE 2011 Form Apr 03, 2011
BOARD TRURC NS

CA B view Doc

B2M 5E3

Parcel Besciiption

ALL those certaln lot, piece or parce! of Iand sltuate, lying and being at Riverdale, In the county of
Digby and lying on the Northerly side of the Riverdale Road and being more particularly bounded and
described as follows:

BEGINNING at the point where the east line of lands of Lewis Larry $abine and Lorraine Ida Sabine
intersects the north road limit of the Riverdale Road, aforesaid;

THENCEF travelling in a nartherly direction a distance of one thousand one hundred {1100) feet, more

_ https:!;’limw.gov.ns.ca;’pmpeﬂy~online/sccurefproperty/]and-'titlefview.do?pid=30344576 24/02/2017
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or less, along the east line of lands of Lewis Larry Sabine and Lorraine Ida Sabine to the south
boundary of the lands of Jason Mullen Mink Ranch Limited;

THENCE turning and running in a generally easterly direction a distance of six hundred eighty {680)
feet along the southern limit of the tands of Jason Multen Mink Ranch Limited to the western boundary
of a private roadway travelling generally on a north-south axis from Riverdale Road to and beyond the
southern limits of the lands of Jason Mullen Mink Ranch Limited , aforesaid;

THENCE following the various courses of the private roadway in a generally southerly direction a
distance of one thousand one hundred fifty (1,150) feet to the north road [Imit of Riverdale Road;

THENCE turning and running in a generally westerly direction along the North limits of Riverdale Road
to the east line of lands of Lewis Larry Sabine and Lorraine Ida Sabine at the POINT OF BEGINNING.

CONTAINING nineteen {19} acres, mora or less,

BEING AND INTENDED TO BE a portion of lands conveyed to Jason Mujlen Mink Ranch Limited by
Yernon S. and Irma Goudey by Deed dated August 30, 2001 and recorded at the Reglstry of Deeds
Office at Weymouth, Nova Scotla on August 31, 2001 in Book 595 at Page 230 as Document No. 1766,

RESERVING, HOWEVER, unta the Grantor a right of way, for ail purpeses, over an existing roadway
leading from the Riverdale Road to lands reserved to Jason Mullen Mink Ranch Limited, which roadway

passes over the mast Easterly partion of the {ands herein conveyed,

k% Mupicipal Government Act, Part IX Compliance ***

Compllance:

The parcel is created by a subdivision {details below) that has been filed under the Registry Act ar
registered under the Land Registration Act

Registration District: DIGBY COUNTY
Registration Year: 2015
Plan or Decumeant Number: 107653074

Non-Enabling Documents

Registration Registration
Inst Type Inst No Year Type RBookiPage Bystem Date
107653074 .
Document [ view Doc 2015 SUnmtvIeION LAND REGISTRATION Aug 24, 2015
103740636 o ODRESS
pocument [ view Doc 2013 1 mhea AODRESS RE LAND REGISTRATION Sep 0, 2013
Non-Enabling Plans
nst Type InstNo  Year Type Plan Name  Drawer Number Registration Date

Mo Non Enabling Plans Found

AFR Bundles
thst Type Inst Mo Year Type Filing Reference fnstrument Date

hitps:/linns. gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/ land-title/view.do?pid=30344576 24/02/2017
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No AFR Bundles Found

Parcel Relationships

Related PID Type of Relationship
30217723 PARENT PARCEL NUMBER
30217723 CONSOLIDATED - NOT RELATED TO

[ Back to Resuis |1 Details View | {_Parcel Archive View |} Map View |

This parcel IS REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE Land Registration Act. The registered owner of the
registered interest owns the interest defined [n this register in respect of the parcel dascribed in the
register, subject to any discrepancy in the location, boundaries or extent of the parcel and subject to
the overriding interests [Land Registration Act subsection 20(1)1.

No representations whatsoever are made as to the validity or effect of recorded documents listed in
this parcel register. The description of the parcel is not conclusive as to the location, boundaries or
extent of the parcel [Land Registration Act subsection 21{1}].

M Boundary/Area Problend | General Problem __|§ _Municipal Tax Query }

Property Ounline version 2.0
This page and all contents are copyright ©@ 1999-2003,Government of MNova Scotia, all rights reserved,
If you have comments regarding our slte please direct them to:propertyonline@goyv.ns.ca
Please foel free to Submit Problems you find with the Property Online web site.
Compression: Off

hitps://linus.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/land-title/view.do?pid=303445 76 24/02/2017




Exhibit B: Middle Cross Road, Roxville, Nova Scotia







Front view of office/shop building

Rear view of office/shop building




View of entrances for mink bams

View along side wall of mink bam
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Interior view of fypical mink bam
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Interior view of shop area




Property Online - Property - Land Registration View Page 1 of 4

L.and Registration View

* Tndicates interests inherited on subdivision or re-configuration of parcel

STANDARD
PID 30145965 Parcel Type PARCEL Status ACTIVE
. Parcel Klanag.

Area 75.17 ACRE(S) ACCESS PUBLIC Unit MUOG02

Nov 19, 2008
Lot Created 03:38:47PM
PDCA APPROVED Municsipal MUNICIPALITY Manner NOT APPLICABLE
Status Unit OF THE of

DISTRICT OF Tenure

DIGBY

Dec 28, 2008
LR Status LAND REGISTRATION LR Date 01:44:54PM

Location County Primary Location Source

569 MIDDLE CROSS ROAD DIGBY COUNTY  Yes Assigned by Municipality
ROXVILLE

Comments

MAP: 0544575065800
MAP:0544575065850
MAP:1044550065800

Assessment Account  Value Tax Bistrict Tax Ward Tax Sub
$12,600 (2017 RESOURCE FOREST)
04214056 $540,100 (2017 RESOURCE TAXABLE) 020 600

[ Back to Results || Dotails View || _Parcel Archive View |j Map View i

Registered Interests

Interest Interest o ; NS

Holder Holder WalNG  yyps yearDoc#  BooklPage/Plan Reglatration Non- _

{Qualifier) Type Res? :

94251072 :

POST QFFICE B view

JONATHAN BOX 40

MULLEN MINK T SIMPLE vyoury  DFED 2009 Form Sep 11, 2009 No

RANCH LIMITED NS CA View
BOW 3T0 Doc

Farm Loan Board - Occupants & Mailing Addresses
MName Interest Hoelder Type Mailing Address

No Records Found

https://linns.gov.ns. ca/property-online/secure/property/land-title/view.do?pid=30 145965 24/02/2017
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Benefits fo the Registered Interests
Renefit Details Interest Holder Type Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan Registration Date

No Records Found

Burdens on the Registered Interests
Interest interest

Mailin Registration
Holder Holder g Type Year Doc # BookiPage/Plan g
e Address Date
{Qualifier) Type
EASEMENT / 1505 97203419
BELL ALIANT RIGHT OF | BARRINGTON
REGIONAL WAY STREET EASEMENT/RIGHT 50,0 [ view Nov 15, 2010
COMMUNICATIONS |joooe HALIFAX NS OF WAY Boc
ING,
(BURDEN} B33 aw3
EASEMENT / POST QFFICE 096318176
N RIGHT OF  BOX 910 _
‘;g“,;‘;;‘ﬁ‘j’gm WAY HALTFAX N5 g.t;sm\!?m/ RIGHT 5540 W View Jul 09, 2010
. HOLDER  CA Dac

(BURDEN} B3I 2WS

Textual Qualifications on Title

Gualifications Text

By a transfer effective as of July 1, 2015, Bell Aliant Reglonal Communications Inc. transferred ali of it assets, including its
rights to all easements, llcenses and other real property Interests, to Bell Canada. An asslgnment of these real property
Intarests has been recorded ln the consolidated Index (the grantor-grantee index) for each: county in Nava Scotla, The
current Interest holder (s the Bell Telephone Company of Canada or Belf Canada, The malling address for service can be
found on the Nova Scotla Reglstry of Joint Stoeck Companles.

Tenants in Common not registered pursuant to the Land Registration Act

[nterest - .
Holder -Irpte;est Holder g‘!gg::;gs Type Yeargoc Book/Page/Plan ggtgéstration
(Qualifier) ¥
No Records Found
Recorded Interests
[nterest - ; .
interest Wailing . Registration

Helde:_r_ Holder Type Address Fype Yeuar Doc # Book/Paga/Plan Date
{Qualifier)

{133 5T 96917175

GEORGE BLVD View
FARM CREDIT . SUITE 200 Form
CANADA MORTGAGEE MONCTON NB MORTGAGE 2010 View Ock 01, 2010

CA

E1E 4E1 Doc

Farcel Description
ALL that certaln iot, plece or parcel of land situate, lying and being at Marshalltown at the head of Salnt
Marys Bay and being more particularly bou nded and described as follows:

Southwesterly by the Northeastern side of Morehouse Island, so-called;

Northwestwardly by lands owned by John Hendersons heirs;

hitps://linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/propetty/ land-title/view.do?pid=30145965 24/02/2017
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Northwestwardly by lands formerly owned by John Small; and

Southeastwardly by lands formerly owned by James Mansfield.

Containing by estimation 50 acres more or |ess.

Being the same lands and premises are were conveyed to Benjamin Seeley by Indenture dated Aprit

21st, 1932 and by Indenture dated October 28th, 1920 and recorded at the Registry of Deeds offlce in
Weymouth on April 20, 1932, Said property being conveyed by €. F. Dunn,

Save and Except that portion of the lot on north of the Middie Cross Road.
Further Saving and Excepting the Middle Cross Road.

SUBJECT TO an Easement/Right of Way in favour of Nova Scotia Power Inc, as conveyed In a document
registered at the Digby County Land Registratian Office on July 9, 2010 as Document No. 96318176,

The parcel was created by a subdivision that predates subdivision control or planning fegisiation or by~
[aws in the municipality and therefore no subdivision approval was required for creation of thiz parcel.

Non-Enabling Documents

Registration Registration
inst Type Inst No Year Type Book/Page System Date
103740545
Document [ yiew Doc 2013 Ghanar OF ADDRESS RE LR LAND REGISTRATION Sep 09, 2013
Non-Enabling Plans
inst Type InstNo Year Type PlanName  Drawer Number Registration Date

No Non Enabling Plans Found
AFR Bundles
Inst Type inst No Year Type Filing Reference Instrument Date
No AFR Bundies Found
Parcel Relationships
Related PID Type of Relationship

Mo Related PIDs Found

| “Back to Resutts | [ Details View |1 Parcet Archive View |} Map View |

This parcel IS REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE Land Registration Act. The registered owner of the
registered Interest owns the interest defined in this register In respect of the parcel described in the
register, subject to any discrepancy in the location, boundaries or extent of the parce! and subject to
the overrlding interests [Land Registration Act subsection 20(1]].

hitps://linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/ land-title/view.do?pid=30145965 24/02/2017
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Ne representations whatsoever are made as to the valldity or effect of recorded documents listed in
this parcel register. The description of the parcel is not conclusive as to the location, boundaries or

extent of the parcel [Land Registration Act subsectlon 21(1}].

I Boundary/Area Problen] | General Problem || Municipal Tax Query |

Property Online version 2.0
This page and all contents are copyright @ 1999-2003,Government of Nova Scotia, all rights reserved.
If you have comments regarding ot slite please direct them to:propertyonline®goyv.ns.ca

Plegse feel free to Submit Probiems you find with the Property Online web site,
Compression! Off

https:/linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/ secure/property/land-title/view.do?pid=30145965 240212017
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“Search’ Frovincial Map ™

L.and Registration View
* Indicates Interasts inherlted on subdlvision or re-configuration of parcel

STANDARD
PID 30145973 Parcel Type oroep Status ACTIVE
Parcel Manag.
Area 75.08 ACRE(S) Access PUBLIC Unie  MU0602
. Mar 18, 2008

Lot Created 10:05- 18AM
POCA APPROVED Municipal ~ MUNICIPALITY Manner NOT APPLICABLE
Status Unit OF THE of

DISTRICT OF Tenure

DIGBY

Dec 31, 2008
LR Status LAND REGISTRATION LR Date 01:07:41PM
Location County Primary Location  Source
MIDDLE CROSS ROAD DIGBY COUNTY  Yes Not Assigned by Municipality
ROXVILLE
Comiments
0544575065800
0544575065850
1044550065800
Assessment Account  Value Tax District Tax Ward Tax Sub
04214129 444,000 (2017 RESOURCE FARM) 020 000

45,900 {2017 RESOURCE FOREST)

[ BacktoResulta ||  Details View | Parcel Archive View I} meapview |

Registered interests
Interest Interest

Registration NS

ailin
Holder Holder ﬁ d dregs Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan Date Nor-
{Qualifier) Type Res?
94251072

FOST OFFICE View
JONATHAN BOX 40
MOLLEN MINK  TEE SIMPLE yevyopry  DEED 2009 Form Sep 11,2009  No
RANCH LIMITED NS CA View

BOW 3T0 Doc

Farm Loan Board - Occupants & Mailing Addresses
Name Interest Holder Type Mailing Address

No Records Found

https:/linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/ secure/property/land-title/view.do?pid=30145973 24/02/2017
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Benefits to the Registered Interests
Benefit Details Inferest Holder Type Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan Registration Date

Mo Records Found i

Burdens on the Registered Interests

Interest  Interest Mailing Redlstration
Holder Holder Address Type Year Doc # BookiPagelPlan Datge
(Qualifier) Type
POST
EASEMENT/  OFFICE 9'6318 176
NOVA SCOTIA RIGHT OF WAY BOX 810 EASEMENT/RIGHT 3 View
POWER INC. HOLDER HALIFAX ~ OF WAY 2010 e Jul 09, 2010
{BURDEN) NS CA
B3I 2W5

Textual Qualifications on Title
Qualifications Text

Tenants in Common not registered pursuant to the Land Registration Act

Interest
Hoider
{Qualifier)

Regisfration
Date

Interest Holder WMailing oC

Type Address BookiPage/Plan

Type Year E
No Records Found

Recorded Interests

Interest Interest Mailing Registration
Holder Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan
o Holde A
(Qualifier) r Type Address Date
96517175
1133 ST. )
GEORGE BLVD A view
FARM CREDIT SUITE 200 Farm
CANADA MORTGAGEE gy rod g MORTGAGE 2010 Oct 01, 2010
CA View
E1E 4F1 Doc

Parcel Description
ALL that certain lot, piece or parcel of land situate, lying and being at Marshalltown, in the County of

Dighy and Province of Nova Scotia and on the west side of the middle Cross Road feading from the
Digby to Yarmeuth highway, to the Digby Neck Road and bounded and described as follows:

Being a certain piece of upland bounded on the South and West by the Marsh;

Bound on the East by the aforesaid Cross Road;

Bound on the North and West by lands of the late Charles Dugas;

Being a piece of land out of the Estate of the [ate Benjamin Abbott,

Containing seventy-five acres more or less.

Being the same lands and premises as were conveyed to Benjamin Seeley by Indenture dated

Inttps://linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/] and-title/view.do?7pid=30145973 24/02/2017
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September 18th, 1939 from Mrs. Daisy Bell Marshall and James Robert Marshall,

Save and Except that partion of the lot an north of the Middle Cross Road.

Further Saving and Excepting the Middle Cross Road,

SUBJECT TO an Easement/Right of Way In favour of Nava Scotla Power Inc. as conveyed In a
gggiré‘lf;;-reglstered at the Digby County Land Registration Office on July 9, 2010 as Document No.

The parcel was created by a subdivision that predates subdivision control or planning legislation or by-
laws in the municlpality and therefore no subdivision approval was required for creation of this parcel,

Non-Enabling Documents

Regisfration Registration
Inst Type Inst No Year Type Book/Page System Date
103740545
pocument T View Doc 2013 Cponaray 0 oreo0 RE LAND REGISTRATION Sep 09, 2013
Non-Enabling Plans
Inst Type InstNo Year Type PlanName  Drawer Num ber Registration Date

No Non Enabling Plans Found
AFR Bundles
inst Type Inst No Year Type Filing Reference Instrument Date

No AFR Bundles Found

Parcel! Relationships
Related PID Type of Relationship

No Refated PIDs Found

I“Back to Results || Details View || Parcet Archive View || Map View |

This parcel IS REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE Land Registration Act. The reglstered owner of the
registered interest owns the Interest defined in this register in respect of the parcel described in the
ragister, subject to any discrepancy in the location, boundaries or extent of the parcel and subject to
the overriding interests [Land Registration Act subsection 20{1)].

No representations whatsoever are made as to the valldity or effect of recorded documents listed In
this parcel register. The description of the parcel is not conclusive as to the location, boundaries or
extent of the parcel [Land Registration Act subsection 21{1)].

[Boundary/Area Probien] I Generat Problem | Municipal Tax Query |

https:!,r’linns,gov.ns.cafp]:operty-online/securcXpropertyfland—tiﬂe/view.clo?pid=30145973 24/02/2017
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Property Online version 2.0
This page and all contents are copyright @ 1999-2003,Government of Nova Scotia, all rights reserved.
If you have comments regarding our site please dlrect ther to:propertyoniine@aov.ns.cg

Please feel free to Submit Problems you find with the Property Online web site.
Compression: Off
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https://linns,gov.ns «ca/property-online/secure/property/land-title/view,do7pid=30145973 2470272017

JErEe—



Property Online - Property - Land Registration View Page 1 of 4

Search Frovincial Map ‘Hulfetin Board Help

Land Registration View

* Indicates Interests inherited on subdivision or re-configuration of parcel

STANDARD .
PiD 30273817 Parcel Type PARCEL Status ACTIVE
Parcel Manag.
A v
rea 65.6 ACRE(S) ACCEss PUBLIC Unit | MU0802
. Jan 25, 1996
Lot Created 12:00:bDAM
PDCA APPROVED Municipal  MUNICIPALITY Manner NCT APPLICABLE
Status Unit OF THE of
DIGBY

Dec 25, 2008
LR Status LAND REGISTRATION LR Date 01:51:08PM

Location County Primary Location  Source

MIDDLE CROSS ROAD DIGBY COUNTY  Yes Not Assigned by Municipality

ROXVILLE

Comments

0544575065800

1044550065800

Assessment Account  Value Tax District Tax Ward Tax Sub
$11,400 (2017 RESOURCE FOREST)

04214021 $7.000 (2017 RESOURCE TAXABLE) 020 coo

"Back to Results || Details view || Parcel Archive View || Map View |

Registered Interests

Interest Interest - . . NS
Holder Holder Eﬁg:;gs Type Year Doc # Book/PagelPlan gztgéstratlon Non-
{Qualifier) Type Res?
94251072

POST OFFICE View
JONATHAN BOX 40
VULLEN MiNk TEE SIMPLE yrvyoury  DEER 2009 Form Sep 11, 2009  Na
RANCH LIMITED NS CA View

BOW 3T0 Doc
Farm Loan Board - Occupants & Mailing Addresses
Name Interest Holder Type Mailing Address

hNo Records Found

hitps://linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/land-title/view.do?pid=30273 817 24/02/2017
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Benefits to the Registered Interests
Benefit Detalls Interest Holder Type Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan Registration Date

Mo Records Found

Burdens on the Registered Interasts

Interest - . .

Interest Holder Mailing Doc Reygistiration
Hnldgr_ Type Address Type Year " Book{Page/Plan Pate
{Qualifier}

No Records Found

Textual Qualifications on Title
Cualifications Text

Tenants in Common not registered pursuant to the Land Registration Act

interest
Holder
(Qualifiery  YP®

Registration

Interest Holder Mailing Type Year Eoc Book/Page/Plan e

Address

No Records Found

Recorded Interests
Interast

. interest Mailing Registration
Holder Type ear Doc # Book/Page/Plan _ ~*
5 D
(Qualifler) Holder Type Address ate
96917175

1133 ST, ;

GEORGE BLYD = View
FARM CREDIF SUITE 200 Form
CANADA MORTGAGEE  povcfonng  MORTGAGE 2010 ‘ Oct 01, 2010

CA View

EiE 4F1 Doc

Parcel Jescription

ALL that certain lot, piece or parcel of land situate, lying and being at Marshalitown In the County of
Dighy, Province of Nova Scotia, and bounded and described as follows;

Easterty by fand of Flora Anderson;

Northerly by land now being conveyed to Benjamin Harris Seeley heing referred to as Lat No. 3
herein; also beling known as the C. F. Dunn Let,

Southerly by land of Fred Ryan; and
Westerly by the Morehouse Island, so called,

Reserving therecut the cross-road connecting the Digby Nect Highway and the main Halifax-Yarmouth
highway and contalning forty {40) acres more or less.

Being the same lands and premlises as were conveyed to Benjamin Seeley hy Indenture dated August
21st, 1861 from Lillian Joseph,

https://linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/ Jand-title/view.do?pid=30273817 24/02/2017
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Save and Except that portion of the lot on north of the Middie Cross Road.
Further Saving and Excepting the Middle Cross Road,

The parcel was created by a subdivision that predates subdivision control or planning legislation or by-
laws in the municipality and therefore no subdivision approval was required for creation of this parcel.

Non-Enabling Documents

Registration Rogistration
inst Type st No Year Type Book/Page Systerm Date
103740545
Document A view Doc 2013 chisnares (oUREDS RE LAND REGISTRATION Sep 09, 2013
Non-Enabling Pians
lnst Type InstNo Year Type PianName  Drawer Number Registration Date

No Non Enabling Plans Found

AFR Bundles
Inst Type Inst No Year Type Filing Reference {nstrument Date

o AFR Bundies Found
Parcel Relationships
Related PID Type of Relationship

No Related PIDs Found

[“Back to Results || Details View || Parcs! Archive View ||  Map View |

This parcel IS REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE Land Registration Act. The registered owner of the
registered interest owns the interest defined in this register In respect of the parcel described in the
register, subject to any discrepancy In the locatlon, boundaries or extent of the parcel and subject to
the overriding interests [Land Registration Act subsection 20(1)],

No representations whatsoever are made as to the validity or effect of recorded documents listed in
this parcel register. The description of the parcet is not conclusive as to the Iocation, boundaries or

extent of the parcel [{and Registration Act subsection 21(1}].

{ Boundary/Area Problemd | General Problem I municipal Tax Query |
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Bullatin Board

Land Registration View
* Indicates interests inherited on subdivision ar re-configuration of parcel

. STANDARD
PiD 30146070 Parcel Type PARCEL Status ACTIVE
Parcel Manag.
Area 11.43 ACRE(S} Access PUBLIC Unit | MU0602
; Sep 10, 2013
Lot Created 00:35:23AM
FRCA APPROVED Municipal MUNICIPALITY Manner NOT APPLICABLE
Siatus Linit OF THE of
DISTRICT OF Tenure
DIGBY
Dec 29, 2008

LR Stat :
LR Status  LAND REGISTRATION LR Date 01:42:23PM

Location County Primary Location  3ource

283 MIDDLE CROSS ROAD DIGBY COUNTY  Yes Asslgned by Municipality
MARSHALLTOWN

Comments

MAP: 0544575065800
MAP: 1044550065800

Asseaessment Account  Value Tax District Tax Ward Tax Sub
$500 (2017 RESOURCE FOREST)
04214072 $7,000 (2017 RESQURCE TAXABLE) 020 000

| BacktoResults {]| Details View |1 Parcel Archive View |} Wap View |

Registered Interests

nterest tnterest - ; ] NS
Hoider Holder Mailing Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Pian sgg{;stratmn Mon-

(Qualifier)  Type  ‘ddress Res?
94251072
POST OFFICE View
JONATHAN ) BOX 40 .
MULLEN MINK ~ TEE SIMPLE ypvpoyry DEED 2009 Form Sep 11,2009  No
RANCH LIMITED NS CA View
ROW 5T0 Boc

Farm Loan Board - Occupants & Mailing Addresses
Name ntergst Holder Type Mailing Address

No Records Found

hitps://linns,gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/land-title/view.do7pid=3 0146070 241022017
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Benefits to the Registered Interests
Benefit Details  Inferest Holder Type Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan Registratton Date

Mo Records Found

Burdens on the Registered Interests

Interest - . .
nterest Holder Mailing . Registration
Holder Tvne Addreés Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan Da?e
(Qualifier) 7P
314
VARIQUS EASEMENT / RIGHT OF  UNKNOWN NS .- View
PIPS WAY HOLDER (BURDEN) CA DEER 1966 Do Book 220 Page 211 Apr £2, 1966

Textual Qualifications on Title
Qualifications Text

Tenants in Common not registered pursuant to the Land Registrafion Act

Interest - . .
interest Holder  Mailing Doc Registration

Holder Type Year BookiPage/Flan

(Qualifier) Type Address # Date

No Records Found

Recorded Interests

intorest
Holder
{Gualifier)

nterest Holder  Maiting Doc Registration
Type Address Type Year # Book/Page/Plan Date

Mo Records Found

Parcel Description
ALL that certain lot, plece or parcel of land situate, lying and being at Marshalltown, being on the

Western side of the crossroad leading from Marshalltown to Highway 217 and bring more particularly :
baunded and described as foilows:

On the North and West by land now or formerly of Stephen Marshali;
On the South by fand now or formerly of Thomas Abbott; and

On the East by the crossroad referred to above.

Reserving thereout, however, a right-of-way crossing the sald land belng used by marsh owners.

Being the first lot in an Indenture dated July 17th, 1936 from Mary Holmes to Benjamin Seeley and
being referred to as Lot No. 1.

Subject to a Right of Way in favor of varlous marsh land owners more particularly described in a Deed
from the heirs of Annie and Whitfield Holmes to Benjamin Secley dated the 12th day of September,

1935 and recorded in the Reglstry of Deeds for Digby County on April 12, 1966 in book 220 at Page :
211 as Document number 314.

hitps:// linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/ fand-title/view,do?pid=30146070 24/02/2017
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The parce! was created by a subdivision that predates subdiviston control or planning legistatlon or by~
Jaws in the municipality and therefore no subdivision approval was required for creation of this pa rcel,

Non-Enahbiing Documents

” Registration Registration
i
nist Type Inst No Year Type Book/Page System Date
103740545
Document [ view Doc 2013 inoE OF ADDRESS RE LAND REGISTRATION Sep 09, 2013
Non-Enabling Plans
Inst Type InstNo  Year Type PlanName  Drawer Number Registration Date

No Non Enabling Plans Found
AFR Bundles
inat Type Inst Ko Year Type Filing Reference Instrument Date
No AFR Bundles Found
Parce! Relationships
Retated PID Type of Retationship

No Related PIDs Found

| BacktoResults |§ Details View | Parcel Archive View 1§ Mapview |

This parcel IS REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE Land Reglstration Act. The registered owner of the

registered interest owns the interest defined in this register in respect of the parcel described in the
register, subject to any discrepancy in the lacation, houndaries or extent of the parcel and subject to

the overriding interests [fand Registration Act subsection 20{1}].

No representations whatsoever are made as to the validity or effect of recorded documents listed in
this parcel reglster. The description of the parcel is not conclusive as to the locatlon, boundaries or
extent of the parcel [Land Registration Act subsection 21(1)1.

EBoundary!Area F’mbienjﬂ General Problem JE Municipal Tax Guery I
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Please feel free to Submit Problems you find with the Property Online web site,
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Search” T provingial Map “"Bulistin Board Help

L.and Registration View

* Indicates interests inherited on subdivision or re~configuration of parcel

STANDARD

PID 30146500 Parcel Type . necy Status ACTIVE
Parcel Manag.

Area 2.88 ACRE(S) Access PUBLIC Unit MUOGG2

Sep 10, 2013
Lot Created 15 35 40aM
PDOCA APPROVED Municipal  MUNICIPALITY Manner NOT APPLICABLE
Status Unit OF THE of

DISTRICT OF Tenure

DIGBY

Dec 29, 2008
1 R Status LAND REGISTRATION LR Date 01153:33PM
Location County Primary Location  Source
SQUTH MARSH ROAD DIGRY COUNTY Yes Mot Assigned by Municipaltty
BRIGHTOMN
Comiments
LOC:NORTH OF
MAP:0544575065800
MAP: 1044550065800
Assessment Account Value Tax District Tax Ward Tax Sub
04214102 $200 (2017 RESOURCE FARM) 020 Q0o

I Backto Results |{  Details View  |§ Parcel Archive View {I  Map View |

Registered Interests
interest Interest

Holder Holdar gﬂggmgs Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan gzgstratmn Non-
{Quialifier) Type e Res?
94251072
POST OFFICE View
JONATHAN BOX 40
MULLEN MINK  FEE SIMPLE weymoyry PFED 2009 Farm Sep 11,2009  No
RANCH LIMITED NS CA View
BOW 370 Doc
Farm Loan Board - Occupants & Mailing Addresses
Mame Interest Holder Type Mailing Address

e,

No Records Found

hitps://linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/land-title/view.do?pid=30146.500 24/02/2017
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Benefits to the Registered Interests
Benefit Details Interest Holder Type Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan Registration Date

No Records Found

Burdens on the Registered Interests

Infergst . 5 .
Intergst Molder Mailing Doc Regisiration

Holder Type Year Book/Page/Plan

(Qualifier) Type Address # Date

No Records Found

Textual Qualifications on Title
Quaslifications Texf

Tenants in Common not registered pursuant to the Land Registration Act

Interast : - ]
interest Holder WMailing .. Doc Registration
?C;izﬁ;ier) Type Addroes Type Year 4 Book/Pagel/Plan Date

No Records Found

Racorded Inferests

Interest . _
Holder {;':Jggest Holder Eﬁ:}ggs Type Year goc Book/Page/Plan gtftg:iratrﬁn
(Qualifier) a3

Ne Records Found

Pargel Dascription

ALL that certain lot, piece or parcel of marshland situate, lying and belng at the Head of St. Marys Bay
in the County of Digby and known as the duck pord and bounded as follows:

On the East by land now or formerly of Capt. John Ryan;

Qn the South by lands now or formerly of Harry Marshall;

On the West by a stake and on the North by lands now or formerly of Berton Mansfield.
Contains by estimation five acres more or less,

Being the same lands and premises as were conveyed to Benjamin Seeley by Indenture dated
September 29th, 1315 from Hanford Johns,

The parce! was created by a subdivision that predates subdivision control or planning legislation or by-
laws in the municipaltty and therefore no subdivision approval was required for creation of this parcel,

Non-Enabling Documents
st Type Inst No Year Type Book/Fage

hitps://linns.gov.ns.cafpropesty-online/secure/property/land-title/view.do?pid=301 46500 24/02/2017
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Registration Registration
System Date
103740545
Document [ view Doc 2013 ChaneE OF ADDRESS RE LAND REGISTRATION Sep 09, 2013
Non-Enabling Plans
inst Type InstNo Year Type PlanName  Drawer Number Registration Date

No Non Enabting Plans Found

AFR Bundles
Inst Fype inst No Year Type Filing Reference Instrument Date

No AFR Bundies Found

Parcel Relationships
Related PID Type of Relationship

No Related PIDs Found

| Back to Results |§  Details View || Parcel Archive View |§  Wap View |

This parcel IS REGISTERED PURSUANT TG THE Land Registration Act. The registered owner of the
registered interest owns the interest defined in this register in respect of the pa reel described in the
reglster, subject to any discrepancy In the locatlon, boundaries or extent of the parcel and subject to
the overriding Interests [Land Registration Act subsection 20(1)]-

No representations whatsoever are made as to the validity or effect of recorded documents listed in
this parcel reglster, The description of the parcel is not conclusive as ta the location, boundaries or
extent of the parcel [Land Registration Act subsection 21{1}].

fBoundary!Area ProblemIE General Problem [ Municipal Tax Query |
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Land Registration View

* Indicates Interests inherited on subdivision or re-configuration of parcel

STANDARD

FiD 30358329 Parcel Type PARCEL Status ACTIVE
Parcel Manag.

Area 2.77 ACRE(S) Access PUBLIC Unit | MU0602

Nov 19, 2008
Lot Created 03:31:38PM
POCA APPROVED Municipal MUNICIPALITY Manner NOT APPLICABLE
Status Uit OF THE of

DISTRICT OF Ten Ure

DIGBY

Dec 29, 2008
LR Status LAND REGISTRATION LR Date 01:55:12PM

Location County Primary Location  Source

MIDDLE CROSS ROAD DIGRY COUNTY  Yes Not Assigned by Municipality
ROXVILLE

Commenis

MAP 0544575065800
MAP:0544575065850
MAP:1044550065800

Assessment Account Value Tax District Tax Ward Tax Sub
101826093 $500 (2017 RESQURCE FOREST) 020 000

I"Back to Results || Details View || Parcel Archive View |}  Map View |

Registered interests

Interest Interest - . .
Holder Holder ﬁ;ﬁ;’;ﬁs Type Year Doc # Book/PagelPlan ggf;tmtmn Nan-
(Qualifior} Type Res?
04251072

POST OFFICE View
JONATHAN BOX 40
MULLEN MINK  TEE STMPLE \uryoyry  PRED 2009 Form Sep 11,2003 No
RANCH LIMITED NS CA View

BOW 370 Doc
Farm Loan Board - Occupants & Mailing Addresses
Mame interest Holder Type WMailing Address

Mo Records Found

hitps://linns.gov.ns.ca/propesty-online/! secure/property/land-title/view.do?pid=30358329 24/02/2017
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Benefits to the Registered Interests
Bonefit Details Interest Holder Type Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan Regisiration Date

o Records Found

Burdens on the Registered Interests

Interest . . .
interest Holder Mailing Doc . Registration

Hoidar Type Year Book/Page/Plan

(Qualifier) Type Address # Date

Ne Records Found

Textual Qualifications on Title
Qualifications Text

Tenants in Common not registered pursuant to the Land Registration Act

interest - ; .
Interest Holder Mailing Doc Registration
?(;)::;E;ier) Type Address Type Year p Book/PagelPian Date

No Records Found

Recorded Interests

Interest
Holider
(Qualifier)

Registration
Date

interest Holder NMailing

5 Doc
Type Address rype Year 4 Book/Page/Plan

No Records Found

Parcel Description

ALL that certain lot, piece or parce! of land situate, lyling and being at Marshalltown at the head of
Saint Marys Bay and being more particularly bounded and described as follows:

Southwesterly by the Northeastern side of Morehouse Istand, so-called;
Notthwestwardly by lands owned by John Hendersons helrs;
Northwestwardly by fands formerly owned by John Small; and
Southeastwardly by lands formerly owned by James Mansfield.

Containing by estimation 50 acres more or less.

Being the same lands and premises are were canveyed to Benjamin Seeley by Indenture dated April
21st, 1932 and by Indenture dated October 28th, 1920 and recorded at the Reglstry of Deeds office in
Weymouth on April 20, 1932. Said property being conveyed by C. F, Dunn.

Save and Except that portion of the lot on south of the Middle Cross Road,

Further Saving and Excepting the Middle Cross Road.

hitps://linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/securc/property/ land-title/view.do?pid=30358329 24/02/2017
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The parcel was created by a subdivision that predates subdivision control or planning legislation or by~
laws in the municipality and therefore no subdlvision approval was requlred for creation of this parcel.

Non-Enabling Documents

Registration Registration
nst Inst Y
inst Type Inst No ear Type Book/Page System Date
103740545
Document B view Doc 2013 oascer ADDRESS RE LAND REGISTRATION Sep 09, 2013
Non-Enabling Plans
Inst Type InstNo Year Type PlanName  Drawer Number Ragistration Date

No Non Enabling Plans Found

AFR Bundles
inst Type Inst Mo Year Type Filing Reference Instrument Date

No AFR Bundies Found

Parcel Relationships
Related PID Type of Relationship

No Related PIDs Found

§ Baok to Results |} Details Visw || Parcel Archive View |I MapView |

This parcel IS REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE Land Registration Act. The registered owner of the
registered interest owns the interest defined In this register in respect of the parcel described in the
reglster, subject to any discrepancy in the location, boundaries or extent of the parcel and subject to

the overriding interests [Land Registration Act subsection 20(1)].

No representations whatsoever are made as to the validity or effect of recorded documents listed in
this parcel register. The description of the parcel Is not conclusive as to the location, boundaries or
extent of the parcel [Land Registration Act subsection 21(1}].

| Boundary/Area Probler | General Problem ] Municipal Tax Query |
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Land Registration View

* Indicates interests inherited on subdivision or re-configuration of parcel

STANDARD

PID 36358402 Parcel Type PARCEL Status ACTIVE
Parcel Manag.

Area 0.6 ACRE(S) AcCess PUBLIC Unit MUos02

Nov 28, 2008
Lot Crsated 09:56:47AM
POCA APPROVED Munijcipal  MUNICIPALITY Manner NOT APPLICABLE
SBtatus Unit OF THE of

DISTRICT OF Terure

DIGBY

. Dec 29, 2008
LR Status LAND REGISTRATION ~ LRDate  ,i.cc.51pm

Location County Primary Location  Source

MIDDLE CROSS ROAD DIGRY COUNTY Yes Mot Assigned by Mun(cipality
ROXVILLE

GComments

0544575065800

1044550065800

Assessment Account Yalue Yax District TaxWard Tax Sub
10185416 $100 (2017 RESOURCE FOREST) 026 000

I Backto Results |1  Details View [l Parcel Avchive View | Map View |

Registered Interests

inferest Interest Registration

Holder Holder Esglrggq Type Year Doc # Book/PagelPlan p,. o Non-
(Qualifier) Type v Res?
94251072

POST QFFICE View
JONATHAN BOX 40
MULLEN MINK  TEF SIMPLE yrvyoupy  DEED 2009 Form Sep 11, 2009 No
RANCH LIMITED NS CA View

BOW 3TC Ooc

Farm Loan Board - Occupants & Mailing Addresses
MName Interest Holder Type Mailing Address

No Records Found

Benefits to the Registered Interests

hitps://linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/land-title/view,do?pid=3035 8402 241022017
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Benefit Details Interest Holder Type Type Year Doc # Book/Page/Plan Registration Date

No Records Found

Burdens on the Registered Interests

Interest
Inferest Holder Mailing Dac _ Registration
i_glii?i;ier) Type Address Type Year " Book/Page/Plan Date

No Records Found

Textual Qualifications on Tifle
Qualifications Text

Tenants in Common not registered pursuant to the Land Registration Act

inferest
Holder
{Qualifier)

Registration
Date

Daoc

interest Holder  Mailing Type Year
#

Type hcdress Book/Page/Plan

No Records Found

Recorded Interests

Interest . : . .
Holder ?terest Holdei ﬁgiimg Type Year Doc Book/Page/Plan Seg!stration
(Qualifier)  YP° dress # ate

Mo Records Found

Farce! Descripfion

ALL that certain lot, plecn or parcel of land situate, lying and belng at Marshailtown in the County of
Dighby, Province of Nova Scotla, and bounded and described as follows:

Easteriy by land of Flora Andersan;

Northerly by land now being conveyed to Benfamin Harris Seeley being referred to as Lot No. 3
herein; also being known as the €. F. Dunn Lot,

Southerly by land of Fred Ryan; and
Westerly by the Morehouse Island, so called.

Reserving thereout the cross-road connecting the Digby Nect Highway and the main Halifax-Yarmouth
highway and containing forty (40} acres more or less,

Being the same lands and premises as were conveyed to Benjamin Seeley by Indenture dated August
21st, 1961 from Liilian Joseph.

Save and Except that portion of the lot on south of the Mlddle Cross Road,

The parcel was created by a subdivision that predates subdivision control or planning legislation or by~
laws in the munlcipality and therefore no subdivision approval was required for creatfon of this patcel.

https://linns.gov.ns.ca/property-online/secure/property/land-title/view.do?pid=30358402 24/02/2017
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Neon-Enabling Documents

; Registration Registration
Inst Type st N
yp o} Year Type BookiPage System Date
102740545
Document [ yiew Doc 2013 LHARGE OF ADDRESS RE LAND REGISTRATION Sep 09, 2013

Non-Enabling Plans
Inst Type InstNo Year Type Plan Name  Drawer Number Registration Date

No Non Enabling Plans Found

AFR Bundles

inst Type ingt No Year Type  Filing Reference instrument Date
No AFR Bundles Found

Parcel Relationships

Reiated PID Type of Relationship

Mo Related PIDs Found

| Back to Results If  Details View 1 Parcel Archive View 11 Map View |

This parcel IS REGISTERED PURSUANT YO THE Land Registration Act. The reglstered owner ¢f the
tegistered interest owns the Interest defined in this register in respect of the parcel described in the
register, subject to any discrepancy in the location, boundarfes or extent of the parcel and subject to
the overriding interests [Land Registraticn Act subsection 20{1}].

No representations whatsoever are made as to the validity or effect of recorded documents fisted in
this parcel register. The description of the parcel is not conclusive as to the location, boundaries ar
extent of the parcel [Land Registration Act subsection 21(1}].
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Sééu‘ch Provincial Map

Property Details

FID 30358410 Parcel Type
Parce!

Area 5.0 ACRE(S) ACCOsS

Lot Created

PDCA No Description Municipal

Status Unit

Location County

MIDDLE CROSS ROAD DIGBY COUNTY  Yes

ROXVILLE

Coraments

0544575065800

(3544575065850

1044550065800

Assessiment Account Value
10185483

Primary Location

Page 1 of 2

STANDARD
PARCEL

Status ACTIVE

Manag.
Unit MU0602

Nov 28, 2008
11:34:23AM

MUNICIPALITY Manner NOT APPLICABLE
QF THE of

DISTRICT OF Tenure
DIGBY

Sourse
Mot Assigned by Municipallty

Tax District Tax Ward Tax Sub

$1,700 (2017 RESOURCE FARM) 02¢ geo

| View All Related PiDs History |} Back to Results |}

Map View I

Interest Holder

Owner Name Type Qualifier Province Couniry
JONATHAN MULLEN .
MINK RANCH LiMiten oo STMPLE
Registration Registration
e B age
Inst Type Inst Mo Year Type aok/Pag Systermn Date
93374594
View
EGISTR
Document Form 2009 DEED gEEDS ¥ OF May 19, 2008
View Doc
. REGISTRY OF
Document View Doc 1988 DEED Book 435 Page 370 S-CeT Jan 04, 1988
4982 GRANT OF REGISTRY OF
Document View Doc 1987 ;“RICL}EATREAN Book 429 Page 734 Srops Aug 01, 1987
Document 1974 DEED Baok 281 Page 242 REGISTRY CF Jan 01, 1974
[EEDS
24/02/2017
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939
View Doc
InstType InstNo  Year Type Plan Neme  Drawer Number fogrraion
Mo Plans Found
. . Filing Instrument
Insi Type InstiNo Yaar Type Pian Name Reference Rate
Non- REQUEST FOR PID
R:glstered 226784 2008 ASSIGNMENT MNav 28, 2008
Parcel Relationships
Related PID Type of Relationship

No Related PIDs Found

{  View All Related PiDs History |} Backio Resuits || Map View |

JERIETE

Non-Land Registration parcels ARE NOT REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE Land Registration Act. As
such, ownership and all information [n this report s believed to be an accurate reflection of
registered documents affecting the parcel of land to which it relates, however, it is nat intended to
be relied upon by the reader as advice on the current state of any title to land. A search of the
records at the appropriate Registry of Deeds office may be required to determine the current awner
(s} of the parcef of land under consideration. THESE ARE NOT OFFICIAL. RECORDS,

Land Registration parcels ARE REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE Land Registration Act. The registered
owner of the registered interest owns the interest defined in this register in respact of the parcel
described in the register, subject to any discrepancy in the location, bou ndarles or extent of the
parcel and subject to the overrlding interests [Land Registration Act subsection 20(1)].

No representations whatsoever are made as to the validity or effect of recorded documents listed in
this parcel register, The description of the parcel Is not conclusive as to the location, boundaries or
extent of the parcel [Land Registration Act subsection 21{1}].
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)
THIS QUIT CLAIM DEED made this |5 day of May, 2009,

BETWEEN:
ELIZABETH GERTRUDE McPHEE fotmerly known as ELIZABETH GERTRUDE
SEELEY
(heteinalier catted the “Grantor™)
OF THE ONE PART
-and-

JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED of Digby County, Nova Scotia;

(hereinafter called the “Grantee®™)
QF THE OTHER PART

WITNESSETH THAT FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the sum of One Dollar ($1.00)
puid by the Grantee to the Grantor, the Grantor hereby forever quits claim to the Grantee ALL
that lot of land situste more particularly bonnded and described in the Scheduls “A™ and
hereunder attached,

IN THIS QUIT CLAIM DEED the singular includes the phural and the masculine inchudes the
feminine with the intent that this Quit Claim Deed shail bo read with all appropriate changes of
number and gender,

TN WITNESS WHERFEOF the said Granfor has properly executed These Presents this day and
year first above written,

SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED
-in {he presence of-

ROt | 2 a0 Ty

FLIZ&KBETH GERTRUDE MePHEE ' /'




)
PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA )
COUNTY OF XINGS 3

e
i
I CERTIFY that on fhis Ig day of May, AD., 2009, ELIZABETH GERTRUDE
McPHEE, one of the Pariies mentioned in the foregoing and annexed Indenture, signed and
¢xecuted the said Indenture igy presence and I have signed as 2 witness fo such execution,

A COMMISSIONER OF THE SUPREME COURT

OF NOVA S8COTIA
PROVINCE OF NOVA SCOTIA A Burrlster of the

_ Buprame Gunt of Nove Scolla
AFFIDAVIT QF SPOUSAL STATUS

COUNTY OF KINGS

I, ELIZABETH GERTRUDE McPHEE, make oath and say as follows:

I, TIAT I acknowiedpe that I executed the foregoing instrurnent under seal on the date of
this affidavit,

2. THAT this rclmowledgment is made pursuant to 8.79(1)(a) of the Land Repistration Act,
(Nova Scotia) and the Registry Aot R.SN.S. 1989, ¢.392 for the purpose of registering
this instrument.

3. THAT 1 ain ninetesn vears of age and are residents of Canada under the Income tax Act
(Canada),

4, {A) THAT for the purpose of this my affidavit, “spouse” means either a man or woman
who 3
(1) are married to each other;
(i) are married to each other by marriage that is voidable and has not been
annulled by & declaration of nullity;
(iif) have gone through a form of marriage with each other in good faith, that is
void and are cohabitating or have cohabited within the preceding year,

(B) THAT for the purpese of this my affidavit, “spouse” inchudes an individual who is 2
party to a registered domestic partner declaration madc in accordance with Section 53 of
the Vital Statistics Act but doey not include a former domestic partner.

3. That Wayne McPhee is my spouse, however, this land and property has mever been
occupied as & matrimonial home and further, we do not have:

(i) any former domestic pariner with rights contemplated by section 35 of the
Vilal Statistics Act, or
(if) any former spouse with rights under the Matrimontal Property Act.

6. That the safe of the property in Schedule “A” attached herefo constitutes and exempt
supply pursuant to Part I of Schedule V of the Excise tax Act,

SWORN TO fointly and Severally,
at Kentville, in the County of Kings
and Prgsifig.ce of Nova Scotia, this
(™M ayof Moy , 2009,
before me: !

Y

W.W.(Bill) Watts
A Barrister of the Supreme Court of Nova Scotia

C/L

ELIZABETH GERTRUDE McPHEE

W: Wi
L nﬁi
UPrCrie Court of Npyg Scotfs
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LOT WO, 8 o i . T i ) .
RLL that.cartals lot, piece ‘ox parcel of Iand situate, lying and

bedng &n Marshalltowa, in tha County of Dlghy and FProvinge of
-Wova S¢otiz and on the Yest side of the Miadla Oross Rodd ldading
from the'Dighy to Yarmouth highway, to the Dighy Nesk Road and.
beunded and liE‘B_Cribad as ‘fulrlnwas o L '

BEING a cortain pieca of apland hounded &p the South -
and West by the Marsh: - . S .

ON the Emit by the afocesaid Cross Read) .-

DN the North and West by lands of tha late Charlas

Diigas and baing a plece of land out of thae Bekate of
the late Benjwnin Abbetk, T .

CONTAINING Elve acred, morn or lesa,” - .-

EEING the dxms lande and premises ns‘wé:._-'e.‘conve'y'ed to'’
Benjamin deeley’ by Indenture dated Scptémber 19, 1838, *
from Mra. Daisy Dall Marshall and dames Robert Marshall,

BEING AND INUWENDED T0 EBE the aame alght B} lote as gonveyad by
Daed FLG Mio, AnnLe Geoley, widow, by Deed dated April 1, 7674
to Benjawin Harris Geelsy. zad recordsd on Agril 2, 1974 In'ths
Registry of Deeds Dffioce in Weymeuth, Nova Seotin in Book 381 at
Page 242, . R .

R—




APPENDIX C: EMPLOYEE LISTING




Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited (the “Applicants™)
Employee Listing

The following document summarizes the employees currently employed by the Applicants. Staffing
tevels fluctuate throughout the year and additional part time employees are employed on an as
needed basis. All employees excluding principles are paid on an hourly basis, vacation pay is paid
weekly and no employer paid benefits are available,

Victory Farms Incorporated
Title Rate Full Time/Part Time
Principle $671/week Full Time
Principle $671/week Full Time
Manager — Sheity Leased Ranch $18/hr Full Time
Manager — Maynard Mullen Leased Ranch | $20/hr _Full Time
Manager — Riverdale Road Ranch $18/hr Full Time
Office Administration $20/hr Full Time
Farm Hand $17/hr Full Time
Farm Hand $14/hr Full Time
Farm Hand $14/hr Part Time
Farm Hand $18/hr Part Time
Farm Hand $13/hr Part Time

| Farm Hand } $13/hr Part Time
Farm Hand $15/hr Part Time
Farm Hand $15/hr Part Time
Farm Hand $14/hr Part Time
Farm Hand $14.5/hr Part Time
Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch

| Title Rate Full Time/Part Time
Manager — Middle Cross Road Ranch $20/hr Full Time
Farm Hand $14/hr Part Time
Farm Hand $15/hr Part Time




APPENDIX D: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE APPLICANTS




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED
JANUARY 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disclaimer:

The above statements have not been audited, reviewed or otherwise verified.



Victory Farms Incorperated
Balance Sheef As at 01/31/2017

ABBET

Current Assets

Chequing: 1002708

US Funds Account 4001251
Agrilnvest Acct#100-401-9

Total Cash

340 Co-op - Equity

Cash Surrender Value of Life insura
Accounts Receivable

Accrued receivables

Leasze: Tractors - Advance Payments
Total Receivable

Prepaid Expenszes

Investment Tax Credit Receivable
U.S. Tax Withhelding

Total Current Assets

Inventory Assets
Mink -~ Pelters
Total Inventory Assets

Capital Assets
Mink - Breeders

New Account

Capital Assets

Vehicles

Accum. Amort.- Vehicles

Net - Vehicles

Investment: Jonathan Mullen Mink
Investment: Above & Beyond Inc
Trinity Farms Inc

Organic Management Solutions Ltd
Land

Providence Farms inc

Farm Purchase: Shetty Fur Farm
Maynard Mullen Fur Farm Purchase
Office Furpiture & Equipment
Accum. Amort. -Furn. & Equip.

Net - Furnifure & Equipment
Computers

Accum. amonr - Computers

21,469.01
75.59
580.08

22,124.68

939.20

48,964.19
95,292.01
447,135.57
3,000.00

545,427.58

10,284.90

34,547.65

16,284.41

678,572.61

2,376,528.00
2,376,528.00

530,368.00
530,368.00

134,521.96

-108,030.98

26,491.00
853,047.14
133,631.89
A472,788.44
1,947,127.34
10,366.25
274,939.02
150,000.00
5,000.00
5,014.63

-3,362.76

1,681.87
£.040.94
-4,654.68




FRoadway

Acc Dep - Roadway

Ranch

Accum. amort - Ranch
Cages

Accum. Amort: Cages

New Pens

Other

Accum. Amort; New Pens
Accum. Amort; Other

New Equipment

Accum. Amort, - Equipment
Net - Ranch

Home Improvement
Accum. Amort. - Home
Buildings - cost

Less: Accumn amort - Building Cost
Net - Home

Total Capital Assets

Other Non-Current Assets
Capital Lease: cost
l.ess:accumulated amortization
Total Other Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSET

LIABILITY

Current Liabiiitles

Account Payabie

Accounts Payable & Accried Expenses
NAFA Acct18670: Demand Rev Loan
NAFA: Acct 19668

NAFA Acct19668 Feed Advance
Scotiabank LnE20435676435/vnZ 140701
FCC Loand448943 27085.00

GWL (Premium loan}

FCC Loan #448799:169631.25
AmLegeng Operating Line

ALG: Term Loan #451

ALC: 2015 Term Loan #412

Farm Loan Board: 750,000.00

NSFLB Ln#831802JR

Due toffrom Jason Mullen Mink Ranch
FCCloan - 38000.00 Trinity

14,488.00

-8,927.19
91,049.23
-15,108.47
226,208.22
-110,950.58
1,257,302.64
9,255.77
-826,801.34
-5,849.72
492,084.46
-346,662.02
604,682 .43
95,017.57
-24,153.77
119,948.66
-44,814.82
145,997 64
4,797,521.85
18,200.00
-17,715.66
1,484.34
8,384,474.80
323,716.43
502,941.51
1,250,000.00
4,000,000.00
2,611,058.49
16,424 46
541893
15,524.31
112,372.16
5,383,036.01
500,000.00
1,400,000.00
553,360.07
333,503.14
18,609.27
10,337.51




Platinum: Jonathan Mullen
Platinum Business: 9966
Corporate Taxes payahle
Vacation payable

WCB Payable

HST Paid on Purchases
HST Owing {Refund)
Total Current {fabilities

Long Term liabilities

Pue: Jason Mullen

Due to 2351604 Nova Scotia Limited
Loans from Sharehoclders

Deferred Government Assistance
Deferred Investment Tax Credit
Deferred Income Taxes

Total Long Term lfabilities
TOTAL LIABILITY

EQUITY

Share Capitat

Capital

Total Share Capital

Retained Earnings

Retained Eamings - Previous Year
Current Earnings

Total Retained Earnings

TOTAL EQUITY

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Generated On: 03/03/2017

-52,034.93

18,165.42
669.53

-2,037.00
272.68
0.02

-52,034.93

14,000,237.01

128,286.25

502,121.48

-392,287.76
45,581.17
62,519.20

22,175.83

388,576.17

14,388,813.18

100.00
100.00

-4,468,584.53

-1,505,853.85
-6,004,438.38

-6,004,338.38

8,384 .474.80




Victory Farms Incorporated

Income Statement 10/04/2016 to 01/31/2017

REVENUE

Mher Revenue

Trintiy Farms: Feed Cart (reimburse

Board & Care
Interest Revenue
AgriStability Program

Total Other Revenue

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSE

Cost of Goods Sold
Peiting

Feed: Shetty Site:
Feed: Reg Mullen
Feed: Trintiy Project
Feed: Billy O'Blenis
Feed: Victory/Maynard
Feed: Marshallfown
Feed: Bloomfield
Feed: Gosson site
Feed: Jeff Gosson
Trinity: Fatkland Ridge
Feed Total
Vaccine/Testing
Ranch Expense
Satelite Ranch: Bloomfield
Shetty Ranch

Contract Agreements
Bedding: Shavings/Hay/Straw
Gas & Qil

Propane

Adjustment Write-off
Freight Expense

Total Cost of Sales

Payrofl Expenses
Wages & Salaries
El Expense

CPF Expense
WCE Expense

1,235.22
35,853.33
36.05
263.01
37.487.61

37 ,487.61

23,969.26
11,935.71
10,445.22
30,999.36
71,734.41
315,196.20
77,934.64
20,327.16
69,126.90
37,9019

92,240.23

137.841.64
2,056.45
1,932.38

20,120.39
3,200.00
258,645.79
-22.50
9,031.55
300.00
-145.20
150.45
1,066,980.20

191,801.29
3,242.85
6,279.32
4,708.63




Total Payroil Expense

General & Administrative Expenses
New Holland Lease Expense: tractor
Aceounting & Legal
Fees/Reglstratlons

Credit Card Charges

Insurance

Interest & Bank Charges

Cffice Supplies

Property Maintenance

Tools {under $500.)

Machinery Repair & Maintenance
Vehicle RepairfMaintenance

Building Repair & Maintenance
Telephone

Utilities

Total General & Admin. Expenses

TOTAL EXPENSE

NET INCOME

Generated On: 03/03/2017

206,033.09

3,087.08
190,231.49
702.55
1,485.52
49,189.77
13,750.36
794.29
487.65
654.00
3,800.28
3,088.94
4,611.70
1,517.88
6,026.66

280,328.17
1,543,341.46

-1,505,853.85
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WOTICE TO READER

Cn the bagis of information provided by management, we have compiled the balance sheet of
VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED as at September 30, 2016 and the statements of loss and
(deficit) retained earmings and cash flows for the year then ended.

We have not performed an audit or a review engagement in respect of these financial
statements and, accordingly, we express no assurance thereon.

3\

Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be appnoﬁ}iaﬁe for their purposes.

e,
'y - ry - s

New Minas, N.S. P
January 20, 2017 CONROY INVESTMENTS LIMITED



VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

BALANCE SHEET
{(Imaudited - See Notice To Reader)

AS AT SEPTEMEER 30, 2016

2016 2015
ABBETS

CURRENT
Cash 5 159,313 818
Accounts recejvable 138,032 221,431
Accrued AgriStability payment (Note 10} 447,136 1,957,625
Inventory of mink (Note 1(a)) 2,376,528 1,811,553
Prepaid expenses 23,425 26,041
Income taxes recoverable 2,837 3,016
3,146,471 4,120,484
DUE FROM SHAREHOLDER 382,443 205,414
DEPOSITS RECEIVABLE 155,000 105,800
REFUNDARLE INVESTMENT TAX CREDIT 34,548 32,805
INCOWE TAXES RECOVERABLE 16,284 16,284
EQUITY 1IN 340 RANCHERS CO-QOPERATIVE 93¢ 539
INVESTMENT IN AMERICAN LEGEND CO-OPERATIVE - 30,715
DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES (Note 8) 3,864,727 3,688,419
MINK BREEDING STOCK (Note 1{a}) 530,368 890,898
CASH SURRENDER VBLUE OF LIFE INSURANCE 48,964 31,630
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT {Note 3} 962,477 1,035,317
5 9,142,215 S 10,161,905

LIABILITIES

CURRENT
Bank indebtedness (Note 4) 8§ 11,166,664 10,370,049
Accounta payvable and accrued liabilities 629,623 1,219,777
Current portion nf long term debt 125,902 116,559
11,922,189 11,706,385
LONG TERM DEBT {(Note 5) 221,038 1,014,089
PUE TO RELATED PARTIES (Note 8) 666,996 666,936
FUTURE INCOME TAXES LIABILITY (Note 23 22,176 17,050
DEFERRED GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE 45,681 50,757
DEFERRED INVESTMENT TaAX CREDIT §2,. 619 66,75
13,640,699 13,532,082

SHAREHOLDER'S BEQUITY

CAPITAL STOCK (Note 6) 160 100
DEFICIT (4,498 584) (3,360,247)
{4,498 4854} (3.360.147)

8 9,142,215 %_ 10,161,905
APPROVED ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

Director
SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF LOSS AND (DEFICIT) RETAINED EARNINGS
{Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016
3016 2015
REVENUE
Contract revenue 5 68,407 493,738
Mink and pelts sold 3,012,729 4,670,596
Other income (Note 7) 1,204,698 1,169,187
4, 285,234 6,333,521
SELLING, GENERAIL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Accounting and legal 154,319 18,132
Amortization 109,443 124,861
Bad debtis - 152,000
Bank charges and short term interest 623,878 680,630
Contracted mink care 3,825 33,297
Custom pelting 457,656 513,275
Donationsg 400 400
Feed costs 1,795,408 2,558,556
Gas, o0il and greasze 107,203 119,1%6
Insurance (including life insurance) 51,318 90, 657
Interest on long term debt 51,817 el,562
Lease exponse 11,96l 11,961
Lights 46,540 52,857
Membership dues, fees and commissions 179,728 301,814
Mink purchased in¢luding freight 63,910 105,451
Miscellaneous 2,620 2,613
Office supplies 2,218 2,535
Froperty taxes 7,490 7,450
Ranch gsupplies and vaccines 222,360 351,072
Rental - cages & ranch 25,000 60,000
Repairs and maintenance 29,124 101,402
Telephone 4,650 5,781
Travel, entertainment and meals 4,000 3,940
Wages and benefits 1,h34,859 1,585,301
5,525,828 6,944,743
LOSS BEFORE INVENTORY ADJUSTMENT (1,240;594} {611,223)
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN INVENTORY FOR SALE 464,975 (2,541,273)
(DECREASE) IN BREEDING HERD DEVELOPMENT COSTS {360,531) {B2,847)
LOSE BEFORE INCOME TAXES {(1,136,150) {3,235,342)
INCOME TAAES (RECOVERED)} (Note 9) 2,187 {50,354)
NET LOSS {1,138,337) {3,184,988)
{DEFICI?) RETAINFED BARNINGS, beginning of year {3,360,247) 49,741
DIVIDENDS PARID - 225,000

{DEFICIT), end of year

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES

$__{4,498,584) $  (3,360,247)




VICTORY ¥FARMS INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)
YEAR EWDED SEPTEMEBER 30, 201a
2016 2015
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN} OPERATING ACTIVITIEH:
Net loss {1,138,337) & {3,184,988)
Adjustments for:
Mmortization 109,443 124, 861
{Gain) loss on sale of property & eguipment {9,006} 460
Future income taxes 5,125 1,884
{1,032,775) {3,058,081)
Net changes in working capital bkalances
Accounts and depdsits receivable 33,399 549,234
Accrued AgriStability payment 1,510,489 {1,957,625)
Inventory {464, 975) 2,541,273
FPrepald expensges 2,616 2,662
Income taxes 978 {42,183}
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (590,154) 341,931
(540,421) (1,622,789)
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Investment tax credit earned 5,082
Applied investment tax credit (1,742} -
Advances {to) from related partles {176,308 481,024
{Increase) Decrease in loan te shareholder (173,028} 40,273
FCC operating loan repayments - {3,531,131)
american Legend (repayments) advances {3,087,014) 4,920,680
NAFA advances 3,883,629 -
Net repavment of long term debt {83,708} {131,198)
Dividends paid - (225,000}
366,921 1,554,588
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property and egquipment {50,923} {21, 734)
Proceeds from sale of invegtments 39,721 .
Increase in cash surrender value of Life Ins {17,334) (26,772)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment - 22,152
Decrease 1in breeding stock 360,531 2,847
331,995 56,483
INCREASE (DECREASE) 1IN CASH 158,485 {11,708}
CASH, beginning of year glg 12,526
CASH, end of year g 153,313 § 818

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES



VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINARCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited -~ See Notice To Reader)

SEFTEMBER 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The company, incorporated September 27, 2004 under the laws of Nova Scotia,
operates a mink ranch near Weymouth, N.S. Currently the company raises its
own mink and on occasion, contracts to carry out a grow out operation for
other ranchers.

{a) Inventory and Breeding Stock

The mink inventory can consist of live mink available for sale as breeding
stock as well as mink designated for pelting and eventual sale at the pelt
auctions the followlng spring. In addition the company retains a breeding
herd consisting of male and female breederg that will be bred in the spring
following year end. All mink, whether breeding stock or inventory for gale
ag pelts or live animels are carried at the lower of estimated cost and net
realizable wvalue. For 2016, the mink breeding stock consisted of 16,574
femsle breeders with an estimated production cost of $38.11 per animal
(2015 ~ 28,267 male and female breeders at 545.6%5) and a carrving value
(market) of $32.00 per animal (2015 females carried at %30 and males at
$38B}). TInventory of mink, designated for pelting, is carried at the lower of
average estimated cost and market value. At year end the company's
inventory consgisted of 84,876 mink (2015 - B3, 111} carried at an average
market value of $28.00 per animal (2015 carrving value $23.00} with 2016
production cost estimated at $41.66 per animal (2015 - $47.44) .

2016 2015
# of mink Estimated Carrying # of mink Batimated Carrying
or palts Awvg. cosg® value or pelts Avg. copt* valua
Female hrasders 16,574 & 32.00 € 530,368 22,906 B 30.00 % 687,180
Hale breaders = - = 5,361 38.00 203,718
Total breeders 16,574 & 32.80 % 530,368 28,267 % 31,52 $_ 890,858
Mink for palts 84,876 § 28.00 £2,376,528 83,111 & 33.00 $1,911,553

¥ - lower of cost and estimated market value
() Property and Eguipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Amortization is provided annually
at rates calculated to write-off the assets over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Buildings - 4% diminishing balance
Computer - 30% diminishing balance
Equipment and feed cart ~ 20% diminishing balance
Mink pens and cages = 10% diminishing balance
Roadway -~ 17% diminighing balance
Vehicles - 30% diminishing balance
Wells & power lines ~ 10% diminishing balance

Amortization rates are halved in year of acquisition,




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO PINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unavdited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(Continued}
(c} Deferred government assistance & investment tax creditsg

Deferred government assistance and deferred investment tax c¢redits are
amortized using the same amortization rates as are used when amortizing the
related asset.

{d} Investments in 340 Ranchers Co-op & American Legend Co-op

The eqguity in 340 Ranchers Co-operative and the invegtment in
American Legend Co-operative are valued at cost.

{e) Contracting Revenue

The company contracts te raise mink for other ranchers, including some related
parties. The company makes an estimate of revenue earned to year end, and
defers unearned receipts, if any. After vear end, a final settlement is
recorded, once pelting and grading have bheen completed.

FUTURE INCOME TAX®S

Future income taxes occur when certain revenues or expenses are recognized in
different periods for income tax and accounting purposes. In this statement future
income taxes arise primarily as a result of differences in the timing of
amortization expensed for accounting purposes ve capital cost allowance claimed for
tax purposes. The result of this timing difference is the decrease of taxable
income in the current period, and the creation of a future income tax liability,
which will be reallzed as the timing difference reverses,

The company has not recognized the benefit available from 54,005,313 of income tax

losses which may be carried forward and applied against future taxable income.
These losses begin to expire in 2035.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Aocumilated Net Net

Cost Amortization abia 2015
Land 8 10, 366 ) - s 10,366 & 10,366
Buildings 214,966 68,965 145,957 152,081
Ranch equipment 492,084 346,662 145,422 138,500
Feed cart 18,280 17,716 1,484 1,855
Computer 5,041 4,655 386 552
Vehlcles 134,522 108,031 26,491 37,844
Mink pens & cages 1,483,506 937,752 B45,754 608,551
Qffice eguipment 5,015 3,363 1,652 2,065
Other-Well & Power 9,256 5,B50 3,406 3,785
Manure Storage 91,049 15,108 75,941 73,005
Reoadway 14,498 8,827 5,572 6,713
s 2,479 504 5 1,517,033 S 962,4?; $_ 1,035,317




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINMANCIAL STATEMENTS

{(Unaudited - Ses Notice To Eeader}

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

BANE. TNDEBTEDNESS

{a) NAFA non revolving loan, interest at
CIBC prime plus 3% secured by mink S
(b) NAFA revolving loan, interest at CIBC prime
plus 3% secured by mink

(¢) American Legend Cperating Line, intersst at

prime plus 1.5%, secured by mink

{d} American Legend Breeding Loan, interest at
FCC's variable rate plus 2%

(e} American Legend Producer Loan #0412, interest
at FCC wvariable rate plus 2% compounded
monthly not in advance

(£} American Legend Producer Loan #0451, interest
at 5.25% fixed annually

2016 2015

1,000,000 % -

2,883,629 -
5,383,035 7,470,049
- 1,000,000
1,400,000 1,400,000
500,000 500,009

$. 11,166,664 5 10,370,049

LONG TERM DEBRT

4.5% variable Farm Credit Canada Loan,

repayable in monthly instalments of principal

and interest of 5505.69, due in 2017,

gecured by vehicle s

5.2% variable Farm Credit Canada Loan,
repayable in annual instalments of principal
and interest of %22,503.36, remaining
amortization term estimated to expire in
2022, secured by 2012 Kobelco excavator

N.5. Farm Lioan Board loan, repayable in monthly
payments of $3,178.62, including interest at 4.2%,
amortized until estimated due date in 2027, secured
by a second mortgage over real estate as well as

a first charge over property owned by the
shareholder, a corporate guarantee and
postponement of claim by Jonathan Mullen Mink
Rench Limited and a guarantee and postponement

of claim by shareholder Jonathan Mullen

Great West Life pelicy premium loan in respect of
life insurance policies pavable to Victory Farms
Inc., interest at 6%, no set terms of repayment

5,49% Ally Credit lean, repayable in monthly
payments of 51,198,911, maturing 2015, secured
by 2011 Chev Truck

24018 015
5,419 ¢ 11,081
112,372 127,989
333,503 351,398
15,524
- 3,561




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES T0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTE
{naudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

. LONG TERM DEBT (Continued) 2016 2015

Balance brought forward 5 466,818 5 454,029

4.60% Farm Credit Canada lcan, repayable in
monthly payments of $403.42, maturing 2016,
gacured by 2008 Chev Truck - 3,949

5.20% N.S. Farm Loan Board loan, repayable in

180 blended monthly payments of 45,985.63,

principal and interest, maturing 2026, secured

kv 4,500 breeder females, 1,100 breeder males,

3,500 breeder cages and 10,500 pelter cages 553,360 585,322

0% Scotlabank loan, repayable in 60 monthly
payments of $714.11, maturing 2018, secured
by 2011 Chev Truck 16,424 24,280

4.55% Farm Credit Canada loan, repavable in
60 blended monthly payments of $710.24 principal
and interesat, maturing 2018 10,338 18,195

4.90% Farm Credit Canada loan, repayable in
60 blended monthly payments of $711.05 principal

and interest, maturing 2016 - 4.873
Total leong-term debt 1,046,240 1,130,648
Less: Estimated current portion 125,902 116,558

S 921,038 & 1,014,089

The estimated principal payments reguired in each of the next five years are as

follows:
2017 - s 125,902
2018 -~ 99,844
2018 - 895,149
2020 - 99,955
2021 - 105,00%
Subsecuent - § 521,085
6. CAPITAL STCOCK
Authorized
40,000 at no par wvalue
2016 2015
Issued capital
100 common shares 5 190 5 100




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAT STATEMENTS
{Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

OTHER INCOME

20186 2015

Gain (Loss) on sale of property & equipment § 9,006 5 (460}
Farm eguipment and mink rental 7,41) 5,475
Government assistance * - including

Agrilnvest and AgrisStability estimate 943,626 2,065,000
Cther inecluding feed and animal rental 15, 666 101,028
Patronage & Volume Rebates 31,571 50,308
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 126,818 {1,052,164)

$ 1,204,098 & 1,169,187

* Agristability benefit estimates are accrued Iin respect of each vear and adjustments
te actual are recorded when the final benefit is known.

DUE FROM {TO) RELATED PARTIES

2016 2015
DUE FROM ABOVE & BEYOND FARMS INC. $ 405,303 & 499,954
DUE FROM JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LTD. 903,276 916,660
DUE FROM ORGANIC MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS LTD. 1,947,127 1,883,777
DUE FROM TRINITY FARMS INC. 334,082 113,285
DUE FROM PROVIDENCE FARMS INC. 274,939 274,743
DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES $ 3,864,727 $_ 3,688,419
DUE TO JASON MULLEN $ 128,266 & 128,266
DUE TO JASON MULLEN MINK RANCH IIMITED 16,609 16,609
DUE TO 2351604 NOVA SCOTIA LIMITED 522,121 522,121
DUE TO RELATED PARTIES & 655,956 & 666,996

All of the above advances, receivable from or due to the variocus related
parties, are carried at cost, are non-interest bearing and carry no set terms of
repayvment .

BROVISION FOR INCOME TRXES

2016 a01s
Current income taxes [ (2,938) s (51,940}
Future income taxes (Note 2) 5,125 1.586

§ 2,187 5 (50,354)

No benefit has been recorded for the value of farm losses available for carry
forward for application against future taxable income.
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VICTORY FARMS TINCORPORATED

NOTES T¥ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMRER 30, 2016

ACCRUED AGRISTABILITY PAYHENT

The company has received AgriStability paymentsg during 2016 for the 2015 tax year in
the amount of $1,848,452. An AgriStability estimate of $1,957, 625 was accorued in
2015. Consequently the difference of $109,173 has been charged against 2016
Agristability income.

Alsc received during 2016 was the interim 2016 payment of $53%90,772. A further
$447,136 has been accrued at year end for the estimated expected balance of the
AgriBtability 2016 year payment.

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Certain figures on the 2015 comparative financial statements have been restated in
order to conform with the presentation adopted in the current year,

10.
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NOTICE TO READER

On the kasis of information provided by management, we have ccmpiled the balance sheet of
VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED as at deptember 30, 2015 and the gtatements of (loss)
income and (deficit) retained earnings and cagh flows for the year then ended.

We have not performed an audit or a review engagement in respect of these financial
gtatements and, accordingly, we express n¢ asgurance thereon.

Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be appr iate for their purposes.

/ / -
S '
New Minas, ¥.85. W(’ éﬂ/&/"

April 7, 2016 CONROY INVESTMENTS LIMITED




VICTORY FARMS TINCORPORATED

BALANCE SHEET

(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

2015 2014
ASHETS

CURRENT

Accounts receivable 5 326,431 B75,665
Accrued AgriStability payment (Note 12} 1,957,625 ~
Inventory of mink 1,911,553 4,452,826
Prepaid expenses 26,041 28,703
Income taxes recoverable 19,300 5,781
4,240,950 5,362,975
DUE FROM SHAREHOLDER 209,414 249,687
REFUNDABLE INVESTMENT TAX CREDIT 32,805 1,969
EQUITY IN 340 RANCHERS CO-OPERATIVE 939 939
INVESTMENT IN AMERICAN LEGEND CO-OPERATIVE 30,715 30,715
DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES (Note B) 3,688,419 4,169,443
MINK BREEDING STOCK 890,898 973,745
CASH SUREENDER VALUE QF LIFE INSURANCE 31,630 4,858
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 3) 1,035,317 1 AT 237
g 1051515087 ) 11,971,568
LIABILITIES

CURRENT
Bank indebtedness (Notes 4 and 10) $ 10,365,231 8,968,034
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,212,777 877,847
Current portion of long term debt 116,559 131,177
11,705,567 9,977,058
LONG TERM DEBT (Note 5) 1,014,089 1,130,669
DUE TO RELATED PARTIES {(Note B) 666,996 666,996
FUTURE INCOME TAXES LIABILITY (Note 2) 17,050 15,464
DEFERRED GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE 50,757 56,397
DEFERRED INVESTMENT TAX CREDIT 66,775 75,143
13,521,234 11,921,727

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

CAPITAL STOCK (Note 6} 100 100
(DEFICIT) RETATINED EARNINGS {Note 10) (3,360,247) 49,741
(3,360,147) 49,841

Director

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES

$__10.161,087 $__11,971,568



VICTORY FARMS INCORPQRATED

BTATEMENT OF (LOZS} INCOME AND (DEFICIT) RETAINED EARNTINGSH
{(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

YEAR ENDED SBPTEMBER 30, 2015

2015 2014
REVENCFE
Contract revenue 3 493,738 & 511,157
Mink and pelts sold 4,670,898 5,423,355
Other income ({(Nctes 7 and 10} 1,169 187 115,828
6,333,521 6,050,338
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXFENSER
Acvcounting and legal 18,132 11,222
Amortization 124,861 150,234
Bad debts 152,000 “
Bank charges and short term interest 680,630 385,396
Contracted mink care 966,723 894,411
Custom pelting 513,278 212,998
bonationg 400 400
Feed costs 2,288,784 2,428,129
Gas, oil and greasce 68,660 65,490
Imsurance (including life insurance) 90, 657 B2,550
Interest on long term debt &6l,562 62,798
Lease expense 11,961 7,807
Lights 25,758 25,766
Membership dues, fees and commissicons 301,814 96,100
Mink purchased including freight 105,451 546,513
Miscellaneous 2,613 824
Cffice supplies 2,535 2,896
Property Laxes 7,450 7,829
Ranch gupplies and vaccines 252,778 242,997
Rental - cages & ranch 60,000 95,000
Repairs and maintenance 101,402 92,970
Telephone 5,781 11,708
Travel, entertalnment and meals 3,940 4,102
Wages and benefits 1,087 579 1,129, 232
5,944,743 6,557,872
{LOBS8} BEFORE INVENTORY ADJUSTMENT {(611,222) (507,534)
{(DECREASE} INCREASE IN INVENTORY FOR SALE {2,841,273) 1,632,297
EBREEDING HERD DEVELOPMENT COSTS {82,847} (797,327}
{LOBE) INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES {3,235,342) 327,436
INCOME TAXES {RECOVERED) {Notes 9 and 10) (50,354) 73.968
NET (LOSS) INCOME {3,184,9B38) 253,468
RETAINED EARNINGS, beginning of year 49,741 21,273
DIVIDENDS PAID 225,000 225,000
(DEFICIT) RETAINED EARNINCGS, end of year $ 53!3205§§2! 3 45,741

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
{Unaudited - See Notice To Readex)

YEAR ENDED SEFPTEMBER 30,

CASHE PROVIDED RBY {USED IN] OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net {leoss) income
Adjustments for:
Amortization
ILoss on sale of property and equipment
Future income taxes

Net changes in working capital balances
Accounts receivable
Accrued ArisStability payment
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Income taxes
Prepaid sales deposits
Aocoounts payable and accrued liabilities

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED 1IN} FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Applied investment tax credit
Advances from (to} related parties
Decrease in loan te phareholder
FCC operating loan (repayments) advances
2merican Lagend advances
Repayment of long term debt
bividends paid

CASE PROVIDED BY (USED IN} INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property and equipment
Increase in investments
Increase in cash surrender value of Life Ins
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
{(Increase) Decrease in breeding stock

DECREASE IN CASH
CASH, beginning of year

CASH, end of year {Hote 4)

8

2015
2015 2014
(3,184,988) 253,468
124,861 150,234
460 -
1,586 2. 007
(3,058,081) 412,709
549,234 (734,391)
(L,957,625) -
2,541,273 (1,632,287)
2,662 (6,797)
{42,183) 17,260
. {1,400,000)
341,931 (30, 750)
(1,622,789) (3,374,266)
- 29,143
481,024 {(3,052,3869)
40,273 38,093
(3,531,191} 2,271,191
4,920,680 3,363,452
{(131,198) (115,534}
{225,000} (225, 000)
1,554,588 2,308,956
{21,734) (63,421)
- (20,932)
(26,772) {4,858)
22,182 -
B2,847 797,327
56,493 708,116
(11,708} {357,194}
12,526 369,720
818 % 12,526

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Unmaudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMPER 30, 2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FPOLICIES

The company, inecorporated September 27, 2004 under the laws of Nova Scotia,
operates a mink ranch near Weymouth, N.S. Currently the company raises its
own  mink and on occasion, contracts to carry out a grow out operation for
other ranchers.

(a)

Inventory and Breeding Stock

The mink inventory can consigt of live mink available for sale as breeding
stock as well ag mink designated for pelting and eventual sale at the pelt
auctions the following spring. In addition the company retains a breeding
herd consisting of male and female breeders that will be bred in the spring
following year end. All mink, whether breeding stock or inventory for sale
as pelts or live animals are carried at the lower of estimated cost and net

realizable value. For 2015, the breeding stock consisted of 28,267 mink
with an estimated production cost of $45.65 per andmal (2014 - 21,000 at
$46.37) and a carrying value {(market} of $31.52 per animal. Inventory of

mink, degignated for pelting,

ig carried at the lower of average estimated

cost and market value. At year end the company's inventory consisted of
83,111 mink {2014 - 104,386} carried at an average market value of $23.00
per animal (production cost estimated at $47.44) (2014 - $42.66 est cost}).

20158

2014

# of mink Estimated Carrying # of mink Eetimated Carrying

or pelts Avg. cost value or pelts Avg. cost value
Female breeders 22,806 § 30.00 5 687,180 18,500 % 45.97 § B50,445
Male breeders 5,361 3g.00 203,718 2,500 49,33 123,300
Total brseders 28,267 % 31,52 &_ 890,898 21,000 & 46.37 5,573,745

Mink for pelts . 83,111 & 23,00 $1,911,553 104 386 $___42.66 $4,452 826

(b} Property and Egquipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Bmortization is provided annually

at rates calculated to write-off

as follows:
Buildings -
Computer -
Equipment. and feed cart -
Mink pens and cages -
Vehicles .
Wells & power lines -

Amortization rates are halved in

{¢} Deferred government assistance &

the asseta over their estimated useful lives

4% diminishing balance
30% diminishing balance
20% diminishing balance
10% diminishing balance

- 30% dimlnishing balance

10% diminighing balance
year of acquisgition.

investment tax credits

Deferred govermment assistance and deferred investment tax credits are
amortized using the same amortization rates ag are used when amozxtizing the

related asset.

5.



VICTORY FARMS TINCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(Unaudiced -~ See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30,

2015

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Contiaued)

(d) Investments in 340 Ranchers Co-op & american Legend Co-op

The equity in 340 Ranchers Co-operative and the investment in
American Legend Co-operative are valued at coskt.

{e) Contracting Revenue

The company contracts to raise mink for other ranchers, including some related

parties.

The company
defers unearned receipts, if any.

recorded, once pelting and grading have been completed.

FUTURE INCOME TAXES

makes an estimate of revenue earned to year end, and
After year end, a final settlement will be

Future income taxes occur when certain revenues or expenses are rectognized in

different pericds for income tax and accounting purposes.

In this statement future

income taxes arise primarily as a result of differences in the timing of
amortization expensed for accounting purposes ve ¢gapital cost allowance claimed for

tax purposes.

The result of this timing difference is the decrease of taxable

income in the current period, and the creation of a future income tax liability,
which will be realized as the timing difference reverses,

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Land

Buildings

Ranch eguipment
Feed cart
Computer

Vehicles

Mink pens & cages
Oifice equipment
Other-Well & Power
Manure Storage
Roadway

Accumulated Net Net

Cogt Amortization 2015 2014
5 10,366 & - 5 10,366 § 10,366
214,966 62,885 152, 081 158,417
447,250 308,750 138, 500 199,541
19,200 17,348 1,855 2,31°
5,041 4,489 552 788
134,522 96,678 37,B44 58,437
1,483,393 874,842 608,551 676,772
5,015 2,950 2,065 2,581
5,256 5,471 3,788 4,205
B5,074 12,069 73,005 55,723
14,4499 7. 786 6,713 8,088
§__ 2,428,582 & 1,393, 265 3 15035!317 3 1,177,237




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

BANK INDEBTEDNESS 2015 2014
{a} Barnk deposit (ingluding AgriInvest} balance & (818} (12,526}

{b) Farm Credit Canada lecan at a wvariable rate
plus 2.00% compounded monthly, repayable out
of the proceeds received from the anmual ALC
fur auction, secured by presently cwned and
hereafter acquired personal property
ingluding pelts and live animals and their

progeny . 3,531,191
(¢} American Legend Operating Line, interest at

prime plus 1.5%, secured by mink (Note 10) 7,470,049 2,545,369
(d} American Legend Breeding Loan, interest at

FCC's variable rate plus 2% (Note 108} 1,000,000 1,000,000

{e) American Legend Producer Loan #0412, interest
at FCC variable rate plus 2% ¢ompounded

monthly not in advance {HNote 10} 1,400,000 1,400,000
{f) american Legend Producer Loan #0451, interest
at 5.25% fixed annually (Kote 10} 500,000 500,000

$_ 10,369,231 58,968 034

LONG TERM DEBT 2015 2014

4.5% variable Farm Credit Canada Loan,

repavable in annual instalmente of principal

and interest of $505.69, remaining

amortization term of 3 years until 2017,

gecured by vehicle s 11,081 & 16,494

5.5% variable Farm Credit Canada Loan,

repayable in annual ingtalments of principal

and interest of 522,503.36, remaining

amortization term of 8 years until 2022,

secured by 2012 Kobelco excavator 127,989 142,547

N.5. Farm Loan Board loan, repayable in monthly

payments of $2,178.62, including interest at 4.2%,

amortized over 13 years to 2027, secured by

a second mortgage over real estate as well asa

a Birst charge ‘over property owned by the

shareholder, a vorporate guarantee and

peatponement of claim by Jonathan Mullen Mink

Ranch Limited and a guarantee and postponement

of claim by shareholder Tonathan Mullen 353, 398 376,238

5.49% Ally Credit lcocan, repayable in wonthly
payments of $1,198.9%1, maturing 2015, secured
by 2011 Chev Truck 3,561 17,342




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

ROTES TO FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS
{(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

ZEPTEMBER 30, 2015

5. LONG TERM DEBT (Continued) 2015 2014

Balance brought forward [ 494,020 3 B52,621

4,60% Farm Credit Canada lcoan, repayable in
monthly payments of $403.42, maturing 2016,
gacured by 2008 Chev Truck 3,949 8,497

5.20% N.5. Farm Loan Board loan, repayable in

180 blended monthly payments of £5,995.63,

principal and interest, waturing 2026, secured

by 4,500 breeder females, 1,100 breeder males,

9,500 breeder cages and 10,500 pelter cages 585,322 629,265

0% Scotiabank loan, repayable in &6¢ monthly
payments of $714.11, maturing 2018, secured
by 2011 Chev Truck 24,280 32,849

4 .55% Farm Credit Canada loan, repayable in
60 blended monthly payments of £710.24 principal
and interest, maturing 2018 ig,195% 25,703

4.90% Farm Credit Canada lean, repayable in
60 blended monthly payments of $711.05 principal

and interest, maturxring 2016 4,873 12,911
Total long-term debt 1,130,648 1,261,846
less: Bstimated current portion 116,552 131,177

$__ 1,014,089  §_ 1,130,669

The estimated principal payments required in each of the next five years are as

follows:
2016 ~ §116,559
2017 - 108,418
2018 - 59,854
2018 - 95,148
2019 - 99,955
Subsequent - % 610,713
6. CAPITAL BTOCK
Authorized
40,000 at no par value
2015 2014
Issued capital
100 common shares 5 100 & 100
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VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTEZ TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015

OTHER INCOME

2015 2014

Losg on male of property and eguipment =3 {460) $ -
Equipment rental 5,475 8,523
Government agsistance * - including

AgriInvest, 2015 Agristability estimate 2,065,000 22,500
Other including feed and animal rental 101,028 748,187
Patronage & Volume Rebates 50,308 102,976
Foreign exchange loss (Note 10} {1,052 164) {37,330)

$__.1,169,187 $____ 115,876

* AgriTnvest $15,000 plus estimated 2015 AgriStability payment of $2,050,000 (Note 12}

PUE FROM (TO} RELATED PARTIES

2015 2014
DUE FROM ABOVE & BEYOND FARMS INC. 5 499,954 § 838,092
DUE FROM JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LTD. 216,660 766,154
DUE FROM ORGANIC MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS LID. 1,883,777 1,756,436
DUE FROM TRINITY FARMS INC. 113,285 531,857
DUE FROM PROVIDENCE FARMS INC. 274 743 236,897
DUE FROM RELATED PARRTIES % 3,688,419 § 4,169,443
DUE TO JASCON MULLEN $ 128,266 § 128, 266
DUE TO JASON MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED 16,609 16,609
DUE TO 2351604 NOVA SCOTIA LIMITED 522,121 522,121
DUE TO RELATED PARTIES =) 666,996 &S 666,996

Bll of the above advances, receivable from or due to the various related
partieg, are non-interest bearing and carry no set terms of repayment.

PROVISION. FOR INCOME TAXES

2013 2014
Current income taxes ] (51,940} & 64,961
Future income taxes (Note 2) 1,586 9,007

$e (50,354} §____ 73,968

No benefit has been recorded for the value of farm losses available for carry

forward for application against future taxable income. A bepnefit has been

recorded in 2015 in respect of the carry back of farm losses against taxable

income earned in eligible prioxr years.
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VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTHES TO PINANCIAL STATEMENTE
{Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2015
PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT - OVERSTATEMENT OF 2014 FOREILGN EXCHANGE LOSS

The 2014 gomparative financial statements have been restated in order to cvorrect an
error under which three lcans, borrowed from a United States lender, were converted
to their Canadian dollar equivalent as at the end of the 2014 fiscal year. These
loans are to he settled in Canadian dollars and thus the original loan, expressed in
US dollars, should not have been adjusted to Canadian deollars. Conseguently, the
three loans have been restated to the amounts originally borrowed, in Canadian
dollars. The exchange losgs for 2014 has been reduced by $256,555 in orxder to
reflect this correction and the related American Legend (ALC} loans payable have
likewise been reduced by the same amount. Current income tax expense for 2014 has
been increased by $43,531 and income taxes payable have been increased by the same
amount. The total 2014 change to net income of $213,024 has therefore increased
opening 2015 retained earnings over and above the amount previcualy reported. In
addition the company has restated a $729,084 balance due from ALLC, previously
carried in accounts receivable, by netbing it against the operating line due to ALC
in Note 4.

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAYL STATEMENTE

Certain figures on the 2014 comparative financial statements have been restated in
crder to conform with the presentation adopted in the current year.

ACCRUED AGRISTABILITY BPAVMENT

The company hag recorded two AgriStability payments, received (i) during the figcal
vear and (ii) just prior to the statement release, in respect of initial and revised
interim applications for the 2015 fiscal year. The two payments totaled $309,655 of
which $92,375 was received before year end and a further $217,280 was received prior
to release of thege statements. The recent 5217,28¢ payment has been accrued on the
balance sheet.

Management believes that based on AgriStability's assgeasment of the interim claim,
it is likely that a large final claim will also be received following submisaion.
The company has accrued a further $1,740,345 (41,957,625 total acorued af year end)
which is ite estimate of the remaining balance to be received, after filing the
final application, under the AgriStability program for 2015. The total benefit
estimated for 2015 amounts to £2,050,000. This figure represente the

approximate mid-point in what is believed teo be a range (51.9 to $2.2 milliom,
approximately) of possible outcomes in respect of the 2015 payment, due to
potential asgegsing interpretations. There is some measurement uncertainty
apsociated with estimating the remaining AgriStability payment for

2015 due to poesgible aggesgsment and mink valuation alternatives. Consequently any
difference in the amount received from the amount accrued will be recognized in
income in the year that the assesement ig completed by the AgriStability
Administration. Bee alac Note 7.

10.
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NOTICE TO READER

On the basis of information provided by management, we have compiled the balance
sheet of VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED ag at September 30, 2014 and the statements
of income and retained earnings (deficit) and cash flows for the year then ended.

We have not performed an audit or a review engagement in respect of these
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no assurance thereon.

Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be appropriate £for their
purposes.

New Minas, N.S.
March 26, 2015 CONRQY INVESTMENTS LIMITED



VICTIORY FARMS INCORPORATED

BALANCE SHEET
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

AgS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

2014 2013
ASBETSE

CURRENT
Accounts receivable 8 1,604,749 S 870,357
Inventory of mink 4,452,826 2,820,529
Prepaid expenses 28,703 21,906
Income taxes recoverable 21,246 23,041
6,107,524 3,735,833
DUE FROM SHAREHOLDER 249,687 287,780
REFUNDARLE INVESTMENT TAX CREDIT 30,035 28,811
EQUITY IN 340 RANCHERS CO-OPERATIVE 939 939
INVESTMENT TN AMERICAN LEGEND CO-OPERATIVE 30,715 5,783
DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES (Note 8) 4,169,443 1,117,054
MINK BREEDING STOCK 973,745 1,771,072

CASH SURRENDER VALUE OF LIFE INSURANCE 4,858 -
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 3)_ J. 79 235 1,282,871
$_12,744,183 $_ 8,234,143
LIABILITIES

CURRENT
Bank indebtedness (Note 4) $ 9,953,673 & 3,705,280
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 877,847 908,599
Prepaid sales deposits = 1,400,000
Current portion of long term debt 131,177 120,381
10,962,697 6,134,260
LONG TERM DEBT (Note 5} 1,130,669 1,256,989
DUE TO RELATED PARTIES (Note 8) 666,996 666,996
FUTURE INCOME TAXES LIABILITY (Note 2) 15,464 6,457
DEFERRED GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE 56,397 62,663
DEFERRED TNVESTMENT TAX CREDIT 75,143 85,395
12,907,366 8,212,770

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

CAPITAL: STOCK (Note &) 100 100
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT) (163,283) 21,273
(163,183) 21,373
$.12,744,183 §_ 8,234,143

BOARD:

L=

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES

APPRO j({: Hi%;/?F
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VICTORY FARMS INCORFPORATED

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBPER 30, 2014
2014 2013
REVENDE
Contract revemle s 511,157 & 13,396
Mink and pelts sold 5,423,355 3,018,078
Other income {(Note 7) (140,729) 107,906
5,793,783 3,139 380
BELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Accounting and legal 11,222 6,660
Amortizatieon 150,234 161,754
Bank charges and short term interest 385,396 207,337
Contracted mink care 894,411 5EB&,589
Custom pelting 212,998 135,730
Donations 400 1,400
Feed costs 2,428,129 1,607,614
@Gag, ©il and grease 65,490 37,204
Insurance {(including life insurance) 82,550 42,587
Interest on long term debt 62,798 69,887
Lease expeéense 7,807 6,954
Lights 25,766 6,043
Membership dues, fees and commissicns 96,100 151,594
Mink purchaged including freight 546,913 1,138,458
Migcellaneous 824 2,780
Office supplies 2,896 2,542
Property taxes 7,829 8,211
Ranch supplies and vaccines 242,857 B0, 050
Rental - cages & ranch 95, 000 -
Repairg and maintenance 92,970 105,037
Telephone 1i,708 9,218
Travel, entertainment and meals 4,102 5,292
Wages and benefits 1,128 232 621,386
6,557,872 4,894,325
LOSS BEFORE INVENTORY ADJUSTMENT {764,089} (1,854, 945)
TNCREASE IN INVENTORY FOR SALE 1,632,297 1,616,400
BREEDING HERD DEVELOPMENT C0OSTS {787,327} 487,059
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXNES 70,881 248,514
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES {Note 9) 30,437 38,039
NET INCCME 40,444 210,475
RETAINED EARNINGES, beginning of year 21,273 110,798
DIVIDENDS PAID 225,000 366,000
RETAINED EARNINGS (PEFICIT), end of year & {163,283) & 21,273

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES



VICTORY FARMS8 INCORPORATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)
YEAR ENDED SEPFTEMBER 30, 2014
2014 2013
CASH FROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income LS 40,444 & 210,475
Adjustments for:
Amortization 150,234 161,754
Liogs on sale of preoperty and equipment - 5,251
Future income taxes 9,007 7,995
185,685 385,475
Net changesg in working capital balances
Accounts receivable {734,392) (766,882)
Inventory {1,632,297) (121,216}
Prepaid expenses (6,797) (5,458)
Income taxes 1,795 30,357
Prepaid sales deposits (1,400,000) 1,400,000
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities {30,750) 712,791
(3,602, 756) 1,635,067
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCDING ACTIVITIES:
Applied investment tax credit 1,077 3,474
Advances (to) from related parties (3,052,389} 39,179
Decrease (Increasge) in lecan to shareholder 38,093 {187,701}
FOC operating loan advances (repayvments) 2,271,191 {630,000}
American lLegend operating line 3,620,008 1,910,000
Increase in long term debt - 80,847
Repayment of long term debt {115,534) {93,375)
Dividends paid (225,000} (300,000)
2,537,446 822 424
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property and eguipment (62,421) (126,872)
Increase in investments (20,932) {(7,049)
Increase in cash surrender value of Life Ins {4,858) -
Proceeds from sale of property and eguipment - 11,487
Decrease (Increase) in breeding stock 797,327 (1,982.241)
708,116 {2,104 .675)
{DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH {357,194} 352,816
CASH, beginning of year . 369,720 16,804
CASH, end of yeax (Note 4) g 125526 3 389,720

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES
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VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO THE FINANCTIAL STATEMENTS
{Imaudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The company, incorporated September 27, 2004 under the laws of Nova
Bcotia, operates a mink ranch near Weymouth, N.8. Currently the
company raises itLs own mink and on occasion, contracts to carry ocut a
grow out operation for other ranchers.

(a] Inventory and Breeding Stack

The mink inventory can congist of live mink available for sale as
breeding stock as well as mink designated for pelting and eventual
sale at the pelt auctions the following spring. In addition the
company retains a breeding herd consisting of wale and female
breeders that will be bred in the spring following year end. &1l
mink, whether breeding stock or inventory for sale as pelts or live
animals are carried at the lower of estimated cost and net
realizable value.

2014 2013

#ofmink  Estimated Carrying #of mink Esltimated  Camying

or pelis ﬁwg.coat vallie or pelts Avg. cost vajue
Female breedars 18,500 & 4597 § 850245 2,000 § 4845 § 1,485,400
Male breedara 2500 49.32 123,300 5,400 44.48 284,672
Totat breeders 21,000 $ 48.37 §_ 0973745 38,400 $ 4612 § 1771072
Mink for pelts 104,386 & 4266 $ 4,452,826 3123 § 4258 § 1,325,345
Live mink for sale - - - 32 486 46.02 1,495,184
Total inventores 104,386 § 42.66 % 4,452 826 63,609 % 44.34 $_ 2,820,529

(b) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Amortization is
provided amnnually at rates calculated to write-off the
aggets over their egtimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings ~ 4% diminishing balance
Computer - 30% diminishing balance
Ecquipment and feed cart - 20% diminishing balance
Mink pens and cages - 10% diminishing balance
vVehicles - 30% diminishing balance
Wells & power lines - 10% diminishing balance

Amortization rates are halved in year of acguisition.
(¢} DPeferred government assisgtance & investment tax credits
bPeferred government assistance and deferred investment tax

credity are amortized using the same amortization rates as
are used whern amoriizing the related asset.
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VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES T0O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEFTEMBER 30, 2014
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANRT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d} TInvestments in 340 Ranchers Co-op & American Legend Co-op

The equity in 340 Ranchers Co-operative and the investwent in
American Legend Co-operative are valued at cost.

{(e) Contracting Revenue

The company contracts to raise nink for other ranchers, including some
related parties. The company makes an estimate of revenue earned to
year end, and defers unearned receipts, if any. After year end, a
final settlement will be recorded, once pelting and grading have been
completed.

FUTURE INCOME TAXES

Future income taxes occur when certain revenues or expenses are recognized
in different periods for income tax and accounting purpoges. In thias
statement future income taxes arisge primarily as a result of differences
in the timing of amortization expensed for accounting purposesg ve capital
cogt allowance ¢laimed for tax purposes. The result of this timing
difference is the decrease of taxable income in the current pericd, and
the creation of a future income tax liability, which will be realized as
the timing difference reverses.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Accumulated Net Net

Cost Amortization 2014 2013
Land 3 10,366 g - a 10,366 8 10,366
Buildings 214,966 56,549 158,417 165,018
Ranch equipment 463,663 264,122 199,541 228,224
Feed cart 19,200 16,881 2,319 2,835
Computer 5,041 4,283 788 1,126
Vehicles 145,022 86,585 58,437 B3,481
Mink pens & cages 1,483,393 806,621 676,772 718,874
Office equipment 5,015 2,434 2,581 2,664
Other-well & Power 9,256 5,081 4,208 4,673
Manure Storage 65,165 9,442 55,723 55,801
Readway 14,499 6,411 g_0B8 9,745

5_2,435.586 5 1.258 349 1,177,237 S_1,282,B71
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VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{nmaundited - See Motice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
BANK. INDEBTEDNESS

(a) Bank deposit (including AgriInvest) balance §

(b) Farm Credit Canada loan at a variable rate
plus 2.00% compounded monthly, repayable out
of the proceeds received from the annual ALC
fur auction, secured by presently cwned and
hereafter acguired personal property
including pelts and live animals and their
progeny

{c) american Legend Operating Line, interest at
prime plus 1.5%, secured by mink

{(d) BAmerican Legend Breeding stock locan

2014 2013

(12,526} & (369,720)
3,531,181 1,260,000
5,359,384 1,815,000
1,075,624 1,000,000

5_9,953,673

LONG TERM DEBT

4.5% variable Farm Credit Canada Loan,
repayable in annual instalments of principal
and interest of $505.69, remaining
amortization term of 3 years until 2017,

secured by vehicle 5

5.5% variable Farm Credit Canada Loan,
repayable in annual instalments of principal
and interest of $22,503.36, remaining
amortization term of 8 years until 2022,
gecured by 2012 Kobelco excavator

N.8. Farm Leoan Board loan, repayable in monthly
payments of $3,178.62, including interest at 4.2%,
amortized over 13 years to 2027, secured by

a second mortgage over real estate as well as

a first charge over property owned by the
shareholder, a corporate guarantee and
postponement of claim by Jonathan Mullen Mink
Ranch Limited and a guarantee and postponement

of claim by shareholder Jonathan Mullen

5.49% Ally Credit loan, repayable in monthly
payments of $1,19%8.91, maturing 2015, secured
by 2011 Chev Truck

4.60% Farm Credit Canada lcan, repayable in
monthly payments of 5403.42, maturing 2016,
secured by 2008 Chev Truck

16,494 &

142,547

376,238

17,342

8,497

S 3,705,280

21,688

156,446

396,446

30,386

12,838




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014
5. LONG TERM DEBT {Continued) 2014 2013

5.20% N.S. Farm Loan Beoard loan, repayable in

180 blended monthly payments of 3$5,995.63,

principal and interest, maturing 2028, gecured

by 4,500 breeder females, 1,100 breeder males,

9,500 breeder cages and 10,500 pelter cages 3 629,265 5 664,679

0% Scotiabank loan, repayable in 60 monthly
payments of $714.11, maturing 2018, secured
by 2011 Chev Truck 32,849 41,418

4.55% Farm Credit Canada loan, repayable in
60 blended monthly payments of £710.24 principal
and interest, maturing 2018 25,703 32,883

4.90% Farm Credit Canada loan, repayable in
60 blended monthly payments of $711.05 principal

and interest, maturing 2016 12,811 20 596
Total long-term debt 1,261,840 1,377,380
Legs: Egtimated current portion 121,177 120,381

$.1.130.660 5 1,256,999

The astimated principal payments regquired in each of the next
five years are as follows:

2015 - 131,177
2016 - 11¢,540
2017 - 108,409
2018 - 99,864
2018 - 95,14%
Subsequent - 8 710,707
6. CAPITAL STOCK
Authorized
40,000 at no par wvalue
20734 2013
Isgued capital
100 common shares 8 100 8 100




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

SEPTEMBER 30, 2014

OTHER INCOME

Loss on sale of property and egquipment
Equipment rental

GCovernment asgistance - Agrilnvest, etc
Other including feed and animal rental
Patronage & Volume Rebates

Foreign exchange loss

DUE FROM (TO)} RELATED PARTIES

DUE FROM ABOVE & BEYOND FARMS INC.
DUE FROM JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LTD.

DUE FROM ORGANTC MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS LTD.

DUE FROM TRINITY FARMS INC.
PROVIDENCE FARMS INC

DUE FRCM RELATED PARTIES
DUE TO JASON MULLEN
DUE TO JASCN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

DUE TO 2351604 NOVA SCOTIA LIMITED

DUE TC RELATED PARTIES

2014 2013
& - 5 (5,251}
8,523 6,319
22,500 12,637
79,157 57,074
102,976 41,468
(353,885) (5,341}

$om(180,729) §___ 107,906

2014 2013
4 838,099 & 219,815
766,154 935,986
1,796,436 (221,267)
531,857 182,520
236,897 -

8 169,443 §_ 1,117,054

8 128,266 &
16,609

128,266
16,609

2,121 522,121

5 666,996 %

666,996

All of the above advances, receivable from or due to the various
related parties, are non-interest bearaing and carry no set terms

of repayment.

PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES

Current income taxes
Future income taxes (Note 2)

2014 2013
$ 21,430 8 30,044
9,007 7.995
Some30,437 538,039




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED
JANUARY 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Disclaimer:

The above statements have not been audited, reviewed or otherwise verified.




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

Balance Sheet As at 01/31/2017

ASSET

Current Assets

Petty Cash 2.01

Cheguing Bank Account 851.29

US Chequing: 400 144 2 60.32

US Exchange 1.74

Total Cash 915.36
Investment in ALC Class A stock 1,000.00
Investment in ALC Class B stock 10,025.42
Investment Tax Credit Receivable 95,470.45
Accounts Receivable 2.72

Total Receivable 2.72
Prepaid Expenses 3,365.43
Total Current Assets 110,779.38

Capital Assets

Vehicles 50,869.00
Organic Management Solutions -700.00
Acc Depreciation-Vehicle -43 430.45
Investment: Above & Beyond tnc -11,500.00
Trinity Farms inc -500.00
Property: Lighthouse Road 111,100.00
Land 93,747.38
Utilities/Security - Set up 20,315.66
Acc Dep-Utilities Set Up -2,901.34
Acc. Depreciation-PerimeterFancing -33,130.55
Acc. Deprec - Ranch Manure System -42 538.64
Ranch & Manure System 249 859 64
Perimeter Fencing 49,208 .66
Cages 362,202 56
Buildings 101,810.17
New Pens 745,733.23
Well 9,883.42
Acc. Depreciation - Well -3,559.11
Ace. Deprec - Pens -123,657.10
Ace.Deprec - Cages ~-143,378.97
Acc.Deprec - Buiiding ~-17,391.54
New Egquipment 86,073.98
Acc Depreciatio -NewEquipment -50,860.16
Total Capital Assets 1,406,756.85
TOTAL ASSET 1,5617,536.23




LIABILITY

Current Liabilitles

Account Payable 39,867.72

Accounts payable & acerued expenses 11,434.42
FCC Loan 434323-01 2,807.55
L. 8. tax witholding -3.671.00
HST Paid on Purchases -1566.78

HST Owing (Refund) -156.78
Total Current liabilities 50,281.91

Long Term liabilities

Farm Canada Credit: 350600.00 277,131.53
Farm Credit Canada: 500,000.00 405,172.72
Due: Victory Farms [nc 868,271.14
Jason Mullen Mink: Loan 1,250.16
Loans from Shareholders -1,6114.34
Deferred investment fax credit 78,278.23
Total Long Term liabilities 1,628,489.44
TOTAE LIABILITY 1,678,771.35
EQUITY

Share Capital

Common Shares 100.00
Tatal Share Capital 100.00

Retained Earnings

Dividends -150,000.00
Retained Earnings - Previous Year -1,084.65
Current Earnings -10,250.47
Total Retained Earnings -161,335.12
TOTAL EQUITY -161,235.12

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1.517,5636.22

Generated On: 03/03/2017



JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED
Income Statement 01/01/2017 to 01/31/2017

REVENUE

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSE

Cost of Goods Sold
Ranch Expense

Gas & Qi

Total Cost of Sales

Payrell Expenses
Wages & Salaries

El Expense

CPP Expense

WCB Expense

Total Payroll Expense

General & Administrative Expenses
interest & Bank Charges
Telephone/Security

Utflities

Total General & Admin. Expenses

TOTAL EXPENSE

NET INCOME

Generated On; 03/03/2017

0.00

103.63
119.26
222.89

7,394.40
165.72
332.66
163.41

8,056.19

70.85
282.83
1,617.91

1,8971.39
10,250.47

-10,250.47




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED
DECEMBER 2016 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pisclaimer:

The above statements have not been audited, reviewed or otherwise verified.



JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANGH LIMITED
income Statement 01/01/2016 to 12/31/2016

REVENUE

Livestock Revenue

Wink Sales

Us Exchange - Gain or Loss
Misc Sale Expense

NSMBA Fee

Contracl Care

Yolime Discount

Total Livestock Revenue

Other Revenue
Cther Income
Total Othar Revenus

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSE

Cost of Goods Scld

Ranch Expense

Bedding, Shavings, Straw, Hay
(as & Ol

Frefght/Celvery Expense

Total Cosi of Sales

Payrolt Expenses
Wages & Salarfes

El Expense

CPP Expense

WCB Expense

Plroll Penalties, interest
HST Penalties/nterest
Total Payroll Expense

General & Administrative Expenses
Accounting & Legal
Fees/Subserlptions

insurance

interest & Bank Charges

Long term Inlerest

Property Taxes

Property Taxes - Lighthouse Rd
Machinary Repair & Mainlanance
Yehicte: repair & mainfenance
Euilding Repair & Maintenance
Telephone/Securily

Litilities

Total General & Admin. Expensos

TOTAL EXPENSE

NET [NCOWE

Generated On: 011112017

1.00

-42.61

-0.16

-0.12
240,000.00
2.00

238,960.11

42505
42505

240,385.16

1,862.98
§8.50
1,171.28
i1.25

3,706.01

102.766.16
2,308.23
4,181.12
318593
167288

3,07

114,107.40

11,267.44
2,295.85
2,515.00
3.408.27

320.80
63773
745,20
2B8.40
833.54
3,59B.85
3.452.01
5.016.70

41,269.79
159,082.20

81,302.96




JONATIFAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED
Balance Sheat A6 af 1213112016

ASBET

Curtent Assels

Padty Cesh

Chaquirg Tark Ascounl

U5 Chequing: 400 €44 2

U Exchange

Trtal Cash

Intvestenat in ALC Class A slock
Ivestmend fn ALC Clzss B slock
Inwvaatenant 'ax Gredt Recerabla
Aeutids Recebzle

Tl Raretvahla

Frepald Evpenasa

Totaf Current Assels

Capilal Asgets
“Wehiales

Organle Mansgement Soltlona
Ao Deptechllch-Vehick
Investmant: Abova & Bayonid Ine
Telréty Farmie i

Praparly; 1ighihowse Raad

Land

LHillesdSecaurdy « Sel up

Are Drp-Lifilkies Sol Up

Ace. Dupteclalon-Pelmeter Fencing
Acc. Evmpres - Ranch Mahare Sy=ien
Fanah & Manurs Syetsm
Perlider Fuirng

CRaR

Buildinge.

Mew' Pers

Wall

Az Deprecklen - Well

fcc. Depres - Pens

Ao Depra - Uagas

Atz Daaretz - Buliding

Mewr Equipmre

Ao Deproslato -WawEqupmsnt
Total Capltal Asscts

TOTAL ASSET

BIABELITY

Current Elabtifes

Mesourt Payable

Acounts payakie A ancemd omonses
[T Loah 43432304

U, 5, tx¢ wilhclding

HST Charged on Sakea

HET Peld o1 Fusclesses

H&T Owing {Refund

Total Current llabllilles

Leng Term IRabliltes

Faim Cerada Cradil: 35000000
Famm Gredil Canoday BOC 000,00
Dues Welory Famme Ine

Jason Mudlen Mick: Loan

Leane from Shareholklers
Deefetied Irretfineid tae eredil
Total L.ong Tarm Aabillties

TOTAL LAABILITY
EQUITY

Share Gaptal

Conilainn. Sheces

Totad Share Caplial
Rodalnest Earrligs
Ditvidereds

Retained Eavaliys - Predeus Year
Currenl Barrings

Total Relalnod Eaming=
TOTAL EQUITY

UiASILMES AND BQUITY

Generaiest On: MM 2017

2
314822
1.74
3z10A
100000
10,025.42
B4 A5
*12

S5,662.00
-T00.00
-4z 43045
-11.50003
-800.00
111,102.00
53,747.30
,315.65
<2901.34
-33,13065
-AZ530.54
748,8%,54
49,200 65
2,55
01,810,17
Fd5,723.23
0BR34Z
356011
2355710
A43ATRIT
-17,20154

1519834 15

FBATRET
11.434.42
240755
367100
200000

Rl

11.2681.43
S AXIT

arriaise
4051TLTZ
BE0.2T1.14
1,250.15
-1,514.34
VB2TRE
1.E10,400.44

167081561

10000

«150,020.00
-B2 387 61
B1,302 56

-151.034 €5

-150.53M 65

1,619,831,15




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

DECEMBER 31, 2015



JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED
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NOTICKE TO READER

On the basis of information provided by management, we have compiled the balance
sheet of JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED as at December 31, 2015 and the
statements of income and (deficit) retained earninges and cash flows for the year

then ended,

We have not performed an audit or a review engagement in respect of these
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no assurance thereon.

Readers are cautiocned that these gtatementes may not be appropriate for their
purposes.

New Minas, N.S. f%?z:f/

August 10, 2016 CONROY TINVESTMENTS LIMITED




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET

(naudited - See Notice To Reader)

AS AT DECEMBER 31,

ASSETS
CURRENT
Cash
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Income taxes receivable
Due from shareholder

REFUNDABLE INVESTMENT TAX CREDIT
INVESTMENT IN AMERICAN LEGEND CO-OPERATIVE
DUE FROM TRINITY FARMS INC.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 2)

LIABILITIES
CURRENT
Bank indebtedness (Note 3)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Government remittances payable
Due to Jason Mullen Mink Ranch Limited
Current portion of long term debt

DUE TO VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED
LONG TERM DEBT (Note 4)
DEFERRED INVESTMENT TAX CREDIT

2015
2015 2014
$ 947 &

- 32
3,365 3,888
3,671 4,063
= 4,385
7,983 12,368
95,470 95,470
11,025 11,025
1,286
1,419,757 1,499,480

S__ 1,534,235

$__ 1,619,629

s - 8 2,200
43,234 38,2009
20,864 103,782

1,250 1,250
60,518 67,493
125,866 212,934
937,993 715,281
624,384 684,260
78,278 91,228

1,766,521

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

CAPITAL STOCK (Note 5)
DEFICIT

APP N BEHALF,OF THE BOARD:
%,/é Director
/ [ - il 4

1,703,703

100 100
(232,386) (84,174)
(232,286) (B4,074)

$__ 1,534,235

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES

2 1,619,623



JONATHAN MULLEN MINR RANCH LIMITED

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND (DEFICIT} RETAINED EARNINGS
{Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

REVERUE

Contract revenue
Volume rebates and pelt sales

Production and contract costs (Page 5)
CONTRTIBUTICON FROM MINK CARE AND SALES
OTHER INCOME

Other income
Interegt income

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Accounting and legal
Advertising and donations
Amortization

Bank charges and short term interest
Freight expense

Tngurance

Interest on long term debt
Lease expenss

Memberships, dues and fees
Property taxes

Repairg and maintenance
Telephone

Travel, entertainment and meals
Utilities

NET INCOME

(DEFICIT)} RETAINED EARNINGE, beginning of year

DIVIDENDS FAID

(DEFICIT) RETAINED EARNINGS, end of year

2015

2015

$ 268,400

2014

3 389,053
85

269,400

133,737

189,138

222,382

135,663 166,756
729 2,449
404
136,392 169,609
2,699 846
50 :
66,773 72,724
8,329 10,420
{351} 157
4,465 5,601
29,770 35,767
217 31,044
1,685 5,542
8,008 7,815
4,033 15,129
3,237 3,166
- 36
5,681 8,079
134,604 168,326
1,788 1,283
(B4,174} 64,543
{82,386} 65,826
150,000 150, 800

S {232,388) $ (B84,2174)

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015

2015 2014

CASE PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income s 1,788 1,283
Amortization 66.773 72,724
68,561 F4,007

Net changes in working capital balances

Accounts receivable 32 20
Prepalid expenses 523 571
Incone taxes receivable 392 66,829
Due to {from) shareholder 4,385 (4,385)
Government remittances payable {82,918) 459,078
Accounts payable and accrued ligbilities 5.025 1,083
(4,000) 187,203

CASH PROVIDPED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Unapplied investment tax credit - (674)
Advances from related companies 223,998 31,936
Dividenda paid (180,000) {(150,000)
Repayment of long term debt (66,851) (65,833}
7,147 (184 .571)

CASH PROVIDED HBY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property and eguipment - {511}
ALC investment - {325}
Increasge in deferred investment tax credit - 51
- {785}
INCREASE IN CASH 3,147 1,847
CASH (DEFICIENCY), beginning of year {2,200) {4,047)
CASH {DEFICIENCY)}, (Note 3), end of yeaxr 5 947 & (2,200}

S8EE ACCOMPANYING NOTES




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

SCHEDULE OF PRODUCTION AND CONTRACT COSTS
{Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015
PRODUCTION AND CONTRACT EXPENSES 2015 2014
Gas, greasge and oil 3 2,206 & 5,844
Ranch supplies 1,706 4,81%
Wages and benefits 129,825 211,723
TCTAL DIRECT COSTS %%3!737 222,382
DIRECT COSTS ALLOCATED TO MINK CONTRACTING (A) 133,737 222,382

DIRECT COSTS ALLOCATED TC MINK PRODUCTION (B) - -

TOTAL PRODUCTION AND CONTRACT COSTS (A + B) % 133,737 % 222,382




1.

JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

NOTEE TO THE FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

DECEMBER 31, 2013

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

The

company was incorporated on October 21, 2008 in the province of Nova

Scotia. It operates a mink ranch in the Weymouth, N.S. area, from which it
either (a) raises its own mink or (b) contracts te provide care and raise
mink cowned by cother ranchersg.

{a)

{b)

{c)

(d)

{e}

Inventory

Inventory normally consists of mink pelts and is valued at the lower of
cost and net realizable wvalue. Cost ig caleulated using the direct
costing method under which direct materials, direct labour and variable
and semi-variable overhead is c¢harged to inventory. At year end
inventory consisted of 0 pelts (2014 - © pelts).

Breeding Stock

Breeding stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is calculated using the direct cogting wmethod under which direct
materials, direct labour and variable and semi-variable overhead is
charged tc¢ inventory. No breeding stock was on hand at the end of
either the 2015 or 2014 fiscal years.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment 1s recorded at cost. Amortization is
provided, armually at rates calculated to write-off the
assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings - 4% diminishing balance
Equipment - 20% diminishing balance
Fence - 20% diminishing balance
Mink pens and cages - 20% diminishing balance
Ranch manure system - 4% diminishing balance

Utility set up - 4% diwminishing halance

vehicles - 30% diminishing balance
Well - 10% diminieshing balance

Amortization rates are halved in vear of acquisition.

Due to or from Related Companiea

The advances payable to Victory Farms Incorporated, a related company
due to common ownership, are non-interest bearing and carry no specific
repayment terms.

Income taxes

The company uges the taxes payable method to acrount for income taxes.
Under this methed the company reporie as an expense only the cost of
current income taxes for that year, determined in accordance with the
rules established by the taxation avthorities.




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

ROTES T0O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Unaudited - See MNotice To Reader)

DECEMBER 31, 2015

PROFERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Accumulated Nat Net

Coat Amortization 2015 2014
Land & 204,847 § - & 204,847 & 204,847
Buildings 101,810 17,392 84,418 87,936
Ranch equipment 86,074 50,960 35,114 43,892
Perimeter fencing 49,210 - 33,131 16,079 20,099
Vehicles 50,669 43,430 7,239 10,341
Mink pens & cages 1,107,936 266,936 841,000 851,238
Ranch manure system 249,860 42,539 207,321 215,960
Utility set up 20,316 2,901 17,415 18,140
Well 9,883 3.5598 6,324 2.027

$_1,880,505 $ 460,848 $ 1,418,757

5_1,4929,480

BANK INDEBTEDNESS 2015 2014
Cheques issued in excess of funds on hand g m 5 2,200
LONG TERM DEBT 20158 2014

{a) 4.99% GMAC loan, repayable in blended

monthly payments of principal and

interest of $965.10, amortized over

5 years, secured by 2011 GMC truck S

{b}) Farm Credit Canada real property loan,
repayable in blended annual payments of 544,878,
including interest at a variable rate of 3.834%,
amortized over 11 years with original term
maturing in September 2020, gsecured by mortgage
over property in Roxwville, N.S, and

3 9,495

quaranteed by Victory Farms Incorporated 395,873 423,460




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

DECEMBER 31, 2015

LONG TERM DEBT {centinued)

2015 2014
{c) Farm Credit Canada rezl property loan
repayable in blended annual payments of $32,021,
including interest at a variable rate of 3.9%,
amortized over 15 years with original texm
maturing in July 2018, sgecured by mortgage
over real estate and guaranteed by Victory
Farms Incorporated L] 2797.107 § 296,417
{d} Parm Credit Canada farm implement loan
repayable in blended monthly payments of
5946.96, including interest at a fixed rate
of 4.9%, amortized over 5 years 11,922 22,381
684,902 751,753
Legg: Egtimated current portion 60,518 67,4893

S 624 384 $ 684,260

The estimated principal payments required in each of the next
five years are as follows:
2016 - 5 60,518

2017 - 52,477
2pls - 53,743
2018 - 55,999
2020 - 58,352
Subsequent to -~ 403,813

CAPITAL STOCK

Authorized
40,000 at no par value
2015 2014
Tssued capital
100 common shares 5 180 & 100




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCE LIMITED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

DECEMBER 31, 2014
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DECEMBER 31, 2014
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NOTICE TO READER

On the basie of information provided by management, we have compiled the balance
sheet of JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED as at December 31, 2014 and the
statements of income and (deficit) retained earnings and cash flows for the year
then ended.

We have not performed an audit or a review engagement in respect of these
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no aggurance thereon.

Readers are cautioned that these statements may not be appropriate for their
purposes.

New Minas, N.S.
June 18, 2015 CONROY INVESTMENTS LIMITED



JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
{(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

A8 AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

2014 2013
ASGETS
CURRENT

Accounts receivable s 32 s 52
Prepaid expenses 3,888 4,459
Income taxes receivable 4,063 70,852

Due from shareholder 4,385 =
12,368 75,403
REFUNDABLE INVESTMENT TAX CREDIT 95,470 54,796
TINVESTMENT IN AMERICAN LEGEND CO-OPERATIVE 11,025 10,700
DUE FROM TRINITY FARMS INC. 1,286 1,196
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Note 2) 1,499,480 1,587,588
$—1.619,629 5 1,769,683

LIABILITIES
CURRENT

Bank indebtedness (Note 3) 5 2,200 ¢ 4,047
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 38,209 37,125
Government remittances payable 103,782 54,704

Due to Jason Mullen Mink Ranch Limited 1,250 3
Current portion of long term debt 67,493 67,980
212,934 163,856
DUE TO ABOVE & BEYOND FARMS INC. - 70,640
DUE TO VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED 715,281 613,865
LONG TERM DEBT (Note 4) 684,260 748,606
DEFERRED INVESTMENT TAX CREDIT 91,228 107,073
1, 703,703 1,705,040

SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

CAPITAL STOCK (Note 5) 100 100
(DEFICIT) RETAINED EARNINGS (84,174) 64,543
{84,074) 64,643

1,619,629 $__ 1,769,683

)epmvzﬁmﬁﬁhw F (ZBOARD:
A / /,ﬂjoj irector C.E

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

BSTATEMENT OF YNCOME AND {DEFICIT) RETAINED EaRNINGS
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

2014 2013
REVENUE
Contract revenue ] 389,053 & 392,160
Volume rebates and pelt gales 85 des
389,138 392,526
Production and contract costs (Page 5) 222,382 199,512
CONTRIBUTION FROM MINK CARE AND SALES 166, 756 183,014
OTHER INCOME
Gailn on sale of assets . 7,184
Other income 2,449 17,805
Interesgt income 404 -
169,609 218,103
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Accounting and legal 846 4,159
Amortization 72,724 78,281
Bad debts - 26,856
Bank charges and short term interest 10,420 il,223
Freight expense 157 15
Insurance 5,601 5,384
Interest on long term debt 35,767 38,330
Lease expense 3,044 15,002
Membership dues and fees 5,542 1,825
Property taxes 7,815 F,732
Repalrs and maintenance 15,129 4,273
Telephone 3,166 3,085
Travel, entertainment and meals 36 57
Utilities 8,078 7.10%9
168,226 203,331
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 1,283 14,772
INCOME TAXES (RECOVERED) - (643)
NET INCOME 1,283 15,415
RETAINED EARNINGS, beginning of year 64,543 49,128
65,826 64,543
DIVIDENDS PAID 150,000 -
(DEFICIT) RETAINED EARNINGS, end of year [ {84,174) & 64,543

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES
3.




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Amortization
Gain on disposal of equipment

Net changes in working c¢apital balances
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Income taxes receivable
Due (from) to shareholder
Government remittances payable
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Unapplied invegtment tax credit
Advances from related companies
Dividends paid
Repayment of long term debt

CABH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to property and equipment
ALC investment
Increase in deferred invegtment tax credit
Proceeds from disposal of equipment

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH (DEFICIENCY), beginning of year

CASH (DEFICIENCY), (Note 3), end of year

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES

2014

2014 2013
3 1,283 & 15,415
72,724 78,281
- {7,184)
74,007 86,512
20 26,804
571 671
66,829 (7,010)
(4,3285) 6,809
49,078 (1,614)
1,083 (42 ,629)
187,203 69,543
(674) (1,516)
31,936 8,127

(150, 000)

(65,833) (64,127)
(184,571) (57,.516)
(511) (32,278)
(325) (4,700)
51 2,528
- 16,800
(785) (17,648)
1,847 {(5,621)
{4,047) 1,574
9§ (2,200) % 4,047)



JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

SCHEDULE OF PRODUCTION AND CONTRACT COSTS
{(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

YEAR ENDED DECEMEER 31, 2014

ERODUCTYON AND CONTRACT EXPENSES 2014 2013
Gas, grease and oil 3 5,844 8 5,230
Miscellaneous - 172
Ranch supplies 4,815 4,603
Wages and benefits 211,723 185,507
TCTAL DIRECT €COS8TS 222,382 189,512
DIRECT COSTS ALLOCATED TQ MINK CONTRACTING (A) 222,382 195,812

DIRECT COSTS ALLOCATED TO MINK PRODUCTION (B) - -

TOTAL: PROBUCTION AND CONTRACT COSTS (A + BY 8 222,382 8§ 159,512
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JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Unavdited - See Notice To Reader)

DECEMBER 31, 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The company was incorporated on October 21, 2008 in the province of Nova
Scotia. It operates a mink ranch in the Weymouth, N.8&. area, from which it
either (a) raises its own mink or (b} contracts to provide care and raise
mink cwned by other ranchers.

(a) Inventory
Inventory normally consistg of mink pelts and is valued at the lower of

cest and net realizable value. Cost is calculated using the direct
costing method under which direct materials, direct labour and variable
and semi-variable overhead is charged to inventory. At year end

inventory consisted of 0 pelts (2013 - 0 pelts).

(b} Breeding Stock
Breeding stock is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
No breeding stock was on hand at the end of either the 2014 or 2013

fiogcal years.

{c) Property and Equipment
Property and equipment 18 recorded at «cost. Amortization is
provided annually at rates calculated to write-cff the
assets over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings - 4% diminishing balance
Equipment - 20% diminishing balance
Fence - 20% diminishing balance
Mink pens and cages - 20% diminishing balance
Ranch manure system - 4% diminishing balance

Utility set up - 4% diminishing balance

Vehicleg - 30% diminishing balance
Well - 10% diminighing balance

Amortizatlion rates are halved in year of acquisition.

(d) Due to or from Related Companies
The advances payable to or receivable from Victory Farme Incorporated,
Trinity Farms Inc. and Above & Beyond Farms Inc., related companies due
to common ownership, are non-interest bearing and carry no specific
repayment terms,

(e} Income taxes
The company uses the taxes payable method to account for income taxes.
Under this method the company reports as an expense only the cost of
current income taxes for that year, determined in accordance with the
ruleg established by the taxation authorities.




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS
(Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

DECEMBER 31, 2014

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Accumulated Ret Net

Coat Amortization 2014 2013
Land S 204,847 8 - g 204,847 § 204,847
Buildings 101,810 13,874 87,936 91,600
Ranch eguipment Be, 074 42,182 43,892 54, 865
Perimeter fencing 49,210 29,111 20,099 25,124
Vehicles 50,669 40,328 13,341 14,773
Mink pens & cages 1,107,936 216,698 891,238 944,718
Ranch manure system 249,860 33,900 215,960 224,958
Utility set up 20,318 2,176 18,144 18,896
Well 9,883 2,856 7,027 7 807

8 1,880 605 5 381,125 $.1,499 480 &_1.587 588

BANK INDEBTEDNESS 2014 2013
Chequesg issued in excess of funds on hand S 2,200 § 4,047
LONG TERM DEBRT 2014 2013

{a) 4.99% GMAC loam, repayable in blended

monthly payments of principal and

interest of $969.10, amortized over

5 years, secured by 2011 GMC truck 5 5,495 8 20,344

(b) Farm Credit Camada real property loan,

repayable in blended annual payments of 545,742,

including intexest at a variable rate of 4.2%,

amortized over 15 years with origlnal term

maturing in June 2015, secured by mortgage

over property in Roxville, N.8. and

guaranteed by Victory Farms Incorporated 423,460 449,531




JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Unaudited - See Notice To Reader)

DECEMBER 31, 2014
LONG TEEM DERT (continued)

{c} Farm Credit Canada real property loan

repayable in blended annual paymentas of $32,021,

including interest at a variable rate of 4.2%,

amortized over 15 years with original term

maturing in July 2016, szecured by mortgage

over real estate and guaranteed by Victory

Farme Incorporated L] 286,417 § 314,950

(d) Farm Credit Canada farm implement loan

repayable in blended monthly payments of

$946.96, including interest at a fixed rate

of 4.9%, amortized over 5 years 22,38) 32,361

751,753 817,586

Less: Estimated current portion 67,493 67,880

$_.684.260 §__749.606

The estimated principal payments reguired in each of the next
five years are as follows:
2015 ~ § &7,483

2016 - 60,518
2017 - 52,441
2018 - 53,742
2018 - 55,959

Subsequent - 461,580

CAPITAL STOCK

Authorized
40,000 at no par wvalue
2014 2013
Tagued capital
100 common shares 5] 100 $ 100

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Certain of the comparative financial statement figures have been
restated in order to conform with the presentation adopted in the
current year.




APPENDIX E: LEASED ASSETS




Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited (the “Applicants”)
Leased Assets

Listed below are the leased units of equipment utilized by the Applicants.

Any bid submitted for consideration pursuant to the Bidding Procedures appended to the Sales
Process must identify with particularity which, if any, of the below-listed units of equipment: the
bidder would wish to seek to receive an assignment of lease from the applicable lessor.

Assignments of the applicable leases are at the discretion of the applicable equipment lessors, and
therefore neither the Monitor nor the Applicants express any assurances as to the availability of any
lease assignments desired by a bidder.

For greater certainty, the leased equipment noted below does not form part of the Purchased
Assets, as defined in the Sales Process.

With respect to leased equipment which a bidder wishes to retain, to the extent that bidder is
determined te be a Qualified Bidder and ultimately concludes a definitive purchase agreement with the
Applicants, it shall be a condition of clesing any such transaction that on or before the closing date,
applicable equipment leases shall have been assumed by the identified purchaser, or new leases
entered Into with those lessors, which are satisfactory to the purchaser.

The subject leased equipment is as follows:

- 2014 Mew Holland T4.95A Tractar with 655TL Loader and Bucket (approx. 285 hrs)
- 2014 New Holland T4.95A Tractor with 655TL Loader and Bucket (approx. 525 hrs)
- 2013 Chevrolet Silverado Extended Cab LT2Z




APPENDIX F: SALES PROCESS




Congt Aaministration

FEB 16 4%
Hfx. No. 454744

2016

S —

Halifax, N.S. -L |
e mee=Glipreme Coutt of Nova Scotia

L st it o e wm

NG /5
o gﬁ? G. MCDOU king Horse and Bidding Procedures Order

i
N MOTION OF Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited (the

“Applicants") for an order approving the Stalking Horse Asset Purchase Agreement and related
sales process;

AND UPON READING the affidavit of Jonathan Mullen sworn February 9, 2017, the Sixth Report of
Deloitte Restructuring Inc, in its capacity as Mounitor {the “Monitor™), dated February 10, 2017 (“the
Sixth Report’) and the exhibits thereto, filed, and on hearing the submissions of counsel for the
Applicants, the Monitor, and those for the secured creditors as appeared:

I'T IS ORDERED THAT:
Service

1. The time for service of the Notice of Motion, the Sixth Report and the other materials filed
herein is hereby abridged so that this motion is properly returnable today and hereby

dispenses with further service thereof.
Stalking Horse Process

2. The Applicants are hereby authorized and directed, nunc pro tunc, to enter into an
agreement to sell all or substantially all of their assets, property and undertakings (the
"Purchased Assets”) to North American Fur Auctions Inc, {the "Stalking Horse Bidder"),
substantially in the form of the agreement attached as Appendix "B" to the Sixth Report (the
"Stalking Horse Asset Purchase Agreement”), and such agreement, subject to the terms of
this Order, is hereby approved and accepted for the purpose of conducting the Stalking
Horse Process (defined below) in accordance with the Bidding Procedures (defined below).

PL# 136351/6218380 3




3. The bidding procedures described in the Sixth Report and attached hereto as Schedule "A"
(the "Bidding Procedures") and the sale process and auction described therein (collectively,
the "Stalking Horse Process”) be and are hereby approved and the Monitor is hereby
authorized and directed to conduct the Stalking Horse Process.

4. In connection with the Stalking Horse Process and pursvant to section 7(3}(c) of the
Personal Information Protection and Documents Act (Canada}, the Applicants and/or the
Monitor may disclose personal information of identifiabie individuals to prospective
bidders for the Purchased Assets and to their advisors, but only to the extent desirable or
required to negotiate and attempt to complete a sale of such assets. Each pmépective bidder :
to whom any such personal information is disclosed shall maintain and protect the privacy £
of such information and limit the use of such information to its evaluation of the said assets
and related business, and if it does not complete a purchase thereof,.shall return all such
information to the Applicants and/or the Monitor or in the alternative shall destroy all such

information and certify such destruction to the Applicants and/or the Monitor.

5. With respect to paragraph 8.8 of the Sixth Report of the Monitor filed February 10, 2017,

the advertisements proposed shall each run once weekly for five cansecutive weeks.

6. With respect to paragraph 8.10 of the Sixth Report of the Monitor filed February 10, 2017,

the auction of the Purchased Assets shall take place, if necessary, on March 31, 2017, as
provided for in paragraph 17 of the Bidding Procedures.

Dﬁputy Prothonotary

JESSICA BOUTILIER |

Denuty Pmthangtsarv

Issued February 16, 2017

IN THE SUPREME COURT "
COUNTY OF HALIFAX, N.S.

I hereby certify that the foregoin document
idantified by the seal of the E:ourlgi S 3ty |
cnpy of the originat document on the iils Rerein. | :

FEB 16 2017

CB\EA X305 e

f'Deput;f Prothngt., o
JESSICA BOUTILIER
Deputy Prothanptary
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Schedule A — Bidding Procedures

Bidding Procedures

1.

3.

4,

Set forth below are the bidding procedures (the "Bidding Procedures™) to be employed with
respect to the sale (the "Sale"} of the assets, property and undertakings (the "Purchased
Assets") of Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited (the
“Applicants”) by the Applicants.

On February 16, 2017, the Court issued an order (the "Bidding Procedures Order")
approving and accepting for the purpose of conducting the Stalking Horse Process in
accordance with these Bidding Procedures that certain asset purchase agreement dated
February 10, 2017 (the "Stalking Horse Asset Purchase Agreement” or "Stalking Horse Bid")
between the Applicants and North American Fur Auctions Limited, or its assignee [the

"Stalking Horse Bidder"), and approving these Bidding Procedures.

All amounts specified herein are in Canadian dollars.

Within five (5) business days following the Auction (defined below), the Applicants shall
bring a motion (the "Sale Approval Motion") seeking the granting of an order by the Court
authorizing and approving the Sale of the Purchased Assets to the Successful Bidder({s)
(such order, as approved, the "Approval and Vesting Order").

Assets to Be Sald

5.

The Applicants, in consultaticn with Deloitte Restructuring Inc, (the “Monitor") in its
capacity as the Court-appointed Monitor of the Applicants, are offering for sale all of the
Applicants’ right, title and interest in and to all of the Purchased Assets and encourages bids
far all of the Purchased Assets, in whole,

Permitted Enceambrances

6.

The mortgages of real property made by the Applicants in favour of Nova Scotia Farm Loan
Board and Farm Credit Canada shall be Permitted Encumhbrances, and the sale herein

contemplated shall be subject to said mortgages of real property.

PL# 136351/6218380 3




The Bidding Process

7. The Applicants, in consultation with the Monitor, shall {i} determine whether any person is
a Qualified Bidder, (ii) coordinate the efforts of Qualified Bidders in conducting their due i
diligence investigations, (iii} receive offers from Qualified Bidders, and (iv) negotiate any "
offers made to purchase the Purchased Assets (collectively, the "Bidding Process"”). The
Monitor, in consultation with the Applicants and the secured creditors, shall have the right

to adopt such other rules for the Bidding Process (including rules that may depart from
those set forth herein} that will better promote the goals of the Bidding Process, provided,
however, that such other rules are not inconsistent with any of (i) the provisions of the
Stalking Horse Asset Purchase Agreement (including the deadlines therein), (ii) the Bid
Deposit Requirement (as defined below), and (iii) the hid prnteétions granted to the
Stalking Horse Bidder herein.

Participation Requirements

8. A "Qualified Bidder" is a potential bidder that the Monitor, in consultation with the
Applicants and the secured creditors, determines is likely {(based on financial information i
submmitted by the bidder, the availability of financing, experience and other considerations
deemed relevant hy the Monitor] to be able to consummate a sale if selected as the
Successful Bidder (as defined bhelow). Natwithstanding the forégoing, the Stalking Horse
Bidder shall be deemed a Qualified Bidder.

Due Diligence
9. Any Person that wishes to participate in the Bidding Process must (i) execute a

confidentiality agreement in form and substance acceptable to the Monitor and (i) be a

Qualified Bidder. The Maenitor shall not be obligated te furnish information of any kind

whatsoever to any Person that the Moxzitor determines not to be a Qualified Bidder. The
Monitor will afford any Qualified Bidder the time and opportunity to conduct reasonable
due diligence subject to the time frames contemplated by these Bidding Procedures. The
Monitor will designate a representative to coordinate ail reasonable requests for additional

information ang due diligence access from such Qualified Bidders.

PL# 136351/6218380_3




Bid Deadline

10. A Qualified Bidder that desires to make a bid shall deliver written copies of its bid and the i
Required Bid Materials (defined below) to each of {i) the Monitor, Deloitte Restructuring
Inc, Inc, 1969 Upper Water Street, Suite 1500, Halifax, NS, Canada B3] 3R7, Attention: James
Foran; and (ii) counsel to the Monitor, MclInnes Cooper, 1969 Upper Water Street, Suite
1300, Purdy's Wharf Tower Il Halifax, N5, B3} 2V1, Attention: Ben R. Durnford, not later
than 12:00 p.m. (Nova Scotia time) on March 24, 2017 (the "Bid Deadline™). In the event that
a bid is determined to be a Qualified Bid, the Monitor shall deliver a written copy of any
such Qualified Bid and the Required Bid Materials to the Stalking Horse Bidder's counsel,
Burchell MacDougall LLP, 710 Prince St, PO Box 1128, Truro NS, BZN 5H1, Attention: Brian | !
W. Stilwell, and to the Applicants’ counsel, BoyneClarke LLP, 99 Wyse Road, Suite 600,
Dartmouth, NS, B2Y 375, Attention: Tim Hill, Q.C.

Bid Requirements

11. All bids must include (unless such requirement is waived by the Monitor, with the
concurrence of the Applicants and the secured creditors) {the "Required Bid Materials"}:

(i) A cash purchase price equal to or greater than $4,000,000, (the "Minimum Bid

Amount");

(ii) An acknowledgement that the sale is subject to the Permitted Encumbrances;

(iii) A letter stating that the bidder's offer is irrevocable until the first business day after
the Purchased Assets have been sold pursuant to the closing of the sale or sales
thereof approved by the Court;

(iv]  An executed copy of a proposed purchase agreement and a blackline of the Qualified
Bidder's proposed purchase agreement reflecting variations from the Stalking Horse

Asset Purchase Agreement {the "Marked Agreement”). All Qualified Bids must
provide: (a) a commitment to close within five {5) business days after satisfaction of

all conditions and a covenant to use commercial best efforts to satisfy all conditions;

and (b) the identity of and contact information for the bidder and full disclosure of

any affiliates and any debt or equity financing sources involved in such bid;
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(v)

(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

(ix)

A cash deposit in the amount of $400,000 in the form of a wire transfer, certified
cheque or such other form acceptable to the Monitor (the "Bid Deposit™), which shall
be placed in an escrow account {the "Escrow Account"). The Escrow Account shall
not be subject to any Liens whatsoever of the Applicants’ creditors or otherwise, and
funds shall be disbursed from the Escrow Account only as follows: (i) if the Qualified
Bidder is the Successful Bidder at the Auction, its Bid Deposit will be applied to the
purchase price payable by it under its bid on the closing thereof, and (ii) if the
Qualified Bidder is not the Successful Bidder at the Auction, then its Bid Deposit
shall be returned to it {subject to the other provisions of these Bidding Procedures

and the terms of its asset purchase agreement with the Monitor);

A representation of the bidder and written evidence that the bidder has a
commitment for financing or other evidence of the proposed purchaser's ability to
consummate the proposed transaction, including executed copies of any financing
agreements, commitments, guarantees of the payment obligations of the proposed
purchaser, and which the Monitor, in consultation with the Applicants and the
secured creditors, believes to be sufficient to satisfy the bidder's obligations under
its proposed bid, including to consummate the transaction contemplated by the

proposed agreement submitted by it as provided above;

A representation of the bidder and written evidence that the bidder has entered into
an agreement with Nova Scotia Farm Loan Beard and Farm Credit Canada to assume
the debt secured by the mortgages of real property which form part of the Permitted
Encumbrances, should the bidder be the successful bidder;

The bid shall identify with particularity those executory contracts and unexpired
leases of the Applicants with respect to which the bidder seeks to receive an

assignment;

'The bid shall not request or entitle the bidder to any transaction or break up fee,
expense reimbursement, termination or similar type of fee or payment and shall
include an acknowledgement and representation of the bidder that it has had an
opportunity to conduct any and all due diligence regarding the Purchased Assets
prior to making its offer, that it has relied solely upon its own independent review,
investigation and/or inspection of any decuments and/or the Purchased Assets in
making its bid, and that it did not rely upon any written or oral statements,

representations, warranties, or guarantees, express, implied, statutory or otherwise,
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regarding the Purchased Assets, title to same, the financial performance of the
Purchased Assets, the fitness for use of or the physical condition of the Purchased
Assets, or the completeness of any information provided in connection therewith or
the Auction, except as expressly stated in these Bidding Procedures or the Stalking
Horse Asset Purchase Agreement;

(b4 The bid shall not contain any due diligence, financing or regulatory contingencies of
any kind other than those contained in the Stalking Horse Asset Purchase
Agreement, though the bid may be subject to the satisfaction of other specific
conditions in all material respects at the Closing Date (defined below);

(xi)  The bid shall fully disclose the identity of each entity that will be bidding for the
Purchased Assets or otherwise participating in connection with such bid, and the

complete terms of any such participation;
(xii}  The bid shall state that the offering party consents to the jurisdiction of the Court;

{xiii) The bid shall include evidence of authorization and approval from the bidder's
board of directors (or comparable governing body) with respect to the submission,

execution, delivery and closing of the submitted purchase agreement of the bidder;

(xiv) The bid shall state that the offering party has not acted and will not act in collusion

with any other undisclosed party or entity in connection with its bid; and

(xv]  The bid shall identify with particularity any liabilities being assumed.

12. A bid received from a Qualified Bidder that includes all of the Required Bid Materials and is
received by the Bid Deadline is a "Qualified Bid." The Monitor, in consultation with the
Applicants and the secured creditors, reserves the right to determine the value of any
Qualified Bid, and which Qualified Bid constitutes the best offer (the "Lead Bid"}. Forthwith
after the Bid Deadline, the Monitor, in consultation with the Applicants and the secured
creditors, shall determine which Qualified Bid shall be the Lead Bid for the purposes of the
Auction. A copy of the Lead Bid will be provided to all Qualified Bidders prior to the Auction
Date.

13. Notwithstanding the bid requirements detailed above, the Stalking Horse Bid shall be
deemed a Qualified Bid.
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Credit Bidding

14. None of the bidders shall be permitted to credit bid any indebtedness owed to them by the
Applicants in connection with the making of a Qualified Bid or in the conduct of the Auction.
If any of the secured creditors or any affiliate thereof (other than the Stalking Horse Bidder)
wishes to participate in the Auction, they must qualify as a Qualified Bidder in accordance

with these Bidding Procedures and will forfeit any right of consultation with the Monitor

provided for herein.

"AsIs, Where Is, with Al Fanl{s"

15. The sale of the Purchased Assets shall be on an "as is", "where is” and "with all faults” basis
and without representations, warranties, or guarantees, express, implied or statutory,
written or oral, of any kind, nature, or description by the Monitor or the Applicants or their
respective agents, representatives or estates, or any of the other parties participating in the
sales process pursuant to these Bid Procedures, except as may otherwise be provided in a
definitive purchase agreement with the Applicants. By submitting a bid, each Qualified
Bidder shall be deemed to acknowledge and represent that it has had an opportunity to
conduct any and all due diligence regarding the Purchased Assets prior to making its bid,

that it has relied solely upon its own independent review, investigation and/or inspection of
any documents and/or the Purchased Assets in making its bid, and that it did not rely upon
any written or oral statements, representations, warranties, or guarantees, express, implied,
statutory or otherwise, regarding the Purchased Assets, title to the Purchased Assets, the
financial performance of the Purchased Assets or the physical condition or location of the
Purchased Assets or their fitness for use, ar the completeness of any information provided
in connection therewith or the Auction, except as expressly stated in these Bidding

Procedures or as set forth in a definitive purchase agreement with the Applicants.
Free of Any and Alf Liens

16. Except as otherwise provided in the Stalking Horse Asset Purchase Agreement or another
Successful Bidder's purchase agreement, and subject to mortgages of real property in
favour of Nova Scotia Farm Loan Board and Farm Credit Canada and any other security,
charges or other restrictions (Permitted Encumbrances”)which may be defined in the
Approval and Vesting Order, all of the Applicants' right, title and interest in and to the
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Purchased Assets subject thereto shall, pursuant to the provisions of section 36 of the '

Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, be sold free and clear of any and all security, charge

or ather restriction, other than Permitted Encumbrances as provided for in the Approval
and Vesting Order.

The Auction and Auction Procedures

17. 1f a Qualified Bid (other than that submitted by the Stalking Horse Bidder) or Qualified Bids
which, in either case, in the aggregate provide for cash consideration of not less than the

Minimum Bid Amount, have been received by the Monitor on or before the Bid Deadline, the
Monitor shall conduct an auction (the "Aunction™) with respect to all of the Purchased Assets,
with the Lead Bid as the starting bid for the Auction. The Auction shall be conducted at the
offices of Deloitte Restructuring Inc. [nc., 1969 Upper Water Street, Suite 1500, Halifax, NS,
Canada B3] 3R7 (the "Auction Site") at 11:00 am. (Nova Scotia time) on March 31, 2017
(the "Auction Date"), or such other place and time as the Monitor shall notify all Qualified

Bidders who have submitted Qualified Bids and expressed their intent to participate in the
Auction as set forth above. Prior to moving the Auction Date, the Monitor shall consult with
the Stalking Horse Bidder and the Applicants and the secured creditors.

18. Except as otherwise provided herein, based upon the terms of the Qualified Bids received,
the number of Qualified Bidders participating in the Auction, and such other information as
the Monitor determines is relevant, the Monitor, in consultation with the Applicants and the
secured creditors, may conduct the Auction in any manner that it determines will achieve
the maximum value for the Purchased Assets, provided that all Qualified Bidders that have
timely submitted a Qualified Bid shall be entitled to be present during each round of
bidding, the identity of each such Qualified Bidder shall be disclosed to all other Qualified !
Bidders, and all material terms of each Qualified Bid and each subsequent bid made by each
such Qualified Bidder shall be disclosed to all other Qualified Bidders. The Monitor, in
consultation with the Applicants and the secured creditors also may set opening bid

amounts in each round of hidding as the Monitor determines to be appropriate.

19, If Qualified Bidders submit Qualified Bids, then the Monitor, in consultation with the
Applicants and the secured creditors, shall (i) promptly following the Bid Deadline, review
each Qualified Bid on the basis of the financial and contractual terms. and the factors
relevant to the sale process, including those factors affecting the speed and certainty of
consummating the sale as contemplated in the Stalking Horse and Bidding Procedures
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Order and the Bidding Procedures, and (ii) as soon as practicable after the conclusion of the
Auction, identify the best offer for the Purchased Assets (to the extent any such bid is
acceptable to the Monitor, in consultation with the Applicants and the secured creditors, a
"Successful Bid" and the bidder or bidders making such bid, the "Successful Bidder™). At the
hearing on the Sale Approval Motion, the Monitor will present the Successful Bid te the
Court for approval. The Monitor reserves all rights not to submit any bid which is not
acceptable to the Monitor for approval by the Court. The Monitor acknowledges that the
Stalking Horse Bid is a Qualified Bid and shail be submitted to the Court for approval in the
event that there is no other Successful Bid. Except as otherwise provided herein or as
restricted by the Stalking Horse Asset Purchase Agreement, the Monitor upon consultation
with the Applicants, may adopt rules for bidding at the Auction that, in its business
judgment, will hetter promote the goals of the bidding process or any order of the Court

entered in connection herewith,

20. If no Qualified Bid is submitted by the Bid Deadline or all Qualified Bids that have been
submitted have been withdrawn prior to the Bid Deadline or the Auction Date, then the
Monitor shall cancel the Auction (in which case, the Successful Bid shall be the Stalking
Horse Bid, and the Successful Bidder shall be the Stalking Horse Bidder).

Overhid Amount; Minimum Bid Increment

21. There shall be an overbid amount that a Qualified Bidder must bid to exceed the Stalking
Horse Bid {"Overbid Amount™), and that amount shall be at least $100,000 for all hids made
by Qualified Bidders. At the Auction, all subse:juent bids shall not be less than $50,000 in
excess of the preceding bid, untess modified by the Monitor,

Acceptance of Qualified Bids

22. The sale of the Purchased Assets to any Successful Bidder by the Applicants is expressly
conditional upon the approval of the Successful Bid by the Court at the hearing of the Sale
Approval Motion. The Applicants’ presentation of any Qualified Bid to the Court for
approval does not obligate the Applicants te close the transaction contemplated by such
Qualified Bid until the Court approves the bid. The Applicants will he deemed to have
accepted a bid only when the bid has been approved by the Court at the hearing on the Sale
Approval Moton.
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Sale Approval Motion Hearing

23. The Sale Approval Motion shall be made on or before April 14, 2017. The Applicants, in
consultation with the Monitor, in the exercise of its business judgment, in consultation with
the Applicants and the secured creditors, reserves their rights to the extent consistent with
the Stalking Horse Asset Purchase Agreement, to change the date of the hearing of the Sale
Approval Motion in order to achieve the maximum value for the Assets.

24. At the hearing of the Sale Approval Motion, the Applicants shall seek approval from the i
Court to consummate the Successful Bid, and at the Monitor's election, to consummate the
next best Qualified Bid (the "Back-Up Bid", and the party submitting the Back-Up Bid, the
"Back-Up Bidder") should the Successful Bid not be closed in accerdance with its terms for !

any reason.

25. If the Successful Bidder fails to consummate an approved Sale within five (5) business days i
after satisfaction of all conditions thereof (“the Closing Date"), the Applicants, in

consultation with the Monitor, may, but shall not be required, to consummate the Back-Up
Bid withcut the requirement of any further approval thereof by the Court. The Back-Up Bid

shall remain open until the first business day following the consummation of the sale of the
Purchased Assets to the Successful Bidder.

Modifications

26. The Monitor, after consultation with the Applicants and the secured creditors, may (a)
determine which Qualified Bid, if any, is the best offer; and {b) reject at any time before the
issuance and entry of an Approval and Vesting Order approving a Qualified Bid, any bid that
is (i) inadequate or insuffictent, (i) not in conformity with the requirements of the Bidding
Procedures, or the terms and conditions of sale, or (iti) contrary to the hest interests of the
Monitor, the Applicants' estate or their creditors. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
provisions of this paragraph shall not operate or be construed to permit the Monitor to -
accept any Qualified Bid that (i) does not require a bid deposit of at least $400,000 be
placed in a protected, segregated account, which shall serve as protection and security for
the Stalking Horse Bidder as outlined herein, (ii] does not equal or exceed the Overbid

~ Amount, or {iil) impose any terms and conditions upon the Stalking Horse Bidder that are
contradictory to or in breach of the terms of the Stalking Horse Asset Purchase Agreement
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other than any such terms and conditions set forth in these Bidding Procedures or the

Bidding Procedures Order.

Miscellaneous

27. The Auction and these Biddihg Procedures are for the benefit of the Applicants and nothing

contained in the Bidding Procedures Order or these Bidding Procedures shall create any :
rights in any other person or bidder (including without limitation rights as third party i
beneficiaries or otherwise) other than the rights expressly granted to a Successful Bidder

under the Bidding Procedures Order. The bid protecticns incorporated in these Bidding
Procedures are for the benefit of the Stalking Horse Bidder.

28. The Monitor shall not have any liability whatsoever to any person or party, including
without limitation the Applicants, the Stalking Horse Bidder, any other bidder or any
creditor or other stakehalder, for any act or omission related to the process contemplated

by these Bidding Procedures.

29. Except as provided in the Bidding Procedures Order and Bidding Procedures, the Court
shall retain jurisdiction to hear and determipe all matters arising from or relating to the

implementation of the Bidding Procedures Order.
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APPENDIX G: PURCHAE PRICE ALLOCATION




Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited (the “Applicants™)

Purchase Price Allocation

Assets

Allocation of Purchase Price

The following real property:
PIE: 30146070; PID: 30146500; PID:
30358329; PID: 30358402; PID: 30358410.

$9,900 (the unencumbered real property
amount)

The following real property:
PID: 30145965; PID: 30145973; PID: 30273817

The amounts due at closing on the mortgages in
favor of Farm Credit Canada and Nova Scotia
Farm Loan Beard

Live minl, pelts, and the proceeds thereof

90% of the purchase price, net of Pending
Agristability payment amount and the
unencumbered real property amount

All other personal property

10% of purchase price, net of Pending
Agristability payment amount and the
unencumbered real property amount

Pending Agristability payment

$447,136, discounted at a 1% discount rate
between the date of closing and the date of
anticipated receipt (the Pending Agristability
payment amount)




Appendix B: Aviator Arrangement




08 Mar 17, 07:43p Aviator Farms Ltd. $025383528 t
o.

AGREEMENT TO TRADE

January 31, 2017

Aviator Farms Ltd. (Paniel Mullen) agrees to trade 3350 Dark female mink pelts and
1033 dark male mink pelis,

for

750 dark male live breeders and 3633 dark female live breeders from Victory Farms
Ltd {Jonathan Mullen). Victory Farms also agrees to the terms of this trade.

This trade is an even trade, 4383 pelts for 4383 live breeders.

Aviator Farms Ltd discloses that the 4383 pelts are held as security by American
Legend Co-operative (ALC). Upon disclosing the intentions of Aviator Farmas Ltd to
trade pelts for live breeders, to ALC, senior management gave their verbal blessing
and consent to complete this trade, with the understanding that upon completion of
trade, the peits would cease to be held as ALC security and the acquired live
breeders would then replace them as security.

Likewise, Victory Farms discloses that the 4383 live breeders are held as security by
North American For Auctions (NAFA). Upen disclosing the tntentions of Victory
Farms Ltd to trade live breeders for pelts, to NAFA, senior management gave their
verbal blessing and consent to complete this trade, with the understanding that
upon completion of trade, the live breeders would cease to be held as NAFA security
and the acquired pelts would then replace them as security.

This trade was completed on January 31, 2017.

Aviator Farm éc\:l,

I

aniel Mullen, Fregident

l‘:‘fr‘\.-/.

Victory Farms Led. atharMullen, Presigent




Appendix C: Cash Flow Reconciliation




Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited

Cash Flow Reconciliation

For the weeks ending February 10, 2017 to March 21, 2017

Opening cash

Operating inflows
Other
HST

Total inflows

Operating outflows
Compensation
Feed costs
Contracted mink care
Operating expenses
Professional fees
Repairs and maintenance
Pelting costs
HST

Total outflows

Operating cash flow

Cash position (before DIP}

DIP funding

Closing cash position (after DIP)

Cumulative

Projected Actual Variance
8,758 8,758 -

- 343.73 344
70,000 60,019 (9,981)
70,000 60,362 {5,638)

158,719 158,382 337
142,305 136,000 6,305
244,629 220,870 23,760
37,399 36,523 876
157,500 105,634 51,866
11,000 11,045 (49)
312,096 136,496 175,601
1,063,648 804,953 258,695
(993,648) (744,591) (268,333)
(984,890) (735,833) 249,057
1,037,300 837,275 (200,025)
52,410 101,442 49,032




Appendix D: Fifth Extension Cash Flow Projection




INTHE MATTER OF
THE COMPANIES CREDITOR ARKANGEMENT ACT,
and
. INTHE MATTER OF
THE COMPROMISE OR ARRANGEMENT OQF THE APPLICANTS,

VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED AND JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH
LIMITED

The management of Victory Farms tncorporated and {anathan Mullen Mink R anch
Limited have developed the assumptions and prepared the attached statement of
projected cash flow of the nsolvent person, as of the 3% day of April, 2017, consisting of
weekly projectians for the period April 7% 10 June 2™, 2017.

The hypothetical assumptions are reasopable and consistent with the purpose of the
projection described in Note A, and the probable assumptions are sutably supponed
and consistent with the plans of the insolvent parson and provide a reasonable basis for
the projection. All such assumptions are disclosed in Note B.

Since the projection is based on assumptions regarding future events, actual results W[“
vary fram the information presented, and the variations may be material

The projection has been prepared by Victory Farms Incorporated and J onathan Mullen
Mink R anch Limited solely for the purpose described in Note A, using a setof
hypothetical and prabable assumptions setout in Note B,

Dated at Dighy, Nova Scotia this 3" day of April, 2017,

Victory Farms Incorporated
Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited

Jn?j’t;;ﬂ Mqllen
President




VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED AND JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH

Note A;

Note B:

LIMITED
ASSUMPTIONS TO THE CASH FLOW PROJECTIONS
FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 7 TO JUNE 2, 2017

The statement of projected cash flow is being filed pursuant to the
Companies Creditor Arrangement Act using the hypothetical assumptions
set out in Note B.

Opening cash balance reflects the estimated cash contained within the
Applicant’s account at RBC.

HST refunds and expenditures relate to ITCs and HST payables claimed
by the Applicants and are assumed {o be received/paid under normal filing
cycles during the period covered by the projections.

Compensation expense is based on current head count levels and
management's estimate of future needs during the period covered by the
projections.

Feed costs are based on management’s estimate using the size of the
herd, current feed prices and expected feeding requirements during the
period covered by the projections.

Contracted mink care payments are based on existing arrangements the
Applicants have entered into with other mink farmers to care for mink.

Operating expenses are based on historical amounts.

Professional fees are based on estimates provided by the various
professional firms involved.

Repairs and maintenance expenses are based on historical averages and
are management's best estimates of amounts required during the period
covered by the projections.

Pelting costs are based on the existing market prices and based on
approximately 49 thousand pelts being invoiced during the period.

DIP funding is based on an estimate of available funds provided by the
DIP Lender factoring in interest charges applied to the balance.




Deloitte

The attached statement of projected cash flow of Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan
Mullen Mink Ranch Limited, as of the 3™ day of April, 2017 consisting of weekly projections for
the period April 7" to June 2", 2017, has been prepared by the management of the insolvent
debtor for the purpose described in Note A, using the probable and hypothetical assumptions set
out in Note B.

Our review consisted of inquiries, analytical procedures and discussions related to information
supplied to us by the management and employees of the insolvent debtor. Since hypothetical
assumptions need not be supported, our procedures with respect to them were limited to
evaluating whether they were consistent with the purpose of the projection. We have also
reviewed the support provided by management for the probable assumptions and preparation and
presentation of the projection.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that, in all
material respects,

a) the hypothetical assumptions are not consistent with the purpose of the projection;

b) as at the date of this report, the probable assumptions developed are not suitably supported
and consistent with the plans of the insolvent person or do not provide a reasonable basis for the
projection, given the hypothetical assumptions; or

¢) the projection does not reflect the probable and hypothetical assumptions.

Since the projection is based on assumptions regarding future events, actual results will vary
from the information presented even if the hypothetical assumptions occur, and the variations
may be material. Accordingly, we express no assurance as to whether the projection will be
achieved.

The projection has been prepared solely for the purpose described in Note A, and rcaders are
cautioned that it may not be appropriate for other purposes.

Dated at Halifax, Nova Scotia this 3" day of April, 2017,

DELOITTE RESTRUCTURING INC.
Acting in its capacity as

Monitor of Victory Farms Incorporated and
Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited

and not in its personal capacity

James Foran, CPA, CA, CIRP, LIT
Vice President

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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Appendix E: The Advertisement




INVITATION FOR OFFERS - VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED AND JONATHAN
MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

Decloitte Restructuring Inc., in its capacity as Monitor of Victory Farms Inc. and Jonathan Mullen Mink
Ranch Limited (the “Applicants™), by virtue of an order from the Supreme Court of Nova Scotia dated
February 16, 2017, is conducting a stalking horse and bidding procedures process in respect of certain of
the assets of the Applicants. The deadline for bid submissions is March 24, 2017,

The Applicants operate a mink farm located in Digby County, NS with annual pelt production of
approximately 80,000 pelts.

Information regarding the stalking horse and bidding procedures can be accessed via the Monitor’s
website at http://www.insolvencies.deloitte.ca/en/VictoryFarms.,

Further information can be obtained by contacting Kurt MacLeod at 902.721.5602 or via email at
kmaclecd(@deloitte.ca.

Deloitte Restrncturing Ine.

Acting in its capacity as

Meoenitor of Victory Farms Inc. and
Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Eimited
and not in its personal capacity

Deloitte.
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- View this email in your browser
February 2017 Newsletter

Le frangals suivra. En attente de traduction.

In This Edition:

» Joint Mink Research Committee Update

« Update on the Assessment Process for the Code of Practice

= Canadian Animal Health Coalition Report

« Pioneer Program Presentation

» Invitation for Offers - Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited

Joint Mink Research Committee Update
February 2017

On-Going Granted Research Projects

Dr. Nieminen, Univ. of Eastern Finland: Dr. Nieminen is proceeding with the fatty liver project that Dr. Rouvenin-
Watt initiated. This is a two year project with an interim report due this summer.

Dr. Bursian, MSU: International Nutrition; Pro-Pep project: 50/50 industry/JMRC funded project: The first
phase of the project, Use of Pro-Pep F as an alternative to Sodium Bisulfate(SBS) to Prevent Urinary Calculi in
Mink, has been completed and the final report submitted. Summary of the project showed that Pro-Pep F would
not be an effective replacement for SBS to prevent urinary calculi in mink based on urinary ph. We are waiting
for the final results on the second phase of the project dealing with digestibility.

Dr. Bursian/Advanced Marine Technologies; "Squid Hydrolysate, a Potential Replacement for Fishmeal and
Phosphoric Acid”: This protein source digestibility and performance study is underway and an interim report has
been submitted. The project was divided into two trials: Digestibility/Growth and Urinary pH. The preliminary
results of the growth portion showed a positive result in body weight gain compared to the ranch control diet. The
nitrogen fecal and urine analysis is still pending. The preliminary results of the urinary pH trial did not show
dramatic changes compared to the control ranch diets, but further analysis is needed.

The feed through larvacide diflubenzuron, ClariFly, parent company has requested a further development of the

http://us10.campaign-archivel .com/?u=32£739697a4d1{2fc00d968b5&id=1c4cedcced&e=a... 3/1/2017



February 2017 Ncwsletter Page 2 of 6

previous study ta develop more data in hopes of getting a mink label. This will be funded directly by the company
(Welimark International). The company is in the process of labeling Ciarifly for mink.

Dr. Turner, Univ of Guelph, “Mink Microbiome in Farmed Raised Mink Health and Disease” project: An interim
report has been submitted and the project is revealing some very interesting information, but more analysis is
pending. Due to Dr. Turner not receiving a NSERC grant, she has been able to radirect some funding to help
support her project but is requesting addition $11,108 CAD to cover the hard costs of some needed lab testing.
The JMRC approved this at cur February meeting.

Dr. Lang, Memorial Univ(NFL}, AD sequencing project: Molecutar methods for the study of infectious mink
diseases; Whole genome sequencing of ADV in wild animals in B.C.: Dr. Lang did receive NSERC approval for
co-funding of his project. The initial phase of this study aims to better understand the relationship between AD
viruses found on farms and those in the wildlife of NFL, NS, Ontario and BC. MEV and Foot pad necrosis
samples are also being sequanced. Second phase involves whale genome sequencing of ADV in skunks,
raccoens and mink in BC. Preliminary results show that some of the  virus found in the different species could
be considered separate viral species.

Dr. Mason/Diez, Guelph/MSU: Cage studies:

+ Feeding Height project: completed, 95% of the data analyzed. A paper was presented at the International
Society for Applied Ethology. They were invited te publish their paper in the journal, “Applied Animal
Behavior Science”. Basic results showed that all age animals preferred the lower feeding heights.

» Ceiling Height project: completed, 80 % of the data is analyzed.

« Canadian vs. European (Females) cage floor area: completed; 80% of the data is completed. The
completed paper will be published in Plos One Journal{ a peer-reviewed journal).

= Canadian vs. European (Males) cage floor; this project is completed, the data is being analyzed and
the female phase is also completed and the data is sfarting to be analyzed.

Peter Peters/PEIFBA/Dr. Cepica; Comparing, 1AT, Elisa, Maldi TOF in determining AD tolerance. This project is
completad and Dr. Cepica has just submitted his final and lay reporis.

Dr. Gray, Dalhousie Univ.; "Examination of the Physiological effects of Aleutian Disease in Farm raised mink”
and the production of histological library is under way and we are waiting for the interim report.

Dr. Britten/Lang, “Whole genome sequencing of Aleutian Disease Virus from skunks, raccoons and mink in
British Columbia™ Significance to the mink industry is to understand the relationship between the strains of AD
faund in these groups of wildlife and the strains from in mink farms. Are wildlife strains actually derived from
farmed and can strain infect mink. This project is being co-funded from the BC Animal Health Center and NL
Research and Development Corperation.

Dr. Mason, “Enhancing the Use and Appreciaiion of Cage Enrichments Towards Effective, Beneficial NFACC
Code Adoption™: This project is a survey of what practical enrichments are being used on farms, which ones
work the best, which ones do nat work well. This project is underway and Lauren Dawson is conducting the

survey's.
The results will then be presented at regional producer meeting across Canada and the North American Fur

Conference nexi year.

Associated Research Projects

http://us10.campaign-archivel.com/7u=32f739697a4d1£2fc00d968b5&id=1cdcedcced&e=a... 3/1/2017
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Dr. Easley, Non- penstrating Captive Bolt for individual animal Euthanasia: Initial evaluation of the Zephyr unit
has been completed and even though the unit was easy to use and efficiently euthanized the mink, especially at
pressures at or above 80 psi, caused an inappropriate amount of hemorrhage and at lower pressures, even with
2 rapid discharges of the unit, the unit still caused too much hemorrhage and did not effectively kill the mink. So,
it was determined that the unit would not work well to euthanize mink on commercial mink farms. Thank you to
Trimberger Mink Farms and Zimbal Minkery for their assistance with this study.

Dr. Drumhiller/Jason Roesler , American Public University; submitted an application for a project to investigate
the “North American Perception of Fear and Threat of Physical Viclence as a result of the Radical Environmental
and Animal Rights Movement, So far, 71 surveys and 19 interviews have been completed. Please consider
engaging in this survey/interview process. The data collected should help the industry better understand these
effects and support our legislation.

Dalhousie:

Mink Research Partnership; has put out the second call for research projects. The two projects that have been
approved for funding, one dealing with Manure Management and the other working on Genetic Markers for
Aleutian Disease are both in progress. Updates will be received later this year.

Madern Mink Management Research Chair Position at Dalhousie University; has been filled. Dr, Younes Miar
from Alberta/Guelph Universities. His field of expertise is molecular genetics and he will be working on
developing systems that will allow the use of genomics in the mink industry.

Michigan State University:

Farm employee support position has worked out very well and has been renewed this year.

| recently spoke with the administration at MSU to discuss the research farm. Unfortunately, the Ag Dept is under
tremendous financial pressure and Dr. Bursian wants to retire. We have not been able to find a MSU faculty
member to replace him, Michael Whelan(FCUSA) and | prepared an industry impact and sent it to the Chairman

of the AG/Bio Dept at MSU . An ad hoc committee will be established this spring to investigate options for the
research farm.

Vaccine update
Production for this year is on track and supply will not be a problem.

John Easley, DVM

Update on the Assessment of the Code of Practice

The Code Assessment process continues to move forward with test piloting being completed in British Columbia
and Ontario in February. The next face to face meeting of the code assessment development team will be June
6, 2017. This process is complicated and requires considerable input from all of the development team. It is
expected that an assessment program leading to farm certification will be completed by the end of 2017.

hitn:ue10 campaion-archivel .com/?u=32f739697a4d1f2fc00d968b5 &id=1 cdcedcced&e=a... 3/1/2017
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Canadian Animal Health Coalition
Board Meeting Report
February 7, 2017

Background

The CAHC's membership includes the Canadian Cattlemen’s Association, Dairy Farmers of Canada, Canadian
Pork Council, Canadian Sheep Industry, Canada Mink Breeders Association and the Canadian Veterinary
Medical Association.

The CAHC provides the secretariat for the Canadian Animal Health and Welfare Council and the National Farm
Animal Care Council (NFACC). It facilitates government funding for NFACC and other specific livestock related
projects.

CAHC alsa is the home for the Canadian Livestock Training program that trains truckers in handling animals in
shipping. CACH is also involved in emergency management planning.

Board Meeting

Main topics were providing input to the Next Policy Framework (NPF); producer mental health proposal; transport
of animals monitoring research; Food and Farm Care Canada request for funding; CFIA transport Biosecurity
Standard; Update on Emergency Management project.

Under the NPF, CAHC emphasize the importance of trade; risk management; assurance systems and public
trust.

A University of Guelph researcher (Dr. Andria Jones-Bitton, DVM, PhD) is working on Mental Health, Mental
Health Literacy and Emergency Response. This project has many positive aspects regarding mental health for
farmers, veterinarians and others in rural communities. The project is Ontario based and funded by interested
Ontario agricultural associations and particularly an $80,000 from OMAFRA/U o G. Total project is $206,000.
CAHC may help with the communications aspect.

There was a proposal to monitor livestock and poultry during transport to determine internal and external
temperatures and humidity. The intent is to avoid unnecessary stress and deaths during transport.

Farm and Food Care Canada made pitch for funding a “partnership” to premote farming in a major newspaper.
The request was turned down as this is not CAHC’s mandate.

A draft Biosecurity Standard Livestock, Poultry and Deadstock Transport was tabled for comment.
The ramifications for mink farming if any will have to be determined.
Matt Taylor provided an update on the Emergency Management project. A number of the larger provincial

associations are engaged. This disaster planning is important and needs to be monitored so the fur sector can
be aware of what may be beneficial in the future.

http://us10.campaign-archivel.com/?u=32f739697a4d12fc00d968b5&id=1c4cedcced&e=a... 3/1/2017
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Respectfully submitted,
Gary Hazlewood
February 16, 2017

Pioneer Program Presentation

On February 11, 2017, Gary Hazlewood was invited to give a presentation on Canada Mink Breeders at the
Pioneer Program Event at NAFA's February 2017 sale. Here is the presentation that included information about
what CMBA does and who they do it with.

At the request of Deloitte in Halifax, NS, we are posting the following Invitation for Offers.

INVITATION FOR OFFERS — VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED AND JONATHAN
MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

Deloitte Restructuring Inc., in its capacity as Monitor of Victory Farms Ine. and Jonathan Mullen Mink
Ranch Limited (the “Applicants™). by virtue of an order from the Supreme Courl of Nova Scolia dated
February 16, 2017, is conducting a stalking horse and bidding procedures process in respeet ol cerlain of
the assets of the Applicants, The deadline for bid submissions is March 24, 2017,

The Applicants operate a mink farm located in Digby County, NS with annual pelt production of
approximately 80,000 pelts.

Information regarding the stalking horse and bidding procedures can be aceessed via the Monitor's
website at http://www.insolvencies.deloitte.ca/en/VictoryFarms,

Further information can be obtained by contacting Kurt MacLeod at 902.721.5602 or via email al
kmacleod@deloitte.ca.

Deloitte Restructuring Inc.

Acting in its capacity as

Monitor of Victory Farms Inc. and
Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited
and not in its personal capacity

Deloitte.

Save the Date for CMBA's 65th AGM!

The CMBA 65™ Annual General Meeting will be held at the Crowne Plaza Toronto Airport on August 20-22, 2017. There will be

interesting speakers and, as always, an opportunity to meet and talk with your fellow producers. See you there!

http://us10.campaign-archivel.com/?u=32£739697a4d12fc00d968b5&id=1c4cedecced&e=a... 3/1/2017
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Local food security worth supporting

nfortunately, cspecially for Atlentic Canadians over the age of 40 or sv, hear-
ing “St. John's” and “hydropopics™ in the same breath might give one an uncasy
fecling, a lingering taste of something gone bad in Newfoundiand and Labrador’s
capital eity.

That something gone had was the multimilliun-dollar Sprong grecnbonse com-
plex near the 5t Joho's-Mount Pear! bonndary, the result of a 1987 parmership
berween the provincial government and Calgary businessman Philip Sprung.

Acvording to an excerpt on the Newtonndiand and Labrador Heritage wehsite,
“Sprung cluimed that his unique greenhouss covering and high-tech hydropunics
process equld grow more plants faster than conventiona] methods, Premicr A. Brian
Peclford announced the facitity would erealo jobs, tap inlo a profitable export mar-
ket, and supply local consumers with frosh and affordable wegolables year-round.
Instend, the operation conld not meet prodoction quatas, find a suitable markect, or
trn a profit, Tt cost laxpayers $22 million and the Prograssive Conservative Party
its eredibility.”

The prajoct went into receivership, the greenhonses were sald xnd shippod off
the island, and the scheme went down jn history as “onc of the most infamouy proj-
gcts in (he province’s economic history,™ according 1o Newfoundiand and Labrader
Hemtage,

That's saping a lot in a provinee that’s knewn seme doorics, cepecially under
Premicr Joey Smallwood after the province joined Clonfederation. Not that New-
foundland and Labrador holds the patent for questionable econamic development
schemes in Atlantic Canada, rot by a long shot.

New potato varieties unveiled

Nz mate. up slgt #f the 16 auwr potatn varetes unvelled at fhe Agriculire and mﬁ -Fd CRnada
[AAFEH potats selecton rml PR hoirsa I F ot Fab. 15. {Agricustur ant Ap-Feod Cariea photop

&

Agriculturs and Agri-Fond Ganada { hietd ita anaual potats as?amm rel;nse npen hipuse this yer mL ek 15 at the
Frederoton Researsh and Develppmenl Centre, Simulismous everms werd also held In Guelph, ¢t and Lethbridoe, Ata
The ARFES treeding teans umveBed 15 naw potato setections 1o idustry this year, [papteniivee and Aget-Food Caneda pheld]

Fortunatcly, Lester's Farm is the antithesis of the Sprung Grcenhousc praject
and its ilk, The family has been farming in the SU Jobm's area gince the 1850s und
they're getting into hydropoaie production of different varieties of leafy grecns
slowly bul surely, as Heather Jonss reports in this 1asue of Farm Fecus.

However, the Lester family has bad its setbacks with hydroponics. “Of course
yon make every mistake that you could possibly make," Chris Lester told us.

The advantage is they started small,

He smid the farm's nuirient film technique (NEFT} hydropopic system cost close to
$50,000, and that it would only cost 20 10 30 percedt of that initia} outlay to doable
or teiple prodoction becanse same of the cumponen{s'-iil-tlie ‘existing system can
handle much higher production. .

Lester said e farm did receive some government funding for its hydropdnic
systom.

“Our government is supportive of it,” he said. “W= have 5o litle food secnrity. I
think wc produce 10 percent of owr owe produce. But take away cabbage, potato,
and turnip, and we’ re probably down Lo 4 quarter or one percent of it™

That’s especially sobering when one considers the extra cost meurmed by both
{he individual consumer and the cnviranment to get a1l of that imported food to the
island of Newfoundland and north to Labrador.

Atlantic Canade will always jimport food. Today, the teglon is as synonymens
with Caribbean rum, molasses, and baked goorls made largely with imparted wheat
flgur as it is with blneberrics, maple syrup, and lobsters.

However, whereas past generations of Atlantic Canadians imperted a small frac-
tion of fheir food and drink, today the opposite is true. -

Our gavernments should support Atlantic Canadians becoming more food secore

—at the sume time keepisg jobs, money, and koowledge in local communides — By

supporting projects on the scale of the Lester’s Furm hydropanic venture. Bd.

Perennia hosts free workshops

Perennia will host two upceming frec worksbaps ' Nova Scote. Both-arc 0 cover
¢rops and voil smanagement. -

P ia spocialists Jack ven Roestel and Rosalie Madden, and Scotan Gold's Somy
Murray will host a workshop in Bridgelown on March 7. from 10:30 am_antl 2:30 p.m.,
at the Tnd of the Line Pub, 73 Queen St. Participauts are asked to register by March 3.

Madden will also host a wotkshop in Yarmouth on March 16, from 11 a.m. until 3 p.a.,
at Rudders, 96 Water 5. Participanty are asked to register for the Yarmaouth workshop by
Match 13, .

Lunch is uot jucluded with cither workshop bt can be purchased on-site #t hoth loca-
fioms. ’ : .
To register, condact Terry McKay at 902-638-2396 or Terry MeFay Enovascotia.eh, o
Geil Walsh toll-free at 1.B77-710-5210. . -

INVITATION FOR OFFERS - VICTORY FARMS INCORPORATED
AND JONATHAN MULLEN MINK RANCH LIMITED

Beluine Reatructurine fac., in s cpatiey 22 Maniur of Yietary Farms Inc. and Tonathan Mullen
Mink Ranch Limiwd (the “Applicants”), by virue of an order from the Supreme Caurt of Nova
Scori dated Febraacy 16, 2017, i conducting a stalking horse and Bidding procedires prodess in
respect o certain of (he assets of the Apph The deadline for 1A issions 15 March 24, 2017,

The Applicints operats 2 mink Fem lowted i Dighy County, NS with anungl pelt production of
approximately 50,000 peits.

DelvitteMistractaring 5. 1 | Inflormation regerding the stlking horse and Bidding |

Actinginils capavityss - - - procediurss v b aroosued viz the hanitor's website at ©
Monttor of Victory BoemsTocadd - b Biess o insolvencies. deloilte.cofen VictnryFarms,

Jonatha Mullen Mink Ranch Lhnkted

o anrt 10 dis persomal Y
o v it Puriher jnfonmation can be obiained by couractiig Furt

u art sod &l 902.72).5602 or via emetl at kmucleod@
Deloitte. deloime.ca ' "

) - Havey Whidden's in Stewiacke, NS .
Bullders of Conerele & Siee| Silos and Grain Bins = Shom G12-662-3772 = Crll: 902-593-0774 |
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2016 Hfx. No. 454744
Supreme Court of Nova Scotia

Application by Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mulien Mink Ranch
Limited for relief under the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act

CLAIMS PROCEDURE ORDER

THIS MOTION made by Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch
Limited (the “Applicants”) pursuant to the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, R.S.C. 1985, c. -
36, as amended (the “CCAA"} for an ordern:

1. establishing the claims process as described in the Monitor's Report; and

2. such further relief as the Applicants may request and this Court shall permit.

UPON READING the 7th Mullen Affidavit, the Report of Deloitte Restructuring Inc. in its capacity
as the Court-appointed monitor (the “Monitor”) and other matexials filed in this proceeding and on
hearing the submissions of counsel for the Applicants, the Monitor and such other counsel who were
present and wished to be heard;

AND UPON READING the affidavit of service of Tim Hill sworn on April 3, 2017 confirming thatalt
of the Applicants' secured creditors which are {ikely to be affected by this Claims Procedure Order were
duly served with notice of this Motion;

AND UPON {T' APPEARING that the Monitor has expressed its approval of the claims and claims
bar process, and has recommended this Order for approval by the Court;

IT ISHEREBY ORDERED THAT:

L The time for service of the Notice of Motion is hereby abridged and validated so that this Motion is
properly returnable today and further service thereofis hereby dispensed with.

DEFINITIONS ,
2, The following terms shall have the following meanings ascribed thereto:

“CCAA” means the Companies’ Creditors Arrangement Act, RS.C. 1985, c. C-36, as
amended;

“Claim” means any tight of any Designated Creditor against the Applicants in
connection with any secured indebtedness, liability or obligation of any kind of the
Applicants, which indebtedness, liability or obligation s in existence at the Valuation
Date.

“Claims Bar Date” means, for the purposes of these proceedings only, 6 p.m. on April
28, 2017 or such later date as may be ordered by the Court;

“Court’ means the Nova Scotia Supreme Court;




“Designated Creditor” means any of the fallowing creditors having a Claim against the
Applicants, and may, where the context requires, include the assignee of such a Claim or
a trustee, receiver, receiver and manager, or other Person acting on behalf of such
creditor: Nova Scotia Farm Loan Board; Farm Credit Canada; American Legend
Cooperative; North American Fur Auctjons Inc, the Nova Scotia Waorkers’ Compensation
Board; Her Majesty in Right of Canada or any province of Canada, and any Person having
a statutory or other claim capabie by law of taking priority over the claims of the
Designated Creditors jisted herein;

“Dispute Notice” means a written notice to the Applicants, delivered by a Designated
Creditor who has received a Notice of Disallowance, of its intention to dispute such
Notice of Disaliowance, in accordance with para. 5 of this Order;

“punds Distribution Process” means the process of applying for and cbtaining an
Order from the Court establishing the priority for payment amongst the Designated
Creditors from those funds remaining from the proceeds of sale of the Assets of the
Applicants.

“Instruction Letter” means the instruction letter to Designated Creditors attached in
Schedule “A” hereto, regarding completion by Designated Creditors of the Proof of Claim
and Schedule to Proof of Claim;

“Notice of Claim" means notice of any Claim by a Designated Creditor;

“Notice of Disallowance” means the notice referred to in paragraph 4 hereof advising a
Designated Creditor that the Applicants have revised or rejected all or part of such
Designated Creditor's Claim set out in the Proof of Claim and the Schedule to Proof of
Claim;

“Parson” means any individual, partnership, joint venture, frust, corporation,
unincorporated organization, government, or agency ot instrumentality thereof, or any
other judicial entity howsoever designated or constituted;

“proof of Claim” means the form of Proof of Claim, referred to in paragraph 3 hereof;

“proven Claim” of a Designated Creditor means the amount of the Claim of such
Designated Creditor finally determined in accordance with the provisions of the claims
procedure described herein and the CCAA, but not any priority which may be claimed by
said Designated Creditor;

“schedule to Proof of Claim” means the Schedule to the Proof of Claim referred to in
paragraph 3 hereof;

“Waluation Date” means August 31, 2016.

CLAIMS PROCEDURE

For the purpose of the Funds Distribution Process, the Monitor shall send by ordinary
mail to each of the Designated Creditors the appropriate form of Proof of Claim,
Schedule to Proof of Claim and Instruction Letter substantially in the form attached as
Schedule "A", on or befoere 11:59 pm. on April 12, 2017, requiring the Designated
Creditor to set out its Claim and to return the completed Proof of Claim and Schedule to
Proof of Claim to the Monitor so that it is received by the Monitor on or before the
Claims Bar Date.

The Monitor in consultation with the Applicants shall review each Proof of Claim and
Schedule to Proof of Claim filed and , shall accept, revise or reject the amount of the
Claim (but not any priority claimed, which shall not be taken as determined) set out




therein for purposes of the Funds Distribution Process. The Monitor shall, as soon as
possible after receipt of a Proof of Claim but in any event no later than ten days
following the Claims Bar Date (or such later date as the Monitor may specify if it bas
agreed prior to the Claims Bar Date to receive such Proof of Claim after the Claims Bar
Date), notify each Designated Creditor who has filed a Proof of Claim as to whether such
Designated Creditor's Claim has been revised or rejected and the reasons therefor by
delivery of a Notice of Disallowance by facsimile or registered mail substantially in the
form attached as Schedule "B* hereto. Where the Monitor does not deliver by the
aforementioned date a Notice of Disallowance to a Designated Creditor who has
submitted a Proof of Claim, then the Monitor shail be deemed to have accepted such
Designated Creditor's Claim, which Designated Creditor's Claim shall be treated as a
Proven Claim for Funds Distribution Process purposes.

5. Any Designated Creditor who intends o dispute a Notice of Disallowance shall, within
ten calendar days of the date of the Notice of Disallowance, notify the Monitor in writing
of such intention by delivery of a Dispute Notice substantially in the form attached as
Schedule "C" hersto to the Monitor by facsimile or registered mail.

6. Where a Dispute Notice is delivered the Designated Creditor and the Monitor, in
consultation with the Applicants shall attempt to resolve same by agreement, which
shall be concluded within fourteen (14) days of the delivery of the Dispute Notice.
Where such a resolution by agreement is not reached, the Designated Creditor shall
within seven (7} days thereafter apply to have the value of its Claim determined by the
Court.

7. Where a Designated Creditor that receives a Natice of Disallowance fails to follow the :
procedure set out in paragraphs 5 and 6 hereof, the value of such Designated Creditor's i
Claim for all purposes of the Funds Distribution Process shall be deemed to be as set out !
in the Notice of Disallowance.

8. A Designated Creditor that does not file a Proof of Ciaim by the Claims Bar Date or such
later date as the Monitor and such Designated Creditor may agree, or this Court may .
order, such Creditor shall be forever barred from making any Claim against the ‘
Applicants and shall not be entitled to any distribution under the Funds Distribution !
Process provisions hereof, and such Designated Creditor's Claim shail be forever
extinguished.

DISTRIBUTION

g Within thirty (30) days after the Claims Bar Date, or the final resolution of all claims
made by Designated Creditors, whichever is the later, the Applicants and/or the Monitor
shall make motion to the Court upon notice to all Designated Creditors for a Final
Distribution Order which shall, inter alfa, establish and set out the priority for payment
purposes of all Proven Claims.

DATED at Halifax, Province of Nova Scotia, this 7% day of April, 2017,

DEPUTY PROTHONOTARY



SCHEDULE "A" INSTRUCTIONS AND PROOF QF CLAIM

Instruction Letter for the Claims Procedure of Victory Farms Incorporated and Jonathan
Mullen Mink Ranch Limited (the “Applicants™)

A. CLAIM PROCEDURE FOR DESIGNATED CREDITORS

By Order of The Supreme Court of Nova Scotia made April 7, 2017, urder the Companies'
Creditors Arrangement Act (the "CCAA"), the Applicants under the supervision of the Monitor,
Deloitte Restructuring Inc. {“the Monitor”), have been authorized to conducta claims procedure
under the CCAA (the "Claims Procedure"}.

This letter provides instructions for responding tc or completing the following forms:
s Proof of Claim
» Proxy
+ Natice of Disallowance
« Dispute Notice

The Claims Procedure is intended for any Designated Creditor with a secured claim against the
Applicants prior to August 31, 2016, (collectively the “Claims"). Please review the enclosed
material for the complete definition of Designated Creditor and Claim

If you have any questions regarding the Claims Procedure, please contact the Court-appeinted
Monitor at the address provided below.

All notices and enquiries with respect to the Applicants’ Claims Procedure should be addressed
to: '

james Foran

Vice President, Financial Advisory Services
Delaitte

1969 Upper Water Street, Suite 1500,
Halifax, NS, Canada B3] 3R7

Tel 502-721-5614

Fax 902-423-5820

Mobile 902-802-2789

iforan@deloitte.ca
B. FOR DESIGNATED CREDITORS SUBMITTING A PROOF OF CLAIM

If you believe that you have a Claim against either of the Applicants you will have to file a Proof
of Claim with the Monitor, The Proof of Claim must be received by 6:00 p.m. {Halifax Time} on
April 28, 2017, the Claims Bar Date, unless the Monitor agrees in writing or the Court orders
that the Proaf of Claim be accepted after that date.

Additional Froof of Claim forms can be obtained by contacting the Monitor at the telephone and
fax numbers indicated above and providing particulars as to your name, address and facsimile
number. Once the Monitor has this information, you will receive, as soon as practicable,
additional Proof of Claim forms. '

Jf the Monitor after consultation with the Applicants disagrees with the value or status that you
have ascribed to your Claim or the validity of your Claim as set out in your Proof of Claim, you
will receive a Notice of Disallowance from the Monitor (see “For Designated Creditors Receiving
Notice of Disallowance” below for details).




C.FOR DESIGNATED CREDITORS RECEIVING NOTICE OF DISALLOWANCE

If you have sent a Proof of Claim, the Monitor, after consultation with the Applicants, is entitled
to challenge the valuation, status or validity of your Claim by sending to you a Notice of
Disallowance no later than May 8, 2017. If the Monitor does not send you such a Notice, the
Applicanis are deemed to have accepted your Claim (but not any priority you may as sert}.

D, FOR DESIGNATED CREDITORS SUBMITTING DISPUTE NOTICE

If you are sent a Notice of Disailowance, you are entitled to dispute the disallowance of your
Claim by sending by delivery, facsimile or courier a Dispute Notice (which will be enclosed with
your Notice of Disallowance) to the Monitor which must be received by no later than Ten {10)
days after the issuance of the Notice of Disallowance. If a Dispute Notice is not received by the
Momnitor by this time, your Claim will be finalized on the basis set out in the Notice of
Disallowance.

Once the Monitor has received your Dispute Notice, you will be contacted by the Monitor to see
if the dispute can be resojved. If the dispute cannot be resolved within fourteen (14) days of the
delivery of the Dispute Notice, you must within seven (7) days thereafter apply to have the
value of your Claim determined by the Court, failing which the Notice of Disallowance shail
stand and be absolitely determinative of your claim.




Proof of Claim of [Name of Applicants{s]]

{hereinafter referred to asthe "Applicants{s]")

Please read carefully the attached Instruction Letter for completing this Proof of Claim.

A, PARTICULARS OF CREDITORS

i

Full Legal Name of Designated Creditor: [specify] (the "Designated Creditor”).

{Full legal name should he the pame of the original Designated Creditor of the
Applicants[s], notwithstanding an assignment of a Claim, or a portion thereof, has
occurred).

Full Mailing Address of the Designated Creditor {the origin al Designated Creditor not the
Assigneel; [specify]

Telephone Number: [telephione number}

Facsimile Number: {fax number]

Attention (Contact Person): [specify]

Has the Claim been sold or assigned by the Designated Creditor to another party?

Yes[] No{]

B. PARTICULARS OF ASSIGNEE(S) [if any]

1

2
3
4
5

Full Legal Name of Assignee(s}: [specify]

[if Claim has been assigned, insert full legal name of assignee(s) of Claim {if all or a portion
of the Claim has been sold). If there is more than one assignee, please attach separate sheet
with the required information.]

Full Mailing Address of the Assignee: [specify]
Telephone Number: [telephone number]
Facsimile Number: [fax number]

Attention (Contact Person): [specify]

C. PROOF OF CLAIM
1, [name of Designated Creditor or Representative of the Designated Creditor], do hereby certify:

1

that I [tick one]
7]am the Designated Creditor of [one or both] of the Applicants[s}; OR
[] hold the position of [specify] of the Designated Creditor,

and have knowledge of all the circumstances connected with the Claim described
therein;

the Designated Creditor asserts its claim against {List the Applicants(s] against which you
assert your claim] and

Such Applicants[s] is [are] indebted to the Designated Creditor as follows:
TOTAL CLAIM: $[amount] CAD




(Claims in a foreign currency are to be converted to Canadian Dollars at the Bank of
Canada noon spot rate as at August 31, 2016. U.S. exchange rate conversicn on such
date was $1.3124).

D, PARTICULARS OF CLAIM
The Particulars of the undersigned's total Claim and Security are attached.

(Provide all particulars of the Claim and supporting documentation, including amount,
description of transaction[s] or agreement([s] giving rise to the Claim, name of any guarantor
who has guaranteed the Claim, and amounts of invoices, particulars of all credits, discounts, etc.
claimed, description of the security granted by the Applicants{s] to the Designated Creditor and
estimated value of such security.)

DO NOT ASSERT OR CLAIM ANY PRIORITY FOR YOUR CLAIM, THE PRIORITY OF ALL
CLAIMS WILL BE DETERMINEP BY THE COURT IN A SUBSEQUENT FINAL DISTRIBUTION
ORDER. YOU WILL RECEIVE NOTICE OF THE APPLICATION FOR SAID ORDER, AND YOU
WILL BE ARLE TO MAKE REPRESENTATIONS AS TO PRIORITIES AT THAT TIME.

Dated at {place] this [day] day of April, 2017
Per: .
[Name of Creditor]

This Proof of Claim must be received by the Monitor no later than 6:00 p.m. (Halifax Time) on
April 28, 2017, by delivery, courier, email or facsimile at the following address:

Attention; James Foran

Vice President, Financial Advisory Services
Deloitte

1969 Upper Water Street, Suite 1500,
Halifax, NS, Canada B3] 3R7

Fax ¢02-423-5820

Email: jforan@deloitte.ca




SCHEDULE “B”

Reference Number [number}
NOTICE OF DISALLOWANCE

In the Matter of Victory Farms Incorporated and fonathan Muilen Mink Ranch {the “Applicants”)
and the Companies' Creditors Arrangement Act

Limited Please read carefully the Instruction Letter accompanying this Notice,
TO: [name of Designated creditor}

The Monitor hereby gives you notice that they have reviewed your Claim and has revised
or rejected your Claim.

A.REASONS FOR DISALLOWANCE OR REVISION

Explanation of revision or refection

If you dispute this Notice of Disallowance, the Monitor must receive from you a Dispute Notice
{which is enclosed with this Notice of Disallowance), which must be received by no later than
Ten (10} days after the issuance of this Notice of Disallowance. If a Dispute Notice is not
received by the Monitor by this time, your Claim will be finalizéd on the basis set out in this
Notice of Disallowance,

The form of Dispute Notice is enclosed.

If you do not deliver a Dispute Notice, your Claim shall be deemed to be as set out in this Notice
of Disallowance.

1F YOU FAIL TO TAKE ACTION WITHIN THE PRESCRIBED TIME PERIOD, THIS NOTICE OF
DISALLOWANCE WILL BE BINDING UPON YOU.

Dated at Halifax, Nova Scotia, this  dayof 2017,

James Foran, Deloitte Restructuring lnc.

in its capacity as the Court-appointed monitor
of Victory Farms Incorporated and

Jonrathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited




SCHEDULE "C”

Dispute Notice

TO: Deloitte Restructuring Inc, in its capacity as Monitor of Victory Farms Ineerporated and
Jonathan Mullen Mink Ranch Limited

Please read carefully the Instruction Letter accompanying this Notice,

We hereby give you notice of our intention to dispute the Notice of Disallowance bearing Reference
Number [number] and dated [date] issued in respect of our claim.

Reasons for Dispute [aftach additional sheet and copies of all supporting documentation if
necessary]: [specify] :

Name of Designated Creditor: [specify].

[Signature of individual completing this dispute] [date]

[Flease print name and position]
Telephone Number: [telephone number]
Facsimile Number: {fax number]

Full Mailing Address: [address]

'THIS FORM TO BE RETURNED TO THE MONITOR BY COURIER OR FACSIMILE AND BE
RECEIVED NO LATER THAN 6:00 P.M., Halifax time, WITHIN 10 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THE
NOTICE OF DISALLOWANCE BY;

Deloitte Restructuring Inc.
1969 Upper Water Street, Suite 1500,
Halifax, NS, Capnada B3] 3R7

Attention: James Foran
Vice President, Financial Advisory Services

Fax 902-423-5820

Email: jforan@deloitte.ca

PL# 136351/6374569_2



